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corporate.
2022 has been a year of strong progress for greggs.co.uk/
Greggs, the result of committed efforts to doing-good/

deliver our strategic growth plan. The significant
opportunities on which the plan is based will
remain centre stage in the year ahead as we make
Greggs more accessible to even more customers.
Although consumer incomes remain under
pressure, Greggs continues to offer exceptional
value to people looking for great tasting,
high-quality food and drink on-the-go.

We have an exciting, ambitious plan for the years
ahead and, by continuing to nurture what makes
Greggs special, | believe we are extremely
well-placed to realise the opportunity to become
a significantly larger, multi-channel business.

Roisin Currie
Chief Executive
7March 2023
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2022 HIGHLIGHTS
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

MORE GREGGS FOR EVERYONE

In October 2021, we set out our ambitious plan

to double our sales by 2026 and have made great
progress against our 2022 targets. We identified
four key growth drivers, which are the focus of our
plan to reach our full potential in the years ahead.
underpinned by investment in our supply chain
and systems and our ongoing commitment to
doing good through The Greggs Pledge.

Read more about our progress against our key growth
drivers on page 19

GROWING AND DEVELOPING
THE GREGGS ESTATE

Afundamental part of our strategic planis shop
estate growth. Our ambition is to reach significantly
more than 3,000 shops and we have a strong pipeline
of new shop openings. We also have a significant
opportunity to further enhance the quality of our
estate through relocations and the next generation
of shop refits. Greggs is a versatile brand. This means
we can open a full range of formats in a variety of
locations, with our new digital channels enabling

us to extend the reach of each shop even further.

Read more about our plans to grow and improve
our shops on pages 20 to 21

THE GREGGS PLEDGE

Our sustainability plan, The Greggs Pledge, focuses
on how we are doing more to help peopie, protect
the planet and work with our partners to change the
world for the better. Our latest sustainability report,
The Greggs Pledge, published alongside the annual
report, is available to view on our corporate website.

Read more about our progress against
The Greggs Pledge commitments on pages 32 to 34 -)

STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS*

Total sales

£1,513m

2021: £1,230 million

Total ordinary dividend
59.0p
2021: 97.0p**

Like-for-like (LFL) sales ***

+17.8%

Diluted earnings per share

117.5p

2021: 114.3p

Pre-tax profit

£148.3m

2021: £145.6m profit

Colleague profit-sharing

£16.6m

2021: £16.6m

*  Detailedcalculations of Alternative Performance
Measures, not otherwise shownin the accounts and
refated notes, are shown on pages 157 and 158

**  |ncludes 2021 additi ial divi of 40.0p paid

o | ike-fi

franchi i year'strading history
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AT AGLANCE

COMMITTED
T0 TASTING GO

WHAT WE DO

We are a modern food-on-the-go retailer, providing
a wide menu of food and drink choices wherever and
whenever our customers need us throughout the day.

MANUFACTURING

In our own food manufacturing
centres of excellence, we make
great tasting, freshly prepared
food that our customers can trust.

LOGISTICS

We move products from our food
manufacturing sites to our shops
ourselves, which helps us to keep
our prices as low as possible.

With ownership of our supply chain, multiple service channels for our
customers and over 2,300 shops nationwide, we are in a unique position
to make great tasting, freshly prepared food accessible to everyone. Our
teams across the business are dedicated to providing our customers with
great tasting food-on-the-go and the best experience, day in, day out.

OUR PEOPLE

We have more than 28,000
amazing colleagues, working
tbgetherto provide our customers
with the best experience, offering
fastand friendly service, dayin,
dayout.

CUSTOMER CHANNELS
With more than 2,300 shops,
including over 440 with franchise
partners, our wholesale
partnership, delivery and Click +
Collect, we are available to serve
customers wherever, whenever
and however they choose.

CUSTOMER
RELATIONSHIPS

Through our Greggs App, we are
building long-term connections
with our customers and rewarding
their loyalty. Our CRM systems
allow us to talk to our customers
onaregular one-to-one basis and
to serve them even better, with
exclusive offers and benefits for
being an App customer.



OUR PURPOSE

To make great tasting,
freshly prepared food
accessible to everyone

OUR VISION

To be the customers’
favourite for
food-on-the-go

DEDICATED
T0 DOING GOOD

STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

OUR SUSTAINABILITY
COMMITMENTS

It's our duty as aresponsible business to
stand for more than just profit. We have a
strong sense of responsibility to do the right
thing for our people, customers, suppliers
and the communities in which we serve,
and to lead positive change.

Read more about The Greggs Pledge on
pages 32to 34

OUR CULTURE AND VALUES

Our people are what makes our business
successful. We aim to provide them with
agreat place to work, where they feel
valued and have the opportunity to fulfil
their potential. Our values commit

us to being friendly, inclusive, honest,
respectful, hardworking and appreciative.
We are proud to hold the National
Equality Standard in recognition of our
efforts toimprove diversity and inclusion
across the business.

Read more about our people
onpages58and 59 —)
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YEARIN REVIEW

A LOT TO BE
PROUD OF

From the annual publication of

The Greggs Pledge and making
notable progress against our targets
including launching our first ever
Eco-Shop initiative and opening our
30th Outlet shop, to launching our
first fashion collection, celebrating
new shop openings including
No.1Leicester Square and hitting
key milestones with our franchise
partners - there's alot to be proud of.

FEBRUARY

APRIL

We launched our first fashion
collection with Primark

Greggs merchandise is something our customers

had continually asked for, so together with Primark,

we launched our first official range, providing our
audiences with great accessibility and value. Based on
the huge reaction and popularity, this has been followed
by afurther two collections, including a festival and
Christmas range - perfect for fans to quite literally

wear their love for Greggs on their sleeves.

Second annual sustainability
report, The Greggs Pledge,
published

We reported on our progress against our ten
commitments to do more to help people, protect the
planet and work with our partners to change the world
for the better, including a pledge to achieve Net Zero
carbon, as we all fight to save our planet from the
threat of global warming. Our latest report is available
to view here: corporate.greggs.co.uk/doing-good/



JULY

STRATEGIC REPORT

MAY

Awarded prestigious
National Equality Standard

We were proud to be awarded the National Equality
Standard (NES)in recognition of our efforts to improve
diversity and inclusion(D&I)across the business.

To achieve NES certification, organisations are
independently reviewed via arigorous assessment
against a defined set of criteria and best practice
standards. Achieving NES accreditation forms akey part
of The Greggs Pledge commitment ‘Embracing diversity".
Beingawarded the standard is animportant stepin our
journey to continuously improve in this area, enhance
D&l across the business and ensure our colleagues
increasingly reflect the communities we serve.

JULY

DIRECTORS’REPORT

ACCOUNTS

Greggs opens at No.l
Leicester Square

We opened our flagship shop at this
prestigious and iconic location in Central
London. In keeping with the starry location,
our new shop opened withits very own
premiere, featuring glitz, glamour and of
course... sausage rolls. Fans were encouraged
to dress toimpress before strutting their

stuff down our blue carpet and striking a pose
in front of the sparkling paparazzi board.

Greggs launches Eco-Shop
L] L] 3
to trial sustainable in-store
. og® *
initiatives
Our Eco-Shop, which opened at Great Billing, Northampton,
isabrand new and bespoke format where we will test
innovative solutions and initiatives aimed at delivering
real progress in reducing the environmental impact of our

operations. Successful new ideas and technalogies will then
be rolled out across the broader shop estate.

Greggs plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



YEARIN REVIEW CONTINUED

JuLy

We celebrated the opening
of our 400th franchise shop

We celebrated this big milestone opening with new franchise
partner Rontec, in Selby. As we continue to roll out new shops
across the country, with an increased focus on targeting
on-the-go locations that are accessible by car, franchise partners
will continue to play a critical part in supporting our expansion
plans. Over many years, Greggs has built and maintained strong
and long-standing relationships with some of the UK's largest
franchise partners and forecourt operators and today works

with 16 franchise partners across the UK.

AUGUST

New pizza line at
Enfield commissioned

Our new automated pizza manufacturing
line at our Enfield site will support further
growthin thisimportant category as well
as lowering production costs.

SEPTEMBER

500 shops now
open in the evening

We were proud to hit this major milestone
with over 500 shops now open until 8pm or
later, offering delivery and hot food menu
trials. Through longer trading hours in more
of our shops, we're able to compete more
effectively for food-on-the-go salesin

the evening.
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NOVEMBER

Greggs Foundation launches
partnership with Rethink Food

The Greggs Foundation, the independent grant-making
charity assaciated with Greggs plc, has partnered with
food education charity, Rethink Food, to launch a free
education programme with the potential to teach up to
50,000 UK schoolchildren the importance of food
security and sustainability. This partnership will play an
important role in furthering the commitments of The
Greggs Pledge to build stronger, healthier communities,
support schoolchildren and grow the highly successful
Greggs Breakfast Clubs programme.

DECEMBER

We opened our 30th
Greggs Outlet shop

Our Outlet shops redistribute unsold food
atareduced price to enable those on a tight
budget to spend less while still having access
to great quality food. Here at Greggs, we
know it'simportant that we do our bit to

reduce food wastage and address food Find out more about our Outlet shops
insecurity across the UKand that's why we inthe latest Greggs Pledge report.
have committed to opening 50 Outlet shops

by the end of 2025.

Greggs plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



CHAIR'S STATEMENT

A GREAT BUSINESS WITH
A CLEAR STRATEGY

| am delighted to have taken over as Chair

of Greggs, abusiness and brand that | have
long admired, and it’s great to have joined
acompany that has, once again, delivereda
strong performance in a challenging trading
environment. Since joining the Board | have
been struck by the capability of the team,
the organisational culture and values, and the
customer-centric focus across the breadth
of the organisation. This puts Greggsina
strong position to deliver on its strategic
plan and the many growth opportunities
that lie ahead.

Matt Davies
Chair

Overview

Despite challenging macroeconomic conditions Greggs
delivered another strong performance in 2022. The whole
team has demonstrated its experience and capability in
responding as conditions changed rapidly over the year.
Continued robust demand for Greggs, at a time when
disposable incomes have been under pressure, is testament
to the quality and value of the products that we offer and the
broad appeal of the Greggs proposition.

| am grateful to my predecessor lan Durant for facilitating
such asmooth handover to the role of Chair, and to my
Non-Executive colleagues and Roisin, Richard and the entire
Greggs team for their welcome to the business. | have had
the opportunity over my first few monthsin role to visit a
number of our manufacturing and logistics sites, to work
ina store and in our supply chain, and to meet many Greggs
colleagues and customers across the country. What has
struck me is the absolute commitment across the business
to offering our customers high-quality products at great
value, and our customers’affection and trust in the

Greggs brand.

Greggs has a deeply-embedded belief in carrying out its
business inaresponsible manner, for the benefit of all its
stakeholders. When times get tough this approach becomes
evenmore important, so it has been encouraging to see the
progress made in delivery of the Company’s environmental
and social commitments in 2022, setout in The Greggs
Pledge. This is a crucial foundation for the sustainable
growth that we aim to deliver in the years ahead.



Our people and values

Iwould like to thank all our colleagues for the part they

have played in successfully navigating the challenges of

the past year. It has really struck me how the people at
Greggs are at the very core of our business. They are skilled,
passionate, incredibly dedicated, and real ambassadors

for the Greggs brand.

The Board devotes significant time to closely engage with
Greggs colleagues across the business and discusses the
feedback received with the executive management team.
By spending time with colleagues in the business and visiting
our sites we receive direct feedback that makes for better
Board discussions. During the year the Board also spent
time with the new Chair of Greggs Foundation, Joanna
Dyson. Greggs Foundation provides essential help to

the communities where Greggs operates and, atatime
when this is needed more than ever, it has both our
support and admiration.

In the first half of 2022 Greggs achieved the National Equality
Standard accreditation, an industry-recognised standard for
diversity and inclusion. This was a significant achievement,
following several years of improvement activity. Beingan
inclusive employeris entirely consistent with Greggs’
values-driven approach andinline with our Greggs Pledge
commitment for our colleague population to reflect the
communities in which we operate. The Board is ericouraged
by the strong progress being made in this regard.

The Board

Roisin Currie was appointed to the Board as an Executive
Director on 1February 2022 and took over as Chief Executive
at the end of the Company’s Annual General Meeting on 17 May
2022. Roger Whiteside stood down from the Board at that
point but remained available to support the transition process
until 5 January 2023. This process was expertly managed by
my predecessor as Chair, lan Durant, and it hasbeena
pleasure to see Roisin develop in the role of Chief Executive.
Roisin enjoys strong continuity in her executive team who

are alongside her driving delivery of the strategic plan.

As part of our ongoing plans to ensure smooth succession for
board roles Lynne Weedall, who joined the Board in May 2022,
became Chair of the Remuneration Committee on
1September 2022.

Following my appointment to the Board in August 2022 | took
on the role of Chair on1November following lan Durant’s
retirement. The Board had asked lan to stay in position longer
than the UK Corporate Governance Code expectsin order

to provide continuity of leadership as we addressed Chief
Executive succession. Under lan’s leadership Greggs has
enjoyed a period of outstanding performance, founded
onastrongstrategic plan, which | fully support. lanalso
championed significantimprovements in diversity and
gender balance at senior levels, alegacy for whichwe

are immensely grateful.

STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

Looking forward we are now preparing for the planned
retirement from the Board of Sandra Turner, Senior
Independent Director, and Helena Ganczakowski. In
anticipation of this we have announced the appointment of
Nigel Mills to the Board. Nigel will take on the role of Senior
Independent Director with effect from the Annual General
Meeting on 17 May 2023. The Nominations Committee has
commenced a process to recruit a further non-executive
director and we expect to report progress in the year ahead.

Further details of the Board's work are included in the
governance and committee sections of the annual report.

Dividend

At the time of the interim results in August 2022 the Board
declared aninterim ordinary dividend of 15.0 pence per share
{2021:15.0 pence). In fine with our progressive ordinary
dividend policy and our target for the ordinary dividend to be
twice covered by earnings, the Board intends to recommend
at the AGM a final dividend of 44.0 pence per share (2021:
42.0 pence), giving a total ordinary dividend for the year of
59.0 pence(2021: 57.0 pence).

Looking ahead

Greggsis a great business with a compelling value-driven
proposition and cash-generative business model. Despite
the current inflationary pressures, we have a clear strategy
and robust financial position underpinning our plans for
long-term growth. We remain confident in the long-term
potential of our business.

Matt Davies
Chair
7March 2023
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BUSINESS MODEL

WHAT WE DO

Manufacturing

We make great tasting, freshly prepared food that
customers can trust, in our own manufacturing centres
of excellence.

Logistics
We move products from our manufacturing sites to our
shops ourselves, helping to keep prices as low as possible.

Our people
We have more than 28,000 amazing colleagues, providing
our customers with the best experience every day.

Customer channels

With over 2,300 shops across the UK, delivery and
wholesale partnerships, and Click + Collect, we can serve
our customers wherever, whenever and however they
choose throughout the day.

Customer relationships

Our colleagues provide fantastic service that makes our
customers shop with us time and time again. The Greggs
App and CRM systems allow us to build long-term
connections with our customers and reward their loyalty.

WHAT MAKES US DIFFERENT

OUR STRATEGIC PILLARS
Great tasting, freshly First class
prepared food support teams
Best customer Competitive
experience supply chain
KEY DRIVERS OF GROWTH

Growing and developing the Greggs estate
Through new shop openings, relocations and the next generation of
shop refits, our ambition is to reach significantly more than 3,000 shops.

Developing our digital channels
Through our digital channels, including delivery and Click + Collect,
we are able to compete more effectively at all times of day.

Expanding our evening trade

Through extending our trading hours, exciting new additions to our menu
and leveraging our existing customer channels, we are able to compete
more effectively for food-on-the-go sales in the evening.

Broadening customer appeal and driving loyaity
Throughtimely, effective customer communication via our Greggs App,
website and CRM system, we can communicate with our customers,
drive loyalty and be a brand considered by more peaple when they need
food-on-the-go.

Investing in our supply chain and systems for a bigger business
We've transformed our supply chain and systems infrastructure to increase
capacity and grow our digital capabilities.

HOW WE ADD VALUE TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Customers

No.l

for Value on YouGov Brandindex 2022, within the
QSR, coffee shop and delivery services’.

Colleagues

77%

engagement score in our latest
colleague opinion survey.

Suppliers

93.5%

of invoices were paid to suppliers
within the terms agreed.

Shareholders

59.0p

paid in line with our progressive
dividend policy

Communities

£3.5m

of grants were awarded by the
Greggs Foundation.

PURPOSE QUALITY

CONVENIENCE

VALUE SERVICE

THE GREGGS PLEDGE

Find out more about what makes us different on pages 18 to 29 —)

*  Source- YouGov Brandlndex, 18+ UK Nat. Rep. n=24,000+(1st Jan - 31st Dec 22)
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MARKET REVIEW
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At Greggs, we continuously monitor the macro environment and consumer trends as they evolve. We do this to ensure we meet the needs of the
market and are able to effectively respond to both challenges and opportunities that arise now and in the future.

MACRO TRENDS

CLIMATE CHANGE

The planet is changing rapidly and so must businesses.
Understanding the impact of the escalating climate crisis
iskey.

Greggs response

Our Net Zero Taskforce challenges the climate impact of
every area of our operations and drives action to reduce it.
We aim to be Net Zero by 2040 - a decade earlier than the
UK Government's plan. Improved governance and reporting
across allindustries and sectors will continue to drive the
reduction of carbon emissions across society and assist

inthe transition to alow-carbon future.

Find out more inour TCFD report on pages 35 to 41

CONSUMER TRENDS

GEOPOLITICAL UNCERTAINTY
Global political tensions continue and Greggs must ensure
business security and continuity amidst these impacts.

Greggs response
Ongoing review and development of our enterprise risk
management (ERM) process to ensure business resilience.

INFLATION/COST OF LIVING
Mounting economic pressure and inflation is directly
impacting the market and our consumer base.

Greggs response

As avalue-led business, it is vital we are monitoring the
economic situation and finding ways to mitigate costs
to ensure we continue to support our customers and
communities with great tasting, affordable products.

DIETARY SHIFTS
Agrowing number of consumers, largely influenced by climate
pressures, are reducing the amount of meat in their diets.

Greggs response

Ourinsights team are constantly researching to understand
latest customer preferences. Meat reducingis a trend we
have been focusing on for several years, bringing our Greggs
vegan sausage roll to the market in 2019. We continue to
expand our meat-free options accordingly to meet this need
and aim to have a non-meat alternative available across
every part of ourrange.

HEALTHY EATING

Governments are combating health issues through policy
and educational programmes aimed at awareness of
healthier options.

Greggs response

We are working within our communities to educate children
on the benefits of healthy eating and provide healthier
choices in our shops. We provide clear information to help
people make informed choices about what they eat. Calorie
and nutritional information is available on the shelf, as well
as on our website and mobile App. Over the years, we've been
working hard to reformulate our products, like workingin line
with the government'’s 20% sugar reduction targets and
reducing the salt, calories and fat in our products.

Find out more on The Greggs Pledge commitments on pages 32 to 34

ECO-CONSCIOUS CONSUMERS

Concerns about plastic waste and environmental poliutionis
impacting customer preference for products deemed ‘green’
and low impact.

Greggs response

Since 2019, we have been working hard to cut over 350 tonnes
of single-use plastics from our operations, and we've been
on a mission to remove more ever since. By 2025, we want to
eliminate all unnecessary single-use plastic from our shops
and manufacturing sites. Our Eco-Shop provides atest bed
for future in-store sustainability initiatives aimed at reducing
environmental impact of our operations.

Greggs plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT

A YEAR OF GROWTH, AND
EXCITING PLANS AHEAD

Our purpose is to make great tasting freshly
prepared food available to everyone. We want to
be the food-on-the-go retailer that is accessible
to everyone, whoever and wherever they are, and
whatever the meal occasion. That means offering
the highest quality at the best possible price -
something Greggs does so well.

We have always been there for our customers and
- perhaps now, more than ever - they are relying
on us to offer great value during these tough
economic times.

I'm proud of what our teams have done
this year to deliver for them and want
to thank them for all their hard work,
effort and commitment.

Roisin Currie
Chief Executive

A year of growth

After two years of unprecedented disruption to trading
caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, we started 2022
relieved to see what appeared to be a return to more
normal conditions. We knew we would come back stronger
and better, having learned to cope with extraordinarily
challenging trading conditions and proved our resilience
through those tough years. g

However, we did not foresee the war in Ukraine, and the
significant inflationary pressures it would cause. So many
of our customers and colleagues have been confronted
with a cost-of-living squeeze.

Despite this, 2022 has been a year of strong growth for
Greggs. One year into our ambitious five-year plan to double
sales, our sales were up 23% on 2021. We opened arecord
number of new shops, and can already see the benefits of our
multi-channel approach to growth, with great progress made
in developing our digital offer, as discussed further below.

As everyindividual, household, and business grapples with
rising costs, we have worked hard to protect our reputation
for exceptional value, and this has been central to our
success. Customers come back to us again and again
because we offer great quality and great value. To maintain
that positioning, we have focused on driving efficiencies to
offset external cost pressures wherever possible and to
mitigate the need for price rises. We regularly monitor

our prices and our customer reputation for value to make
sure that we maintain this important competitive position.
In2022, Greggs retained its #1rank for Value within YouGov's
OSR, coffee shop and delivery services sector, a position it
has held since the index started in 2013.

Through the year, custamer numbers continued to increase
towards pre-pandemic levels. Our most loyal customers are
increasingly recognising the benefits of using the Greggs
App when they shop with us, including free products and the
convenience of Click + Collect.



In addition to the tough economic climate, another
challenge has been ongoing travel disruption which has
displaced customers from their usual routines. We have
successfully navigated this thanks to our diverse portfolio
of shops, which meant, as it did during the pandemic, that
we were able to serve customers in different locations -
many of those who were unable to make it to their
workplaca chose to visit a Greggs in their local high street
or nearby shopping centre instead.

People are at the heart of Greggs, and we continue to nurture
our friendly, welcoming culture. Our ambitious new shop
opening programme and extended opening hours have
required our teams to increase the focus onrecruitment. Ina
fullemployment economy, we have had to work creatively to
find the right people to fill these roles. For example, during
2022, we invested in our recruitment processes to improve
the candidate experience and give new joiners an easier
start to their journey with Greggs.

Financial results

Total sales grew to £1,513 million in 2022(2021: £1,230
million), a 23.0% increase on the level seen in 2021. Within
this, company-managed shop like-for-like sales were 17.8%
higher than the equivalent period in 2021.

Pre-tax profit for the year increased to £148.3 million{2021:
£145.6 million), reflecting strong sales growth in the face of
significant cost inflation and the removal of Government
pandemic support, as detailed further in the financial review,
onpages43to45.

Saying thank you

Our continued financial success depends on the amazing
service provided by the 28,400 colleagues who make,
transport, or sell our products. One of the things that makes
Greggs so special is our long tradition of sharing 10% of our
profits with our people. Our strong performance in 2022
means we will share £16.6 million with them.

Our strategic growth drivers

Our strong financial performance in 2022 was the result

of the continued delivery of our strategic growth plan:
growing and developing our estate, extending our offer

into the evening, maximising our use of digital services,
broadening customer appeal, and driving loyalty. These
objectives are underpinned by investment in our supply chain
and technology in preparation for being a bigger business.

Growing and developing the Greggs estate

We want our shops to be the best that they can be, with
better access, more space, and providing a brilliant
customer experience.

We opened a record 186 new shops{including 70 franchised
units)in 2022 and closed 39, growing the estate to 2,328
shops as at 31December 2022, 441 of which are franchised
shops operated by our partners, mainly in roadside locations.
We continued to expand our presence in retail parks, in
Central London and key transport hubs, with shops opening
in Leicester Square and Liverpool Street Station, as well as
Birmingham and Liverpool airports. As aresult, 1,600 new
shop team jobs were created during the year.

Our ambition is to have significantly more than 3,000 shops
across the UK, and we are expanding in new locations to
achieve this - setting up shops inside supermarkets, in travel
hubs like airports and railway stations, as well as in retail
parks and shopping centres. The versatility of our shop
format is one of our greatest strengths, operating in anything
from a kiosk to a full-service drive-thru unit.

We relocated 25 existing shops to better sitesin 2022,
allowing us toincrease coffee shop seating as well as expand
our food preparation space so we can meet the demand of
our home delivery and Click + Collect services. In addition,
we refurbished 73 existing company-managed shops and

13 franchised shops to our latest format.

STRATEGIC REPORT

186

New shops (including 70 franchised units)
opened in 2022

500

Shops open until 8pm, or beyond

DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

We are also reaping the benefits of maintaining strong
relationships. The trust that landlords place inus, backed

by our financial strength, is making it easier to find good sites
atareasonable price.

In 2023, we ptan to refurbish a further 150 company-
managed shops, relocate 40 shops to new, larger sites,
and open around 150 net new shops, including around 50
with franchise partners.

Evening trade

We want to be able to serve our customers wherever,
whenever, and however they choose. That's why we
extended the opening hours of 500 shops until 8pm or
beyond - this has given us the opportunity to compete for
food-on-the-go sales in the evening. The evening daypart

is now the strongest growing segment of the day, albeit from
arelatively low base -in 2022 our share of post-4pm visits
was only 1.2% (source: NPD Crest).

Inthe evening many of our existing favourites suchas
chicken goujons and pizza slices have proved popular,
including sharing boxes via our delivery service. We also
introduced warm versions of some of our core products, with
Hot Yurn Yums and salted caramel dipping sauce going viral

Greggs ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT CONTINUED

We are amuch-loved and trusted brand and have
been around for over 80 years, building a reputation
for offering exceptional value to people looking for
great tasting, high quality food and drink on-the-go,
with fast and friendly service.

PURPOSE

To make good, freshly prepared food

accessible to everyone.

QUALITY
We want our products to be
the best they canbe.

CONVENIENCE

We want to be able toserve
customers wherever, whenever
and however they choose.

VALUE
We offer great value in an extremely
competitive marketplace.

SERVICE

We provide customers with fast
and friendly service, fixingissues
without a fuss and rewarding them
for their loyalty.

THE GREGGS PLEDGE
Stronger, healthier communities.
Better business. Safer planet.

WHAT

on TikTok! We have expanded our range to include salad meal
boxes which can be eaten hot or cold - such as our vegan
sweet potato bhaji - and continue to grow our popular
vegan-friendly offering. Whether our customers follow a
vegan diet or not, we know many more people are choosing
to eat less meat for ethical, environmental or healthreasons,
and we are meeting that need.

We are able to offer home delivery from around 80% of our
late opening stores, which is extending our reach further
and will, in time, make more of our estate viable for evening
trading. During 2023, we plan to extend opening hours in
300 shops to 9pm and will trial 24-hour drive-thru shops.

Digital channels

Our multi-channel development strategy has allowed us to
increase our reach and build customer loyalty, while making
it easier for us to compete at all times of the day.

The Click+ Collect service onthe Greggs App allows a
customer to see our menu, personalise their order, and then
skip the queue to pick it up. Customisation started with our
breakfast menu; we have now built on that success by
introducing customisable pizzas and are now testing
whether we can offer the same with sandwich baguettes.
The convenience of Click + Collect is keyand our focusin
2023 will be on further improving the collection experience
for our customers.

Home delivery continues to be a growth area for the
business, allowing us to reach more people, including those
whoaren't onthe go, or who areinalocation where they can't
access us easily. Our partnership with Just Eat continued to
strengthen, and we worked together to optimise the menu,

MAKES US DIFFERENT?

and reduce complexity - for both our shops, and our
customers. Delivery remains a growing market; the delivery
share of overall ‘out of home market’ visits increased to
10.8% in 2022, up on the pre-pandemic level of 7.7% from
2019 and reflecting normalisation when compared to the
Covid peak of 16.2% in 2020 (source: NPD Crest). 1,270 of our
shops now offer a delivery service, and this accounts for
circa5% of sales overall. Consistent with the market trend,
our delivery volumes have been normalising as in-store
volumes recover post-Covid, but the longer-term
opportunity remains intact and we are committed to
developing this further in the year ahead, both by broadening
the reach of the service and by raising operational standards.
dening customer appeal and driving loyaity

We continue to be successful in further enhancing
perceptions of the Greggs brand and, for the 5th consecutive
year, ranked #1in YouGov's BrandIndex within the QSR,
coffee shop and delivery services sector, achieving our




highest ever score in 2022. Brand health has never been
higher; our marketing investment is increasing the number
of food-to-go shoppers considering the Greggs brand and
intending to purchase with us - now converting at arecord
level of 42%. Greggs has also seen its highest share of the
food-to-go market, now at 7.7% of visits{as measured by
NPD CREST, 04 2022).

We want Greggs to be the food-on-the-go brand of choice
for more people, more of the time. Effective customer
relationship management is crucial for this: our emails,
text messages, web and app personalisation, and targeted
social adverts help us to keep our customers informed and
engaged. We continue to investin and improve these as
part of our digital workstream. The Greggs App offers our
customers amuch more engaging and user-friendly
experience, as well as allowing them to earn stamps and
redeem rewards for their purchases. In 04 2022 we had

1. millionindividual active users of the app {up from

0.4 million in 04 2021)and customers scanned the Greggs
Appin 8.1% of company-managed shop transactions.

Investing in our supply chain and systems

for a bigger business

Underpinning the four strategic growth drivers is our ongoing
programme of investment in our supply chain and technology
to ensure we can grow our business efficiently. As we work
zowards our target of having significantly more than 3,000
shopsinthe UK, we are making significantinvestmentsin
manufacturing and logistics to increase capacity and reduce
the carbon footprint of our operations.

In 2022, we undertook preparatory works at Bailiol Park in
Newcastle ahead of adding a fourth line that will extend
production capacity of ouriconic savoury products in2023.
We also commissioned a new pizza manufacturing line at our

STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT

Enfield manufacturing site, tripling our national capacity

for this popular range. Our logistics team completed a
programme of route optimisation for our radial fleet and are
inthe process of switching our primary fleet to double-deck
trailers to allow us to move more goods per journey -
examples of projects which are helping to reduce our carbon
emissions in line with our Greggs Pledge commitment to
become a Net Zero business.

Looking forward we plan to commence the redevelopment
of our distribution centres in Birmingham and Amesbury
in2023in order to add additional logistics capacity to our
network by the end of 2024. Further investment in the
Midlands area will follow across 2024 to 2026 as we develop
anational distribution centre and amanufacturingand
frozen storage facility, which will support the capacity
requirements of our growth plans.

We have now completed the initial deployment of SAP across
our supply chain, a crucial part of building a centralised
business model. We continue to investin technology
transformation and improving our digital capabilities as

well as making sure our new channels are fully integrated
into our core systems.

We are also investing in making our processes simpler and
more streamlined, whether that's allowing our customers to
interact with us digitally, automating back-office activities,
orimproving the software for our tills.

Having good data allows us to make better decisions, and
the introduction of Microsoft Business Information tools
has made areal difference. Improved data visualisation

and availability across the organisation has made it easier to
analyse the numbers, understand trends, and glean insights.

Greggs ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT CONTINUED

Making the world abetter place

The Greggs Pledge

We are committed to our products tasting good, but what
sets us apart is our dedication to doing good. Our
sustainability strategy has three objectives: to help build
stronger, healthier communities; to make our planet safer;
and to be abetter business.

We launched The Greggs Pledge in 2021, setting out ten
areas to focus on to deliver these three objectives by the end
of 2025 and beyond. We are making good progress against
our targets and will publish a separate sustainability report
that provides a detailed progress report.

Stronger, healthier communities

As our customers and communities grapplé with rising
costs, our work to get food to those most inneedis as
important as ever.

There are now 789 Breakfast Clubs up and runningacross the
UK, serving afree breakfast to 49,000 primary school children
each school day. We plan to have 1,000 clubs open by 2025.

Redistributing unsold food - a key part of our food waste
reduction strategy - is helping thousands of families to make
ends meet. At the end of every day, we clear our shelves of
fresh food and aim to pass it on. In 2022, we donated 1,165
tonnes to local and national charities and sold 1,060 tonnes
of heavily discounted food to our customers via the Too Good
ToGo app.

We also use our expanding network of Greggs Outlet Shops
-acompanywide initiative originally set up in 1972 to support
socially deprived areas and help reduce food waste by
redistributing unsold food items. We have committed to have
50 Outlet Shops nationwide by 2025 and, in 2022, opened our
30th, in Newham, East London. A proportion of the profits
from each of these shops is given to local charities that are
working to tackle food insecurity.

Making our planet safer

A key highlight in 2022 was the setting of near-term science-
based emissions reduction targets based on a 1.5°C pathway,
which have been approved by the Science Based Targets
initiative. These targets will support our ambition to be Net
ZeroinScopes1and 2 by 2035, and in Scope 3 by 2040.

Achieving Net Zero in our operations will require a switch

to renewable energy sources (already, we only buy green
electricity and have begun the switch to biogas), and
investments in more efficient equipment. In July, we opened
our first Eco-Shop in Great Billing, Northampton. It is a brand
new and bespoke format where we test innovative solutions
and initiatives aimed at reducing the environmental impact
of our entire estate.

Better business

In May, we were accredited with the prestigious National
Equality Standard, anindustry recognised standard

for diversity and inclusion. There is more to do -and
Commitment 8 of The Greggs Pledge is dedicated to that -
but this evidences the good progress that we are making.

Iam proud of our reputation for bringing the best talent
through the business regardless of gender. We have
abalanced Board, and women make up half of the
management population of Greggs. Overall, 67% of our
total workforce is female.

Fundraising

Every year, our colleagues and customers show extraordinary
generosity and a genuine willingness to support people who
need help.



We donate around 1% of our profits to Greggs Foundation;

in 2022 this totalled £1.5 million, providing funding for Greggs
Breakfast Clubs, community organisations and individual
hardship grants. Greggs Foundation also receives funding
from a number of other sources, including dedicated Greggs
products, colleague fundraising and collection bexes in

our shops.

The war in Ukraine is a human tragedy that has shakenus all.
Throughout March and April our instore donation buckets
were turned over to collect money for the Disasters
Emergency Committee (DEC) Ukraine Humanitarian Appeal,
raising over £280,000. Most recently our shops have been
supporting the DEC Turkey-Syria Earthquake Appeal.

InNovember, we celebrated our ‘sweet sixteen'asa BBC
Children in Need partner, helping to improve the lives of
children and support our communities across the UK -
raising over £782,000 this year alone.

Looking forward

Focused on growth

Our four strategic growth drivers will remain akey focusin
the year ahead. While the widely publicised economic
challenges are not expected to go away, we are well
positioned to successfully navigate them and remain
confident in our ability to deliver continued success.
Although consumer incomes will remain under pressure,
Greggs continues to offer exceptional value to people looking
for great tasting, high-quality food and drink on-the-go.

Keeping our people at the heart of what we do

Our people are what makes our business successful, anditis
important that we provide a great place to work, where they
feelvalued, so that they choose to stay with us.

We take time to listen to the views of our colleagues. More
than 21,000 of our 28,400 colleagues took part in our

engagement survey in 2022, telling us what is working well
and what they think could be improved. With an overall
engagement score of 77%, we know our people are
motivated, and committed to Greggs. However there is
always room for improvement, and we will continue to stay
focused on our colleague engagement agenda.

Recruiting great new people to join our growing teamis
crucial too: our work in 2022 to upgrade our recruitment
platform means we are better positioned to attract new
colleagues in a tight labour market in the year ahead.

Greggs’ secret sauce

Since | joined Greggs in 2010, | have felt privileged to be part
of such an amazing team. As Chief Executive, and leader of
the team, | am more aware than ever of how our success is
the result of everyone’s contribution; our magic comes from
us exceeding the sum of aur parts.

Our culture and values are what makes Greggs, Greggs. As
we grow, we will keep these at the heart of every decision
we make. We talk about our unique culture being our ‘'secret
sauce’because when people enjoy coming into work, they
doabetter job, and that makes Greggs a stronger, better
business. Continuing to treat people well, and valuing
everyone’s contribution, are central to our success.

Becoming Chief Executive has reminded me of the
importance of offering the right support and guidance so
that everyone is empowered to do the best job possible: from
the newest member of the team, who might be in their first
ever job; to the shop manager who has just been promoted
and is still finding their feet; to the new production operative
who needs some encouragement.

My ambition is to ensure that we continue to nurture and
evolve that ‘secret sauce’ and enable everyone to be the best
version of themselves. For me, it's one of the most important
parts of my job.

STRATEGICREPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

Current trading and outlook

We have started 2023 well, with like-for-like sales in
company-managed shops growing by 18.8% in the first
nine weeks, in line with our expectations and reflecting the
impact of Omicron in the comparator period. Cost inflation
will continue to be a challenge in the year ahead, driven
particularly by pay awards and energy costs, but we are
confident that our outstanding value proposition will remain
compelling as customers look to make their money go
further. As such, we remain confident in the prospects for
the business in 2023.

We have an exciting, ambitious plan for the years ahead and,
by continuing to nurture what makes Greggs special, | believe
we are extremely well-placed to realise the opportunity to
become a significantly larger, multi-channel business.

Roisin Currie
Chief Executive
7March 2023
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OUR STRATEGY

ENSURING

GROWTH IN THE
YEARS AHEAD

OUR FUNDAMENTAL STRATEGIC PILLARS

Whilst Greggs has enjoyed tremendous success in recent years as
we continued to focus on becoming the customers’ favourite for
food-on-the-go, our journey is far from over. We have an ambitious
plan to double Greggs' sales and while the fundamental strategic
pillars of our business model have not changed, we are continually
learning and adapting. To reach our full potential in the years
ahead, our strategy is focused on four key drivers of growth and
underpinned by investment in our supply chain and systems.

1. Great tasting,
freshly prepared food

You cannot beat freshly baked,
freshly prepared food. With our
great flavours, responsibly-sourced
ingredients, consistent quality and

2. Best customer
experience

Fast and friendly service isa key

reason why customers choose Greggs.

Great service is not an easy thing to
deliver under pressure, and our shop

3. Competitive
supply chain

By owning our supply chain, we're able
to make our tasty products and
transport them to shops ourselves
-offering our customers great quality

&4, First class
support teams

We've invested heavily in leading-edge
systems. They equip our support
teams to provide the best service

to their colleagues and, ultimately,

outstanding value, our food-on-the-go teams do an amazing job. Through our food that delivers the best possible to our customers.
leads the way. Greggs App, we are able to build value for money.
long-lasting relationships with our
customers and reward their loyalty.
. L3
The Greggs Pledge: Dedicated to doing good
STRONGER, HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES SAFER PLANET BETTER BUSINESS

We pledge to play our part inimproving the nation’s diet
by helping to tackle obesity, providing free breakfasts

to schoolchildren, supporting families in hardship and

giving surplus food to those who need it most.

We pledge to become acarbon
neutral, zero waste business.

We pledge to increase the diversity of our workfarce
and to use our purchasing power responsibly, with

the aim of making things better in our supply chain.



OUR FOUR KEY DRIVERS OF GROWTH

STRATEGIC REPORT

DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

Growing and
developing the
Greggs estate

With a strong pipeline for new shop
openings alongside a significant
opportunity toimprove the quality of
our estate through relocations and the
next generation of shop refits, our
ambition is to reach significantly more
than 3,000 shops across the UK.

Read more on page 20

Expanding
our evening
trade

Through extending the trading hours
in many of our shops, delivering new
and exciting additions to our menu
and leveraging our existing customer
channels - both walk-in and digital
-we have a strategic opportunity to
effectively compete for food-on-the-
go salesinthe evening.

Read more on page 22

Developing
our digital
channels

Through our digital channels, we are
able to compete more effectively at all
times of day. Our delivery partnership
with Just Eat enables us to increase
the reach of our shops beyond
customers passing by and, in addition,
offers the added attraction of serving
multiple customersin one order with
higher-than-average basket size.
Click + Collect offers our customers
the ability to easily browse our menu,
skip the queues and personalise

their order.

Read more on page 24

Broadening
customer appeal
and driving loyalty

We continue to successfully reposition
the Greggs brand to become recognised
as acustomer favourite for food-on-
the-go. Through our brand activity,

and with timely and effective customer
communication via our Greggs App,
website and CRM systems, we have the
opportunity to effectively communicate
how Greggs can be abrand considered
by more people, inmore places and
atall times of day when they need
food-on-the-go.

Read more on page 26

Investing in our supply chain and systems for a bigger business

Underpinning our ambition to double sales revenues is significant investment in manufacturing and logistics to increase capacity. Building a centralised
business model has required a transformational investment in systems and, now that our SAP implementation across our supply chain has been successfully
completed, we continue to accelerate our digital transformation programme. With this new platformin place, we see significant opportunities to grow our
digital capabilities and enable more efficient operations which will see a programme of continuous improvement as the business grows.

Read more on page 28

Greggs ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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OUR S‘TIiATEGY INACTION
GROWING AND DEVELOPING THE GREGGS ESTATE

Our ambition is to reach significantly
more than 3,000 shops and we have a
strong pipeline of new shops opening.
We also have a significant opportunity to
improve the quality of our estate through
relocations and the next generation of
shop refits.

SETTIN



Greggs is a versatile brand. That means we can opena
fullrange of formats ina variety of locations, with our new
digital channels enabling us to extend the reach of each shop
evenfurther.

Qur missionis simple - we want Greggs to be accessible,
wherever, whenever and however our customers need us.
And by ensuring our shops are the best they can be, our
customers have a brilliant experience when they visit us.

As well as opening new shops, we want our existing shops to
be bigger and better which means improving all of our shops
through our next generation of shop refits and meoving some
shops to better locations.

New shop openings

When a customer is choosing where to shop for food-on-
the-go, we know that convenience is the key consideration.
We already have a strong presence in traditional towns and
suburban locations, so will continue to focus on increasing
our presence in locations where people travel, work and/or
access bycar.

2022 was arecord year as we accelerated our shop opening
programme - opening 147 net new shops and growing the
estate ta 2,328 shops. We have a strong pipeline and exciting
new locations in development for 2023.

We continued to grow our presence in Central London,
openinganumber of new shops in high footfall areas and
travel hubs, including our flagship shop at No. 1 Leicester
Square and at Liverpool Street Station. We launched our
new cafe format ‘Tasty by Greggs’ within the Primark stores
located on Oxford Street, London and in Birmingham.
Following a successful trial with Tesco in 2020, we rolled

out our partnership to a further nine shops. We cpened five
standalone drive-thru-shops. We also opened our Eco-Shop
at Great Billing, Northampton - a brand new and bespoke

format where we will test innovative solutions and initiatives
aimed at delivering real progress in reducing the
environmental impact of our operations. Successful new
ideas and technologies will then be rolled out across the
broader shop estate. We also celebrated the opening of our
30th Greggs Outlet shop - highlighting strong progress in our
commitment to open 50 Outlet shops by the end of 2025.

Bigger and better shops through refits
andrelocations

In addition to opening new shops and growing our estate, we
are focusing onimproving the quality of our existing shops
through the next generation of shop refits and relocations. In
2022 we continued to evolve and refine our newest design of
shop refits, maximising space and increasing our capabilities
infood preparation enabling us to realise the potential of
bothour delivery and Click + Collect digital channels, whilst
also offering the best experience for walk-in customers.

Based on this latest design we plan to move more shops to
larger, better premises, allowing us to add more coffee shop
seating and deliver multi-channel growth. We completed 25
re-sitesin 2022, with a strong pipeline as we move into 2023.

Increasing customer reach through our franchise
and wholesale partners

In2022, we welcomed SSP, Rontec, Asconaand Sodexo on
board, bringing our total to 16 franchise partners and 441
franchise locations.

Our partners play animportant role in providing access to
restricted locations such as motorway service areas, petrol
filling stations, educational establishments and smaller high
street convenience locations. We were proud to celebrate
our 400th shop opening with new franchise partner Rontec,
in Selby. We expect franchise shops to account for 20% of
our estate in the years ahead.

STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

In 2022, our longstanding partnership with Iceland hitan
11-year milestone. We extended our product range into the
sweet category to Iceland to include our Milk Chocolate and
Triple Chocolate Cookies. Our popular mini steak and mini
cheese rolls have become a permanent addition to our
range, creating great opportunity to maximise the category
during party events such as the Jubilee, Halloween and
Christmas. Our Vegan Festive Bake also launched into
Iceland for the first time in 2022, growing our festive
offering to the consumer.

We have an annual shop opening
target of 150 net new shops
including drive-thrus, travel

hubs and supermarkets, comprised
of 100 company-managed shops
and 50 franchised shops.

We will also focus on providing
bigger and better shops to serve
all channels, by targeting 40
relocations and 150 refits. As part
of our ongoing commitments set
outin The Greggs Pledge, we plan
to open more Greggs Outlet shops
and continue the roll out of our
Eco-Shop elements.

PLANS FOR 2023

Greggs plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 2 ]
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OUR STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED
EVENING TRADE

EVENING:
MORE TIME &
MORE CHOICES

We have a strategic opportunity to compete for
food-on-the-go sales in the evening and are
extending the trading hours in many of our shops,
adding new and exciting items to our menu and
leveraging all of our customer channels.



With over 500 shops trading until 8pm and beyond, we have
made excellent progress in extending opening hours across
our shop estate and built a strong foundation to kick start our
five-year evening growth plan.

We had fast growing evening sales in 2022 and have achieved )

this by adding very little complexity into our shops. We will
further explore our evening menu propaosition to meet
customer expectations for both walk-in and digital channels
- which we believe will make this opportunity even greater.

Our partnership with Just Eat

We launched our partnership with Just Eatin 2020 and,

since then, have rolled it out to over 1,270 shops nationwide.
Over 400 of our evening shops are available on Just Eat after
6pm and this is something we will continue to expand in 2023.
In 2022, we served over two million customers and fulfilled
over 7.3 milliondelivery orders.

Offering home delivery is key to accelerating our plans for
extended opening hours and we have big plans to further
expand delivery in the coming year, adding more locations
and more menu choices to strengthen our proposition at
every meal occasion.

STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT

Menu development

Inaddition to trialling new and exciting hot products that
could have day-long appeal, our existing range continues
to perform well in the evening daypart.

To build on this demand and make even more of our core
products appealing to the evening market, we now offer
anumber of our existing sweet treats with the option to
have them hot including Yum Yums, Brownies and Cookies,
served with a chocolate or salted caramel dipping pot.

Chicken Goujons and Bites and Pizza Sharing Boxes
alongside our single slice and meal deal offers are also
popular and in 2022 we added two new pizza choices

to the menu - Mexican Chicken and Pepperoni Hot Shot.

2 million

Customers served on Just Eat

ACCOUNTS

1.3
million

Delivery orders fulfilled

PLANS FOR 2023

We will further explore our evening menu proposition to meet
customer expectations for both walk-in and digital channels.
We expect evening to remain our strongest-growing daypart

in the year ahead and will continue to extend our trading hours
where there is an opportunity to do so. We will also trial 24-hour
opening at selected drive-thru locations.
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OURSTRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED
DIGITAL CHANNELS

Through our digital channels, we have the
strategic opportunity to compete more .
effectively at all times of the day. Our delivery
partnership enables us to increase the reach of
our shops beyond customers passing by, and
Click + Collect offers our customers the ability
to easily browse our menu, skip the queues and
ultimately personalise their order.

SNAPPING
UP TREATS:
IN MORE WAYS



When the pandemic hit in 2020, we rapidly accelerated
our muiti-channel development strategy to take Greggs
to our customers, wherever they were. Digital channels
offer the key oppartunity for Greggs to increase market
share by increasing menu choice, multi-channel reach
and customer loyalty.

We launched our partnership with Just Eat in January 2020
and delivery now accounts for aimost 5% of sales. Delivery
offers the added attraction of serving multiple customers
in one order, with average basket size three times that of
atypical walk-in purchase.

With delivery through Just Eat now available in 1,273 of our
shops nationwide, we are focused on further improving our
operational procedures to fulfil that demand and enhancing
our offer to ensure the best customer experience.

Enhancing our delivery offer for customers

1n 2022, we introduced a number of improvements to
enhance our presence on the Just Eat platform, ensuring the
customer journey and experience is the best it can be, such
asimproving the menu capability to ensure that it is as easy
to navigate as possible.

Through key promotions and exclusive deals, we were able

to enhance our offer to customers and build on our reputation
for great value, including ‘Cheeky Tuesday’ - 20% discount
when spending £15 across all dayparts on Tuesdays, and
promotions during key calendar events, such as the UEFA
Women'’s Euros and the Men's FIFA World Cup later in the year.

.

Click + Collect

Click + Collect is available through both the Greggs App and
website - enabling customers to easily browse our menu,
skip the queues and personalise their order. Click + Collect is
also encouraging customers to trade up, speeding up service
by removing payment at the till, and - by making to order -
has the potential to reduce waste too. We have worked hard
to build the capability that allows customers to earn and
redeem Greggs rewards against their purchases. In 2022,
we implemented key operational efficiencies to successfully
reduce the Click + Collect order window fromten to five
minutes to allow customers to collect their order more
quickly. We have harmoenised our Click + Collect range with
what’s on offer in our shops, meaning customers in certain
areas can now order their regional favourites. Another key
feature of our digital capability is the ability for customers to
access more information about each menu item which now
includes improved nutritional and allergen information to
help everyone to make informed choices.
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Made-to-order

Through our breakfast sandwich range, we've been offering
our customers the ability to customise their sandwich and
have it made-to-order for anumber of years. This has proved
hugely popularand offers an opportunity to roll this out across
additional products and dayparts. In 2022, we successfully
trialled and rolled out our made-to-order pizzas to all shops
through the Click + Collect menu. Customers can add up to
three toppingsincluding Mexican chicken, pepperoni, red
onions and jalapenos. Trials for made-to-order baguettes
are wellunderway and will continue into 2023.

1,273

Shops partnered with Just Eat
at the end of 2022

PLANS FOR 2023

Where opportunity allows through new shop openings, we

will continue to extend our delivery partnership with Just Eat,
helping us to fully maximise the at-home and evening trade
opportunities. Product development, in particular hot food
options across all mealtimes, will ensure that we continue to
provide the types of food-on-the-go that our customers want,
no matter what time of the day they choose to shop with us.
We will further develop our ‘made-to-order’ range and continue
our customised baguette trial. We will further enhance the
collection experience to make it as convenient as possible

for our Click + Collect customers.
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OUR STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED
BROADENING CUSTOMER APPEAL AND DRIVING LOYALTY

THE GREG
EFFECT:
MEANING MORE
T0 MORE PEOPLE

We have successfully repositioned the Greggs brand
inrecent years to become recognised as a customer
favourite for food-on-the-go. Through timely and
effective customer communication via our new
Greggs App, website and CRM system, we have a
strategic opportunity to effectively communicate
how Greggs can be a brand considered by more
people, in more places and at all times of the day
when they need food-on-the-go.




You're never far away from a Greggs

As a brand we're there to serve customers throughout the
day providing freshly prepared food that delivers great value,
fills you up and keeps you going through the day. So, whether
it's pre-ordering your early morning coffee via Click + Collect,
grabbing your lunch on the go, or having pizza delivered to
share in the evening - Greggs satisfaction is never far away,
whenever or wherever you fancy.

In 2022, we continued to develop our investment strategy
across brand and digital channels as well as in our marketing
capability, to ensure that we reached all food-to-go
consumers across the UK throughout the day - continually
promoting the products and services available in our shops
and online.

At aheadline level, we focused on making more people aware
of everything that Greggs has to offer, whilst building out

our digital and data driven products to better understand

our customers’needs, and to further reward those who shop
with us more often.

By the end of the year, brand health had never been stronger
with record numbers of UK consumers considering Greggs
as afood-to-go destination. More and more customers
downloaded and started to use the Greggs App, and our
brand partnership strategy - working together with leading
UK brands such as 02 - allowed them to reward and say
thank-you to more of their colleagues and customers

with Greggs products.

So, as well as being able to serve more customers more
oftenin our shops, we now have more channels than ever
through which to communicate all of the benefits that
Greggs delivers as a food-on-the-go destination, and
encourage more customers to shop with us, more often.

Building our digital capability and rewarding loyalty
We continued to develop the Next Generation Greggs
workstreams, bringing more of our digital and data
capabilities in-house, supported by a number of
best-in-class vendors and partners.

To allow mare people to give the Gift of Greggs we continued
to evolve the re-launch of greggs.co.uk with a brand-new
gifting journey that provided a better shopping experience
for customers, whilst providing enhanced capability to offer
avariety of ways to buy and personalise Greggs Gift Cards.

We also embarked on a journey to bring our other customer-
facing websites inline with greggs.co.uk, including our
corporate, recruitment and Greggs Foundation domains -
expanding our digital infrastructure and content management
systems, and establishing a library of our design components
that aligns all aspects of our digital estate.

Following the successful launch of the new Greggs Appin
2021, we've delivered a number of usability improvements
based on feedback from our customers, and exciting new
features, including the integration of delivery and gifting
into the App experience.

Not only did this benefit existing users of the App, but also
helped generate a111% increase in downloads year-on-year.
In turn, this has allowed us to significantly increase our CRM
base across channel, meaning - aligned to our brand strategy
-we can send more personalised and targeted comms to
customers as and when the time is right based on their
preferences, as well as being able to surprise and delight
customers as an extra way to say thank you!
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One of the biggest developments in the Greggs App this

year has been for our colleagues, who can now enjoy their
colleague discount and earn rewards in one simple scan.
Launchedin December 2022, we saw almost 40% of
colleagues switch over to using the App in the first five weeks.

Aligned to our five-year plan, we'll
continue to evolve our brand and
digital strategies in 2023 - with
increased media investment across
channels and new and exciting
brand partnerships and activations,
alongside building out and
enhancing our digital and

data capabilities.

As we continue to make Greggs
mean more to more people, we'll
have more than ever to talk about
throughout the day, ensuring we're
relevant from your first to last
meal of the day, and everything

in between!

As we continue to develop our
loyalty proposition, we'll deliver
more ways to reward our
customers, meaning the more
often they shop with us, the more
value they can enjoy.

PLANS FOR 2023

Gregas plc AnnualReportandAccounts 2022 27



28

OUR STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED
INVESTING IN OUR SUPPLY CHAIN AND SYSTEMS FOR A BIGGER BUSINESS

Over recent years, we have
transformed our supply chain and
systems infrastructure to create a
centralised food-on-the-go business
model. Our ambition to double sales
revenues will require significant
investment in manufacturing and
logistics to increase capacity.

INVESTING
MORE FOR
SUCCESS



We've made better use of space and invested heavily

in centralised automation, delivering a step-chang=
improvement in the quality of our products and our supply
chain cost structure. This has also aliowed us to create
atemplate on which we can build additional capacity

and continue to grow as a business to fulfil our ambition
todouble sales revenues.

Completion of our major process and systems
investment programme

We successfully completed the roll out of our multi-phase
SAP programme that has touched all of our organisation,
with our last supply chain sites at Kettering and Seaham
{lceland packing operation}going live at the start of 2022.
Continued strong financial delivery demonstrates the
benefits of the recent automation activities in our
manufacturing operations.

Increased capacity at Balliol Park delivering strongly
Our debottlenecking works, designed to increase savoury
capacity on Line 1at Balliol Park by 50%, are now delivering
strongly and have been critical to support high savoury
demand, particularly during quarter four. We are making
good progress with the development of an additional savoury
line which is on track to start up in the latter part of 2023,
furtherincreasing our capacity for volume and growth.

New automated pizza line at Enfield
manufacturing site

We successfully commissioned our new automated pizza
line at our Enfield manufacturing site - trebling aur pizza
production volume with capacity to make up to 1.5 million
additional pizzas each week.

Improved business reporting with Microsoft Power Bl
Theroll out of new improved business reporting with
Microsoft Power Bl has continued as we enabled further
areas beyond retail to have access to more powerful
business data to drive decision making.

Our franchise partners have also benefited from the
consolidation of all reporting, communications and content
being delivered through a new modern portal to simplify their
activities and give a consistent experience in a safe and
secure way.

Continuous improvement to shop systems,
benefitting our colleagues and customers

In retail, we have continued to evolve our in-shop solutions
to further improve efficiency for our colleagues with the
automation of many back-office activities, building on the
successful launch of our digital production system. Aswe
become a multi-channel business, we continue to ook to
maintain simplicity for our shop team operations.
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We have also begun the replacement programme for our
legacy tills to enable the roll out of our new till software in
2023. This will enable a simpler and easier way for our shop
teams to transact, but also enable a more efficient customer
journey at the till and a consistent experience digitally. In
parallel, we have continued to refine ourin-shop production
systems including customisation and menu management.

Improved recruitment solution

In November, we launched a new Greggs Career website

and recruitment system that will help us successfully tackle
the issues present in the wider jobs market. All parts of the
recruitment process are now digitised with tabletsin all
shops, enabling our teams to onboard successful candidates
quickly. We have subsequently rolled out the solution to all
supply sites and Greggs House recruitment, enabling a
consistent approach business-wide.

PLANS FOR 2023

2023 will be another big year for our supply
chain as we invest in further increasing
capacity and productivity by introducing an
additional production line at our Balliol Park
site, and enhanced logistics to support
product distribution in the South through

investment in our Birmingham and Amesbury

Radial distribution centres. Securing
additional national distribution capacity

in the Midlands for ambient, chilled and
frozen products will also be a key strategic
investment focus.

Digital will continue to be a key focus

for our teams in 2023 as we continue on
our journey to transform our existing till
platform and software, and introduce
anew workforce management solution.
We will continue to streamline and digitise
our operational activities in shops to
drive further efficiencies. All colleagues
will benefit from an improved colleague
engagement solution that will modernise
the way we communicate and share
information.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

We use eight key financial performance indicators to monitor the

performance of the Group against our strategy. The definition of these
KPIs and our performance over the last five years is detailed below.

Total sales growth

Like-for-like sales growth

Results for 2020 were significantly impacted by the closure of the Greggs shop estate for most
of the second quarter as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.

All of the non-GAAP measures (other than like-for-like sales growth) detailed can be calculated
from the GAAP measures included in the annual accounts. Commentary on these KPlIs is contained

within the financial review:

Profit before tax (PBT)(€m)

Diluted earnings per share (pence)

23.0%

17.8%

£148.3m

N75p

What this means
The percentage year-on-year change
intotal sales for the Group.

What this means
Compares year-on-year cash salesin our
company-managed shops, excluding any

shops which opened, relocated or closed inthe
current or prior year. Like-for-like sales growth

includes selling price inflation and excludes
VAT. The impact of shop refurbishment is
included inlike-for-like sales growth. The
calculation of these figures can be found on
page 157.

What this means
Reflects the performance of the Group
before taxationimpacts.

What this means

Calculated by dividing profit attributable
to shareholders by the average number
of dilutive outstanding shares.

Why this is important
This is a measure of the absolute growth
of the Group.

Why this is important

This measure provides valuable additional
information on the underlying sales
performance of the business and is

akey measureused internally.

Why this is important
This is ameasure of the absolute performance
of the Group.

Why this is important
This measure reflects the underlying earnings
for each share inthe Company.




Net cash inflow from operating activities
after lease payments (Em)

Return on capital employed (ROCE)

Capital expenditure (Em)
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Liquidity (Em)

£198.8m

21.0%

£110.8m

£261.6m

What this means

Operating profit adjusted for the impact of
non-cash items, working capital movements
and repayment of the principal on lease
liabilities. The calculation of these figures
canbe found on page 157.

What this means

Calculated by dividing profit before tax by the
average total assets less current liabilities
for the year. The calculation of these figures
can be found on page 157. The figure for 2018
is calculated on a pre-IFRS 16 basis.

What this means
The total amountincurred in the year
oninvestmentin fixed assets.

What this means

This is calculated as cash and cash
equivalents plus undrawn committed
facilities, taking into account required
minimum liquidity covenants.

Why this is important

This reffects the cash-generative nature of
our business, used to fund our strategic
investment programme and to support the
distribution of dividends.

Why this is important

Thisisameasure of the the return generated on
capital invested by the Group and provides a
quide to how efficiently we are generating profit
with the assets used in the business.

Why this is important
Thisreflects the ongoing investment

in maintaining and growing the business
overtime.

Why this is important

This measure provides useful information
onthe Group's net financial position and
available facilities.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

THE GREGGS

In February 2021, we launched The Greggs
Pledge which declared ten things that we are
doing to help make the world a better place
by the end of 2025, and beyond.

STRONGER, HEALTHIER
COMMUNITIES

PLEDGE

We have always been committed to doing the right thing,

but we wanted to be more specific about how we channel our
efforts and resources into doing good. We reflected on what
we could do to have the most positive impact on the world
around us, and chose to dedicate our efforts to three areas:

SAFER PLANET

communities, the planet and our approach to business.

We have set ourselves ten stretching targets to be achieved
by the end of 2025. Each of our pledges aligns with at least
one of the UN Sustainable Development Goals (SOGs).

BETTER BUSINESS

We pledge to provide free breakfasts to
schoolchildren, give surplus food to those
most in need and play our part inimproving the
nation’s diet by helping to tackle obesity.

1. Growing Greggs Breakfast Clubs: By the end of 2025,
we will support 1,000 school Breakfast Clubs providing
some 70,000 meals each school day.

2. Putting an end to food waste: By the end of 2025, we
will create 25% less food waste than in 2018 and will
continue to work towards 100% of surplus food going
to those most in need.

3. Supporting our communities: By the end of 2025, we will
have 50 Greggs Outlet shops providing affordable food in
areas of social deprivation, with a share of profits given
to local community organisations.

4. Helping our customers make healthier choices:

By the end of 2025, 30% of the items on our shelves
will be healthier choices, and we will attract customers
through education and promotions.

We pledge to become a carbon-neutral,
zero waste business.

5. Goingcarbon neutral: By the end of 2025, we will be
on our way to achieving carbon neutrality by using 100%
renewable energy across all of our operations.

6. Building the shops of the future: By the end of 2025,
25% of our shops will feature elements from our
Eco-Shop ‘shop of the future’ design.

7. Usingless packaging: By the end of 2025, we will use
25% less packaging, by weight{as a % of sales), thanin
2018 and any remaining packaging will be made from
material that is more easily recycled.

We pledge to increase the diversity of our workforce, .
and to use our purchasing power responsibly, with
the aim of making things better in our supply chain.

8. Embracingdiversity: By the end of 2025, our
workforce will reflect the communities we serve.

9. Sourcing sustainably: By the end of 2025, we will have
arobust, responsible sourcing strategy in place and will
report annually on progress towards our targets.

10. Protecting animal welfare: By the end of 2025, we
will secure and maintain Tier 1in the BBFAW Animal
Welfare standard.
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OUR PROGRESS SO FAR

IN 2022...
789 Greggs Breakfast Clubs We reduced the amount of We opened our 30th Outlet shop.”  32% of our range in 2022 were ‘Healthier Following on from our Scope 3
fed 49,000 children every food waste we created in our Choice’products. 34% of all new products analysis, we completed our Supplier
school day. manufacturing operations by a we created were ‘Healthier Choice’ Engagement Plan. We have set
further10% and increased food products. near-term science-based emissions
redistribution by a further 10%. reduction targets which have been
approved by the Science Based
Targets initiative.
We opened our first Eco- We have updated the design We achieved the National We published our Deforestation Policy, We ensured all chicken stocking
Shop and more than 250 of all own brand packaging Equality Standard. mapped supplier compliance and plan to densities are no more than 38kg/m2.
(10.7%) of our shops have to feature an On Pack Recycling be deforestation-free by 2025.
Eco-Shop elements. Label to make recycling
communications easier to
understand.” We created a
road-map to move all of our
own brand packaging into
‘recyclable criteria’.
*  Weopened our 30th Qutlet shop in December 2022. Unfortunately, due toa Ci yf Order, we had toclose istil P that month leaving us with 29 at the end of the year
** Packaging featuring an On Pack Recycling Label was rolled out to shops from early 2023, once we worked through existing back stock t id creating any ingwaste
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

PLANS FOR 2023

BY THE END OF 2023..

We will have 850 Breakfast
Clubs, feeding 52,000
children every school day.

400 shops(17%
of our estate) will
feature Eco-Shop
elements.

We will reduce the amount We wilt have 38 Greggs
of food waste w= create in our Outlet shops.
manufacturing operations by a

further 10% andincrease food

redistribution by a further 10%.

All of our own brand packaging We will report our Ethnicity Pay
will be more easily recycled. Gap’and provide enhanced
support for colleagues froman
ethnic minority background
to progress their career.

We will maintain our ranging
principles to ensure 30% of
our range is ‘Healthier Choices'’.

We will complete the mapping of
soyin animal feed to determine
sustainability status.

At least' 98% of our electricity
usage will come from renewable
sources and 30% of the gas we use
across our operations will be from
renewable sources.

We will further improve our chicken
welfare standards, with 50% at less
than or equal to 30kg/m2and the
remainder at fess than or equal to
38kg/m2. All pigs will be free from
sow stalls.**

.

** Withthe

Intir.e with our business reporting schedule and to be included in our 2023 annual report, published April 2024

of pepp:

tall free opti tcurrently



TASK FORCE ON
CLIMATE-RELATED
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

Introduction

The Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
{TCFD)and other climate-related disclosures made in this
TCFDreport form part of the Company’'s annual report
and accounts for the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022

and are consistent with the TCFD recommendations and
recommended disclosures. The following pages show our
activity to date and our plans and expectations for the future,
asrequired under Listing Rule 9.8.6(8)R.

There are two TCFD recommendations where we are

working to became fully compliant. These are:

- Therecommendation underthe Strategy pillar to describe
theresilience of our strategy, taking into consideration
different climate-related scenarios, includinga 2°C or
lower scenario; and

- Therecommendation under the Metrics and Targets pillar
to disclose Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions (GHG)and
therelated risks.

Our activity in these areas and progress towards full
compliance is explained in further detail in the relevant
sections of this report.

Working with an external specialist climate consultancy,

we have undertaken an extensive, Company-wide process
aimed atunderstanding the key risks and impacts of climate
change on our business. The project involved interviews with
senior management across the business, to determine how
different business areas are likely to be impacted by climate
change. We also undertook a physical risk assessment, the
details of which can be found below. to understand how climate
impacts, such as coastal flooding, could impact our operations.

As noted later in this report, work continues in 2023 when we
will be carrying out scenario analysis which will explore in
further detail the climate-related risks and opportunities and
the associated timeframes. This report has been drafted to
take account of the findings from the project so far; we expect
our TCFDdisclosures to evolve and to be able to report further
progress and more detail in our 2023 TCFDreport as we report
on the conclusions reached in our scenario analysis.
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Greggs understands the importance of
climate change and that we must reduce
our impact and mitigate against climate
risk. We believe thatimproved
governance and reporting across all
industries and sectors will continue to
drive the reduction of carbon emissions
across society and assist in the
transition to a low-carbon future.

During 2022, we have set near-term science-based

emissions reduction targets based on a 1.5°C pathway

which have been approved by the Science Based Targets

initiative {SBTi). These targets are:

- Toreduce absolute Scope 1and 2 GHG emissions 46.2%
by 2030 from a 2019 base year; and

- Toreduce absolute Scope 3 GHG emissions from
purchased goods and services 46.2% within the same
timeframe.

We reported in 2021 that we had modelled our Scope 3
emissions and in 2022 we have used this modelling to
initiate a supplier engagement programme, initially
focusing on the suppliers of our most carbon-intensive
ingredients. We expect this programme to drive significant
improvements across our Scope 3 portfolio in the coming
years as we work with our value chain to limit the impact

of climate change on our operations as well as the impact
of our operations on the climate.
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Whilst we have made a lot of progress on our TCFD journeyin
2022, we will continue to look at more granular assessments
in 2023, understanding our supply chain alongside our own
operations. We continue to work closely with advisers to
better understand the climate risks and opportunities for
Greggs and to ensure we build robust governance practices
and pracesses. Greggs has clear ambitions as part of The
Greggs Pledge to be a net zero business by 2040 and to
actively support the British Retail Consortium’s (BRC's)
Climate Action Roadmap.

Governance

Board oversight of climate-related risks

and opportunities

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing climate-
related risks and opportunities - our approach to climate

changeis governed at the highest level within our organisation.

The Board has received specific briefings and updates on
progress during the year on climate change matters,
including the results from our Scope 3 modelling, the
development of our science-based targets and our short-
term net zero targets and actions. To further support the
Board, and our wider senior management teams, we have
presented a ‘climate reality check’ education piece to provide
abetter understanding of the potential long-termimpacts of

climate change across arange of temperature rise scenarios.

We will continue to appraise climate risks and opportunities
with our leadership team including briefing new Directors to
ensure ongoing Board-level climate knowledge and support
for our transition approach.

The Board will be receiving the results of our scenario
analysis and detailed climate-related risk identification
project in the coming months. This will support the
development of our long-term climate adaptation and
mitigation plans.

Manag t'srolein ing and managing
climate-related risks and opportunities

Our Chief Executive is ultimately responsible for our
sustainability strategy, whichincludes climate-related
risks and opportunities. Strategic progress against relevant
targets and commitments is reported to the Boardona
quarterly basis.

Our Sustainability Committee is responsible for approving
options for the delivery of our strategy. The membership
of this committee includes all Operating Board members
and is supported by the Head of Sustainability, the wider
sustainability team and relevant subject matter

experts from across the organisation.

Our Net Zero steering group is responsible for identifying and
proposing relevant actions to reduce our carbon emissions
to the Sustainability Committee. Once proposals are agreed
these are formally included in business plans as well asin the
personal objectives of relevant senior managers.

In2022, we have created a TCFD working group to assistin
developing our TCFD reporting detail as well as facilitating
analysis of climate-related risks and opportunities. This
group has worked alongside external experts to assess
material physical and transition risks related to our business
model. This project is ongoing and results are due to be
presented to the Board early this year. These results will be
used to inform our transition plan and risk strategy.

Strategy

Climate-related risks and opportunities

and theirimpact

We continue to develop our detailed understanding of
material climate-related risks and opportunities, which fall
into two categories - physical and transition.

In the risk management section on page 48 we note that we
consider climate change to be an emerging risk for Greggs,
since we do not believe that it constitutes a principal risk to the
business within the time horizon of our current strategic plan.

Providing more meat-free choices
for our customers

A growing number of consumers, largely influenced by climate pressures, are
reducing meat in their diets and we are expanding our product mix accordingly
to meet this need. We had a huge hit with our Vegan Sausage Roll in 2018 and our
Vegan Steak Bake in 2020.

Building on these success stories, we tested a whole range of vegan alternatives
in 2021, all of which were met with enthusiasm by our customers, including the
Vegan Sausage, Bean and CheeZe Melt, Vegan Festive Bake, Vegan Bacon
Breakfast Roll, Vegan Sausage Breakfast Roll and Vegan Ham and CheeZe
Baguette, which was crowned ‘Best Vegan Sandwich’ at the 2021 PETA Vegan
Food Awards. [n 2022, we continued to trial and add vegan options to our menu
in key categories, including: Sweet Potato Bhaji and Rice salad box and our
heat-to-eat Vegan Southern Fried Chicken-Free Baguette.



Inthis context we consider that a short-term horizon covers
the period to 2025, amedium-term horizon is the period from
2026 t0 2030 and along-term one from 2031onwards.

Supplier engagement -
working tegether to
achieve Net Zero

Our Scope 3 modelling in 2021 revealed that more

than 80% of our overall carbon footprint occurs

in our value chain, where we have influence but no
direct control. To drive reductions to this, we need
to make the most of that influence.

In2022, we invited a group of our top suppliers
toaNet Zero workshop at our Newcastle
headquarters. These suppliers were either

our largest by volume or represented the most
carbon-intensive sectors - particutarly meat and
dairy. The products that we buy from these
suppliers account for more than half of our total
carbon footprint. All the suppliers at the workshop
have agreed to collaborate on reducing carbon
emissions, with over three-quarters planning to
set science-based targets, and 28% committing
tobe Net Zero.

We are now upgrading our procurement system
toimprove transparency in respect of the carbon
impact of the goods we buy, which will allow
carbon to be used as one of the criteriato select
our ingredients, alongside quality and price.

In 2022 our climate advisers conducted 24 extensive
interviews with senior management colleagues to highlight
overarching climate-related risks and help identify which
of these would be considered material to Greggs. These
identified risks will be tested via various scenarios in early
2023 so that we can identify the relevant adaptation/
mitigation strategies required for inclusion in our transition
plan. Further to our scenario analysis, in 2023, and annually
thereafter, we willundertake a remodelling of our Scope 3
emissions to ensure that our reduction strategy continues
to be appropriately focused. The output from this exercise
will be included in our 2023 TCFD report.

Ahead of the detailed output from our scenario analysis

project, we have identified the following transition risks and

opportunities that could potentially have a material financial
impact upon the Group:

- Government Policy Development - for example, carbon
tax, meat tax or ban on sale of new petrol and diesel
vehicles by 2030{short to medium-termrisk);

- Increasing pressures of decarbonisation on the supply
chain may impact product quality (medium to long-term
risk); and

- Impact of growth plans on emissions reduction strategies
(medium to long-term risk).

Government Policy Development

The ongoing development and growth of our vegan product
range continues to mitigate risks relating to the potential
introduction of carbon/meat taxes and any consequent
cost increases throughout our supply chain. This provides
increasing opportunities to maintain our competitive
position as consumer preferences change. In 2022, we have
reviewed the potential for carbon labelling as a method of
changing consumer behaviours and we are looking to trial
thisin 2023.
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In anticipation of the ban on petrol and diesel vehicles from
2030, our procurement, fleet and logistics teams continue to
monitor the availability of technology which would provide
commercially suitable alternatives for our logistics fleet.

We are inthe process of migrating our company car fleet to
hybrid by ensuring that all new cars are hybrid and we are
now beginning the next phase which willmove the fleet to
fully electric. We have also successfully trialled fully electric
vehicles for our fleet of small vans and will continue to
develop this fleet in 2023. In addition, we have reviewed and
researched alternative fuels for our existinglogistics fleet
and, in 2023, plan to further assess the potential of hydrogen
asafuture aiternative fuel source.

Increasing pressures of decarbonisation on the supply
chain may impact product quality

Through our supplier engagement process we have
identified suppliers of high carbon impact ingredients and
we are working in partnership with these suppliers to drive
carbon reduction through the value chain. Further to this, our
supplier management approach allows us to have an ongoing
dialogue on reduction plans which allows early identification
of risks and opportunities.

Double-deck trailers

In 2021, we trialled and purchased our first double-deck
trailers and were so impressed with the results that we
bought nine more in 2022. We use trailers on our
articulated vehicles to transport product across the
country and the double-deck version allows us to carry
56% more goods per load, meaning we need to make
fewer journeys. This reduces our use of fuel and,
consequently, has a positive impact on our Scope 1
footprint. By the end of 012023, we will have moved our
entire primary fleet to double-deck trailers.
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Eco-Shop

In July 2022, we opened our Eco-Shop, a brand

new and bespoke format where Greggs will test
innovative solutions and initiatives aimed at
delivering real progress in reducing the
environmental impact of the Company's operations.
Successful new ideas and technologies will then

be rolled out across the broader shop estate.

The launch forms part of The Greggs Pledge, the
Company's sustainability plan, which sets out ten
commitments to help make the world a better place
by 2025. Our sixth pledge is ‘Building the shops o7 the
future’, and we met our 2022 commitment to open
the first Eco-Shop and have 250 of Greggs’ shops
featuring elements from this ‘shop of the future”
format by the end of the year. The Eco-Shop
initiatives being trialled this year include recyclable
flooring, cistern-less and air-assisted toilets,
eco-ovens, heat pump air curtains and solar control
glass. Allinitiatives are focused on waste management,
water reduction or overall energy reduction.

Longer term, we have set a target for a quarter of its
shop estate to feature Eco-Shop elements and, with
the proposed initiatives, will continue to reduce both
energy use and the carbon footprint across its shops
every year, driving us further towards our Net Zaro
carbon objective.

Our recent physical risk assessment has givenus a
high-level indication of the risks across our global supply
base and in 2023 we will review this at a more granular level
so that we can ensure access to alternative supply where
risks are apparent.

Impact of growth plans on emissions reduction

We have committed to an absolute reduction pathway and
have developed a Scope 1and 2 reduction strategy that aims
to tackle emissions at arate designed to offset growth as
well as reducing intensity. As most of our emissions are
within Scope 3 it will be important that we collaborate with
our suppliers to take the same approach. The ongoing
development of our vegan product range and our ability to
adapt quickly to consumer preferences is also expected to
help mitigate the impact of our growth plans on our carbon
reduction pathway.

As noted above, as these risks are considered to be emerging
at this point in time, the financial impact of these has not
been considered as part of our current strategic planand
forecasts. As part of our continual risk assessment, we will
monitor these risks and disclose the financial impact if they
become principal risks in the future {if material).

Physical risk assessment

We are undertaking a two-phase physical risk assessment.
Aninitial assessment has been undertaken of our key UK
locations inrespect of specific physical climate hazards,
such as sea-level rise, coastal flooding and extreme heat,
over the medium to long-term time horizon. Moving forward,
this approach will help us to minimise risks from the outset
and implement adaptation and resilience measures as
appropriate. To further our understanding, we willembark on
amore granular assessment of relevant locations in 2023
including key supplier locations and will report further details
inour 2023 TCFDreport.

Scenarios analysis: in progress

We have begun our scenario analysis project with physical
risk assessments completed in 2022. Further activity on
transition risks will be completed in early 2023 and these
will be used to inform our long-term transition plan.

In early 2023, we will carry out the climate scenario planning
exercise using several plausible scenarios that are consistent
with a 2°C or lower pathway. This exercise will help us better
understand the impacts on our business, strategy and
financial planning and the associated timeframes. We will
report further details on the outcome of this scenario planning
andresultingactions in our 2023 TCFD report.

Resilience

Although our formal scenario analysis project is ongoing,
these issues are being raised and discussed at the highest
levels of the organisation. For example, when examining
the results of our physical climate risk assessment, the
outcomes have pointed to climate risks in certain parts

of the world where some of our suppliers are based, such
asIndonesia, Thailand and Brazil. As a consequence of this,
we will continue to engage with suppliers in these areas to
understand their adaptation/mitigation plans.

We have undertaken a climate materiality assessment exercise
which has provided a foundation for building transition
scenarios. We will engage with our suppliers to collect physical
climate risk data for further assessment in 2023.

We will also analyse potential financial impacts related to
climate scenarios to inform strategic resilience planning
across our value chain.

The Transition Plan Taskforce is expected to publish guidance
in 2023 on how to develop credible and robust climate transition
plans and we will ensure our transition plan is drafted in
accordance with the requirements of the Taskforce. We will
also continue to monitor the development of the International
Sustainability Standards Board proposed disclosure standards.



Risk management

Identifying and ing climate-related risks

We have an established risk process for the whole business,
as described in the risk management section on pages 46 to
53. The process for identifying, assessing and managing
climate-related risks is part of this process. In 2022, we
engaged external experts to support identification and
assessment of climate-related risks. As noted above, this
processincluded direct engagement with our senior
leadership team and in 2023 we will formally integrate
detailed climate risks and opportunities into our Enterprise
Risk Management(ERM) process.

Managing climate-related risks

Climate-related risk evaluation forms part of our Risk
Committee activity and is now included as a standing agenda
item. The current TCFD project will help in prioritising the
management of climate-related risks and, following the
scenario analysis process described above, identified
impacts will be integrated into our risk framewark.

Integration of climate-related risks into overall

risk management

We treat our climate-related risks in the same way as all
other risks and assess them in line with our ERM framework.
We have continued to assess climate change as an emerging
risk(to be included as a principal risk where appropriate). The
principal climate-related risks and opportunities will be
captured in ourrisk register and integrated into the ERM
process for continuous management and risk reduction.

Metrics and targets

Metrics used to assess climate-related risks and
opportunities

We have reported on our Scope 1and 2 greenhouse gas
emissions in our annual report each year since 2013 and have
set out our emissions reduction targets. We-now report this
datainternally on a monthly basis and use it to monitor
performance against our reduction targets. In 2022 we have

worked with The Carbon Trust to set near-term science-
based targets aligned with a 1.5°C scenario which have been
approved by SBTi. Our Environmental Management System is
certificated to IS0 14001:2015 and we disclose our emissions
through the Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP).

As noted above, and following our scenario analysis project,
detailed climate risks and opportunities will be quantified for
integration into our risk and governance structure in 2023.

GHG emissions and the related risks

We have modelled our Scope 3 emissions, working with The
Carbon Trust, and this information hasbeen used toseta
near-term science-based emissions reduction target based
ona1.5°C pathway which has been approved by the SBTi.

We plan to remodel our Scope 3 emissions in 2023 with the
intention of reporting these on an annual basis from 2024.

We report on our Scope 1and 2 GHG each year. The detailed
disclosures and methodology can be found in the following
section, titled ‘Our carbon footprint’.

Targets used to manage climate-related risks and
opportunities, and performance against targets
As part of our strategy to manage climate change risks,
we have committed to becoming a net zero carbon
business by 2040 in line with the British Retail
Consortium's Climate Roadmap:

Scope 2: Net zero by 2030
Scope 1: Net zero by 2035
Scope 3: Net zero by 2040

As noted above we have also set science-based targets to
give us a clearly-defined pathway to emissions reduction
that is aligned to climate science The commitment to the
BRC's roadmap is a more ambitious target - we always strive
to achieve the more stretching target.
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Our primary metric at present is the overall level of emissions
falling under each of the three Scopes and this forms the
basis of the science-based targets set during the year.
During 2023 we pian to develop more detailed operational
and commercial targets which will support our ongoing
emissions reduction and overall transition plan. We will
develop quantitative metrics and targets for material climate
risks and opportunities and incorporate these into our
business plan after the conclusion of the scenario ptanning
exercise in the first part of thisyear.

In 2022, we have incorporated regular reporting of our Scope
1and 2 footprint into our monthly Board reporting pack. This
ensures our leadership has ongoing visibility of the delivery
of our reduction strategy.

Next steps for Greggs

Inthe first half of 2023, we will complete the scenario
analysis across various time horizons to understand the
material impacts at different temperature increases.

The full results of the TCFD implementation project,
including the outcomes of the scenario analysis will be
reportedin our 2023 annual report. We will use the findings
to develop robust risk mitigations and capitalise on
opportunities for the business.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

Our carbon footprint

We disclose our greenhouse gas(GHG) emissions through
CDP. We continue to drive efficiencies to further reduce our
carbon footprint in a bid to target a net zero impact. In 2022,
we decreased our gross location-based intensity(tonnes per
£m turnover)impact by 13.91% (compared to 2021 0r 29.9%
compared to 2019).

Asaresult, our market-based carbon footprint for the 2022
financial year was 46,922 tonnes of carbon dioxide and
equivalent gases(CO,e), with an intensity of 31.02 tonnes
of CO,e per £mturnover, which accounts for our efforts
ingenerating and purchasing low-carbon energy.

Global GHG emissions data

Inline with the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors Report)Regulations 2013, we are reporting our
GHG emissions as part of our annual strategic report. Our
SHG reporting year is the same as our financial year, from

2 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. We have reported on
all of the emission sources which we deem ourselves to be
responsible for, as required under the Act. These sources
fall within our operational control and financial boundaries
and include emissions from manufacturing, retail and
distribution sites and the operation of our distribution fleet,
all of which are wholly based in the UK. We do not have
responsibility for any emission sources that are outside of
our operational control. The methodology used to calculate
our emissions is based on the GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard, Defra Environmental

13.91%

2022 reduction in gross location-hased intensity
impact (tonnes per £m turnover)

40

Reporting Guidelines and IS0 14064-3: 2013 - Specification
with guidance for the verification and validation of GHG
statements.

Dual emissions reporting

Overall emissions have been presented to reflect both
location and market-based methodologies, affecting both
Scope 1and Scope 2 emissions.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Inline with Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting{(SECR)

requirements, we have also reported on the underlying
energy used to calculate Group GHG emissions.

Where original data was provided in litres of diesel, gas oil or
petrol it has been converted to kWh. The reporting boundary
has been determined by operational control, whereby all
emissions within operational control have been included
within scope, i.e. Scope 1and Scope 2.

Energy efficiency initiatives

Greggs is committed to reducing the energy consumption
and the carbon impact from its operations. We have set our
target of net zero operationat carbon emissions across the
organisation by 2040 and have put in place a plan aligned to
the BRC’s Climate Roadmap. We have moved to renewable
electricity sources across 93% of our estate and will look
to investigate other renewable energy sources for our
remaining Scope 1emissions.

In 2021we measured our value chain emissions with The
Carbon Trust and found Scope 3 emissions account for 92%
of all market-based emissions with emissions from Scope 3
purchased goods and services (products) having the biggest
impact. We will look to develap and focus our attention on
where we have significantimpact. We have set near-term
company-wide emission reduction targets in line with
climate science which have been approved by the SBTi.

Following our 2021 value chain emission modelling activity,
in 2022 we hosted Net Zero workshops with the suppliers of
our most carbon intensive ingredients with the intention of
aligning our collective efforts towards alow-carbon future.
As aresult of these workshops we are now planning further
collaboration in the coming years to share collective learning
and experiences. In 2023, we will also repeat this process
with further suppliers and service providers.



We contirue to focus our internal teams on energy
efficiency and carbon reduction programmes. In 2022, we
opened our first Eco-Shop which provides a test bed for
future in-store sustainability initiatives. Successful new
ideas and technologies will then be rolled out across our
new shops and existing estate. Furthermore, we have
introduced double-deck trailers into our logistics fleet
(which reduce the number of journeys our fleet are required

to complete), we are replacing high Global Warming
Potential{GWP)refrigerants in refrigeration and air
conditioning systems with lower GWP refrigerants, and all
new refrigeration equipment uses low GWP refrigeration
gas as a specification requirement. We have successfully
trialled electric refrigeration units on our delivery fleet,
replacing diesel powered refrigeration and we will roll this
across 39% of the fleet in 2023.

STRATEGICREPORT
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“We continue to held The Carbon Trust

Standard in recogpnition of our work

on carbon efficiencies and our

environmental management system is

certificated to IS0 14001:2015. In addition,
we disclose our GHG emissions through
the Carbon Disclosure Project.”

Currentreporting  Comparisonyear
year 2022 2021 Baseyear2019°

(tonnesofCO,e)  (tonnesofCO,e)  (tonnesofCO,el
Location and market-based emissions
Scope 1™ Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities 32,813 30,115 33,155
Scopel Refrigerants 6,998 5,850 5,513
Scope 2(Location-based)™ Electricity purchased for own use(including PV Generated and green tariff) 47,716 46,318 67,284
Scope 2{Market-based) Residual electricity 7109 4,265 2,908
Gross emissions{Location-based} Total Scope 1+2 CO,e emissions 87,529 82,283 95,962
Gross emissions (Market-based) Total Scope 1+2 C0,e emissions to account for use of renewable energy 46,922 40,230 41,577
Intensity measure (Location-based) Tonnes of CO, per £m turnover 57.86 87.21 82.54
Percentage change 2022 compared with 2021 ) -13.91% -29.9%
Intensity measure {Market-based) Tonnes of CO,e per £m turnover 31.02 32.90 35.76
Intensity percentage change accounting for renewable energy 2022 compared with 2021 -5.M% : -12.56%
Locatlon-based method s provided for disclosure only
UK Underlying energy use (kWh)
Total Scope 1Energy use Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities {(natural gas, fleet fuel oils, company cars and LPG) 140,090,349 130,910,991 141,717,583
Total Scope 2 Energy use Electricity 246,749,496 218,141,798 224,154,292
Total Energy use (kWh} 386,839,845 349,052,789 365,871,875
*  Weare jesetting our baseline year to 2019 to allow ali viitht year for SBT
** UKonly
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

GENDER OF
WORKFORCE

We are proud of our reputation for bringing the best talent

through the business regardless of gender and that 67%
of our total workforce is female. We have great female
representation on our Board, and women make up half
of the management population of Greggs.

Female Male Total
Board 5 3 8
Senior managers 57 69 126
Other managers 288 281 569
Allemployees 19,063 9,386 28,493

Notes:

* Headcount figures at 31 December 2022. 67% of total workforce is female (19,063 of 28,493).

** Asat310ecember2022.

Forinfo: There are 44 employees whose gender is recorded as'Unknown’,"Undeclared’ or ‘Gther’, hence the total

figure of 28,493 is not the sum of the Female and Male totals.

28,493

Total number of employees*®

1%

Percentage of female employees



FINANCIAL REVIEW

STRONG FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE AND
A ROBUST FINANCIAL

POSITION

Greggs delivered a strong financial performance
in 2022 in the face of challenging economic
conditions. Sales momentum was good and we
opened arecord net number of new shops as we
pursued our ambitious growth plan. Our robust
balance sheet will support our growth strategy,
providing a strong covenant to our partners

as well as funding for our investment
programme and for shareholder returns.

Richard Hutton
Chief Financial Officer
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2022 2021

£m £m
Revenue 1,512.8 1,229.7
Operating profit 154.4 153.2
Net finance expense{inc. leases) (6.) (7.6)
Profit before tax 148.3 145.6
Income tax (28.0) (28.1)
Profit after tax 120.3 175

Sales

Total Group sales for the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022
grew by 23.0% to £1,513 million(2021: £1,230 million).
Year-on-year growth was particularly strongin the first
quarter, reflecting comparison with pandemic lockdown
restrictions in the comparable period of 2021. Through the
remainder of the year we saw growth from new shop
openings and like-for-like transaction numbers as we made
progress with our sales growth initiatives and passed on
necessary price increases in response to cost inflation.
Total Group revenue reflects sales from company-managed
shops, whichinclude delivery sales, and sales through
business-to-business channels with our franchise and
wholesale partners.

Reporting ‘like-for-like’ sales{sales in company-managed
shops with more than one calendar year's trading history)
is akey alternative performance measure for Greggs, as it
shows underlying estate sales performance excluding the
impact of new shop openings and closures. The like-for-like
salesresults across 2022 reflected the impact of the
pandemic on the first and fourth quarters of 2021, and also
the closure of our shops out of respect for the funeral of
Her Majesty the Queen in September. Overall there was
strong growth, with like-for-like sales 17.8% higher year-on-
year and 14.6% higher than the pre-pandemic level of 2019.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

0 02 03 04 2022

Company-managed

like-for-like salesvs. 2021 37.0% 1.3% 97% 18.2% 17.8%

Profit for the year

Profit before taxin 2022 was £148.3 million(2021: £145.6 million).
This was & strong performance in challenging conditions,
with cost inflation increasing at a significantly higher rate
than had been expected and reduced support from
Government pandemic measures that had been present
in2021.

We started 2022 expecting higher than normai food cost
inflation as supply chains reacted to post-pandemic growth,
but the war in Ukraine triggered a dramatic increase in food
and energy commodity costs. Our forward cover positions
for electricity and gas procurement meant that we were
largely protected from energy volatility in the year, but food
costs ros2 significantly as our forward positions rolled off
over the second and third quarter. Reluctantly we brought
forward price increases whilst maintaining our relative value
position in the market. In doing so across the year as awhole
we under-recovered overall business cost inflation by
around one percentage point.

Overall wage and salary cost inflation was 4.9% in 2022 and
is expected to be approximately 8.0% in 2023. Food and
packaging inflation increased significantly in the second
half of 2022 as forward cover for key inputs expired. This
will continue to annualise during the first half of 2023. Shop
occupancy costs continue to improve; in 2022 the ratio of
IFRS 16 'right of use’ charges on leased property assets to
company-managed shop sales was 4.3%, down from 4.9%
in 2021. Greggs'strong covenant is attractive to landlords
and this is animportant factor in lease renewal, as well as
providing the good pipeline of shop opening opportunities
that underpins our planned estate growth. Across the

business as a whole, cost inflation totalled 9% in 2022, in
line with previous guidance. The reintroduction of business
rates in the second half of 2021 resulted in a £15 million
year-on-year cost increase in 2022.

Looking forward we expect overall input cost inflationin 2023
tobeinthe range of 9-10%. Uncertainty over commodity
prices remains but we have been able to secure forward cover
forall of our electricity requirements through to the end of the
third quarter of the year and expect to extend this further
when opportunities present themselves. We also have
forward purchase agreements representing between four
and five months of our food and packaging needs.

Financing charges

The net financing expense of £6.1million in the year{2021:
£7.6 million)comprised £6.8 million in respect of the IFRS 16
interest charge on lease liabilities, £0.7 million of facility
charges under the Company’s{undrawn)financing facilities,
offset by £1.4 million relating to income on cash deposits and
foreign exchange gains.

Taxation

The Company has a simple corporate structure, carries out
its business entirely in the UK and all taxes are paid here. We
aim to act with integrity and transparency in respect of our
taxation obligations.

The Group's overall effective tax rate on profit in 2022 was
18.9% (2021: 19.3%) which reflects the benefit of ‘super-
deductions’relating to capital expenditure in 2022, offset
by the corresponding deferred tax movements being taxed
at 25% rather than 19%, ahead of the increase in the
corporation tax rate which takes effect on 1 April 2023.

We expect the effective tax rate for 2023 to be around
24.0% and for 2024 to be around 26.0%. Going forward the
effective rateis expected to remain around 1.0% above the
headline corporation tax rate; thisis principally because of
disallowed expenditure such as depreciation on properties
that do not qualify for tax relief and acquisition costs
relating to new shops.

Earnings per share and dividend
Diluted earnings per share in 2022 were 117.5 pence {2021:
114.3 pence per share).

The Board recommends a final ordinary dividend of 44.0
pence per share(2021: 42.0 pence per share}. Together with
the interim dividend of 15.0 pence(2021: 15.0 pence) paid in
October 2022, this makes a total ordinary dividend for the
year of 59.0 pence(2021: 57.0 pence plus 40.0 pence special
dividend). This is covered two times by diluted earnings per
share andis in line with our progressive ordinary dividend
policy, which aims toincrease the dividend in line with
growth in earnings per share.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting, the final ordinary dividend will be paid on
26 May 2023 to shareholders on the register at 28 April 2023.

Balance sheet

Capital expenditure

We invested a total of £110.8 million{2021: £57.4 million}in
capital expenditure during 2022. Retail estate expenditure
increased in 2022 as we accelerated the rate of company-
managed shop openings and shop refurbishment. In our
supply chain we completed the investment in additional pizza
manufacturing capacity at our Enfield site and commenced
work on the construction of a fourth production line for our
iconic savoury pastries at Balliol Park in Newcastle.



Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and
equipment and intangibles in the year was £62.7 million
(2021: £58.7 million). A further £52.8 million{2021£48.7
million) of depreciation was charged in respect of right-of-
use assets as aresult of capitalised leases.

The level of capital expenditure will increase in coming years
as we invest to increase capacity in our supply chain to
support our ambitious growth plans. In 2023 we will
commence work to expand capacity for radial distribution to
shops at our Birmingham and Amesbury distribution centres.
We also expect to progress plans for new manufacturing and
logistics facilities in the Midlands, the start of a multi-year
development that will provide medium-term capacity to
allow our shop estate to grow to significantly more than
3,000 stores in time, as well as supporting our plans to grow
like-for-like sales in line with our ambition.

Our shop opening and relocation plans mean we will invest in
circa 160 new company-managed shops in 2023 and refurbish
around 150 existing stores as we modernise older sites and
introduce better facilities to support our growth plans.

Overall we expect capital expenditure in 2023 to be around
£200 million, and anticipate that it will remain around that
annual level through 2024 and 2025 as we invest to support
our growth plans.

Management of return on capital

We manage return on capital against predetermined

. targets and monitor performance through our investment
Board, a management committee where all capital
expenditure is subject to rigorous appraisal before and
after itis made. For most new shop investments we target
an average cash return oninvested capital of 25%, with
ahurdle rate of 22.5%, over an average investment cycle
of eight years. Other investments are appraised using
discounted cash flow analysis.

Managing return on capital wellis animportant discipline
in Greggs. As such, return on capital employed (ROCE)

is embedded as a performance metric in our long-term
incentive plans. In 2022 ROCE was 21.0%(2021: 23.0%
including the benefit of relief from Business Rates),
comparing favourably with the pre-pandemic level (2013:
20.0%). As we grow the business in the years ahead our
ambition is to maintain the business’ track record of
delivering strong returns on capital.

Working capital

We ended the year with Group net current assets of

£38.9 million{2021 £569.2 million)as we continue to carry a
robust cash and cash equivalents position of £191.6 million
{2021: £198.6 million)to support investment in our capital
expenditure programme. Excluding cash and cash
equivalents, net current liabilities increased from

£139.4 million to £152.7 million over the year. This reflects
the impact of strong growth on trade and other payables.

Pension scheme

The Company’s closed defined benefit pension scheme has
moved to a net asset position of £6.3 million at the end of
2022(2021: £2.4 million net liability). The improvement in
the balance sheet position reflects already-committed
scheme contributions that were advanced to support the
scheme at the time of significant collateral calls oniits
Liability Driven Investments ('LDI')in Gctober 2022. The
reductionin liabilities that resulted from a significantly
increased discount rate was largely offset by performance
of the scheme assets and LDI positions.

The scheme underwent a full actuarial revaluationin 2020,
the results of which showed a deficit in funding. The

Company committed to making additional contributions of
£2.5 million each year from 2021to 2026 to ensure that any
funding requirements are met over the medium term as the
scheme works towards full de-risking. As noted above, as a
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result of the volatile market conditions in the autumn
of 2022 the Company advanced an additional payment
of £5.5 million of these committed contributions

(£8.0 million for the year), leaving £4.5 million of the
original commitment to pay in future years.

Cash flow and capital structure

The net cashinflow from operating activities after lease
payments in the year was £198.8 million{2021: £236.5 million
including a significant working capital inflow as sales
recovered from the pandemic). At the end of the year the
Group had net cash and cash equivalents of £191.6 million
(2021: £138.6 million).

In normal circumstances the Group aims to maintain a
year-end net cash position of around £50 million to allow
for seasonality inits working capital cycle and to protect
the interests of all creditors. The cash position will
normalise in future years as we deploy resources to
support our ambitious growth plan.

The Company’s undrawn revolving credit facility, which runs
to December 2025, allows it to draw up to £100 millionin

" committed funds, subject to it retaining a minimum liquidity

of £30 million(i.e. maximum net borrowings are £70 million).
Taking this into account, total available liquidity at the end of
2022 was £261.6 million{2021: £268.6 million).

Looking forward

Gur strong financial position will support our ambitious
growth plansin the year ahead. At the same time we

will maintain the discipline that has delivered profitable
growth and excellent capital returns, to the benefit of all
of our stakeholders.

Richard Hutton
Chief Financial Officer
7March 2023
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RISKMANAGEMENT

OUR APPRO
TO RISK MA

An effective and robust risk management
process is fundamental to protecting our
business, our customers and colleagues,
and shareholder value.

Risk management and internal control

To be able to deliver our strategy and make the right
decisions for the business, we need to understand and
manage our risks. Taking risks ina managed way can help us
to deliver value whilst protecting the business, our people
and our reputation. Risks cannot be avoided, but an effective
system of risk management ensures that they are mitigated
toanacceptable level.

Roles and responsibilities

The Board has overall responsibility for risk management,
and determines the nature and extent of risks which we are
prepared to take in the pursuit of our strategy.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, maintains
oversight of the risk management approach, including
reviewing its overall effectiveness on an annual basis,
and receiving regular updates on assurance activity.

AGEMENT

The various roles within the risk management process are set out below:

WHO0? ROLE KEY ACTIVITIES/RESPONSIBILITIES
Main Board Direction and oversight Approving policy: overall responsibility for risk; setting risk appetite;
embedding the risk management culture; setting the ‘tone at the top’
Audit Committee Main Board activities Challenge and agreement of principal risks and uncertainties
asdelegated disclosure; oversees risk management systems and controls;
annual review of effectiveness of approach
OperatingBoard  Ownership and Ownership and management of significant risks;
monitoring agreeing and monitoring actions to mitigate risks
Risk Committee  Identifying, Consideration of new and emerging risks; escalation of functional
assessingand risks; bi-annual strategic risk review and validation
monitoring risk
Bt Independent Managing the risk register; consolidation of significant risks;
Assuranceteam overview independent assurance over controls; monitoring compliance

with policy; updating Audit Committee at each meeting

Heads of business

Operational risk

Identifying risks which may prevent the achievement of objectives;

functions ownership and ongoing review of risks and controls within area of remit;
implementing implementing controls to mitigate risk
actions

Processowners Day-to-day business Ensuring that mitigating controls are operating effectively;

operations

reporting areas of new and emerging risk; ensuring compliance
with policies and procedures




Risk is managed and overseen through a Risk Committee,
which is acommittee of our Operating Board. Other senior
leaders are also part of the Committee and attend the
meetings, which take place at least three times per year.

Our Business Assurance function supports with the
documentation and review of risk, and with the Audit
Committee’s review process.

Risk management process

We have arisk management policy and framework in place,
both of which have been approved by the Board. This
supports us in taking a consistent approach.

Our risk process works 'top down’and ‘bottom up’, as
shown in the diagram on page 46. Risks are identified,
by considering potential events which could prevent the
achievement of our objectives.

The Operating Board is responsible for maintaining the
overall corporate risk map, which documents the key risks
to the achievement of strategic objectives. We conduct
aformal review of our key strategic risks twice ayear viathe
Risk Committee, with input from each of the risk owners.

This allows us to discuss the gradings, reflect anany
changes and ensure that the level of risk remains consistent
with our risk appetite. The Risk Committee also considers
new risks escalated to it and assesses whether or not these
are significant enough to merit inclusion on the strategic
risk register.

Therisk process is facilitated by the Business Assurance
team, who help identify and assess key risks, as well as
providing support in developing an appropriate risk
response. The team also provides a route for matters of
concern to be quickly escalated to the Operating Board and
Risk Committee. In addition, Business Assurance provides -
anindependent view on the controls in place over specific
risk areas within the internal audit plan.

Risks are assessed under our strategic pillars{including The
Greggs Pledge), and are categorised into four broad groups
- strategic, operational, financial and legal/regulatory.

Our strategic risk register captures a description of eachrisk,
and allocates an Operating Board member as risk owner.
Eachrisk owner is responsible for ensuring that appropriate
mitigating controls are in place. We then set out key controls
foreach risk, and make an assessment of their effectiveness.
Thelikelihood and impact of eachrisk arising is then calculated,
takinginto account the controls which are in place.

Developments in 2022

Our Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)framework, which we
developed with Marsh Advisory in 2021, has been rolled out
more widely. The ERM policy and procedure were signed off
by the Board to demonstrate commitment at the top of the
organisation.

Our Chief Executive has continued to increase our focus on
risk management. This has emphasised the importance of
risk management and is helping to promote our work to fully
embed the concept.
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We have engaged with heads of business functions to
increase their involvement in the process. They participated
in the strategic risk grading review at the year end, which
provided a different perspective from the Operating Board
and gave some valuable insight. We pian to continue an
ongoing dialogue with this group, the output from which we
will feed into discussions at Risk Committee meetings.

We reviewed the structure of the Business Assurance team
and we have appointed an Audit and Risk Manager, to drive
amore joined up assurance approach. The role will help us to
optimise the opportunities for internal audit to independently
assess the effectiveness of key controls.

Plans for 2023

We will further embed our ERM approach, and support
more of our functions to develop their own risk registersin
the standard corporate format. This will also involve more
regular and structured engagement with our heads of
business functions.

We have engaged with our insurance brokers to conduct an
overall review of our approach to insurance, a significant
mitigating control against a number of our strategic risks.
This will involve members of our Main and Operating Boards
as well as key heads of business functions.

We will be increasing the resource within the Business
Assurance team to ensure that we are able to continue to
support the growing business.
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RISKMANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Climate risks

As set outin our TCFD disclosure on pages 35to 41, our
climate risks and opportunities are in the process of being
fully defined, though we have undertaken a significant
amount of work to understand our exposure. Once the risks
have been agreed, they will be incorporated within our main
ERM framework, and managed consistently with cther risks
identified across the business.

We continue to monitor climate change as an emerging risk,
since we do not believe it constitutes a principal risk to the
business within the time horizon of our current strategic
plan. However, we keep under review future climate change
legisiation and customer preferences.

Emergingrisks

We conduct an emerging risk review on a quarterly basis, and

report our findings to the Risk Committee and Main Board.

Various scurces of information are used to ensure thisis as

complete as possible:

- Horizon scanning by subject matter experts throughout
the business, coupled with an escalation route 7o raise
any issues;

- Engaging with our functional heads to discuss any areas
of concern within their remit; :

- Monitoring customer and consumer trends; and

- Takinginput from our advisers and other specizclists with
whom we work.

Current ar=as of emerging risks which we are monitoring
include changes to legislation, geopolitical tensions and the
cost of living crisis.

Risk appetite

Risk appetite is the level of risk which we are prepared to
take to meet our strategic objectives. In determining this,
we recognise that there is abalance between a prudent
approach to risk and sufficient flexibility to take appropriate
opportunities when they arise.

Our appetite for taking risks depends on the category of risk
in question. For example, we would be prepared to take more
riskin the pursuit of our strategy than inareas such as food
safety, where compliance with legislation drives azero
tolerance of risk.

Changes to principal risk disclosures

Aprincipal risk is arisk or combination of risks that could
seriously affect our performance, future prospects or
reputation. Not all of our strategic risks are considered to be
principal risks, only those which could have a significant
impact on our ongoing viability.

Key changes to principal risks and our risk profile are as

follows:

- Ourpreviously disclosed risk of 'supply chain disruption’
incorporated both internal interruption events and
external supply issues. We have described this as two
separate risks, since the risk profile and the mitigations
are different for each.

- Apreviously disclosed risk of ‘significant fines for

non-compliance’ has been removed from the listing, since

we no longer believe it to meet the definition of a principal
risk. The reputational impact of such anincident is stated
elsewhere within the risk register.

- We haveincluded the additional disclosure of the
category of eachrisk as set out in our risk register -
strategic, operational, financial and legal/regulatory to
aid understanding.

- Althoughnotdisclosed as a principal risk in our 2021
annual report, we set out our ongoing response to the
Covid-19 pandemic. Any such activity still in progressis
now considered part of our normal business operations,
and hence no further comment is necessary. However,
we are reflecting on our overall response to the pandemic,
and report our key lessons learned to the Board.

The following table sets out the principal risks, shows the
movement during the year, and describes the impact and key
mitigations. The list is not in priority order, and does not
include all the risks which are faced by the business. Other
risks which are not included here could also have a negative
impact on the business, including those which are not
presently known to us. The position described in the following
table is a summary at the time of publishing thisreport.




PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk and description

Impact

STRATEGICREPORT

Key mitigations

DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

STRATEGICPILLARS: o Great tasting, freshly prepared food e Best customer experience e Competitive supply chain o First class support teams e The Greggs Pledge

Strategic pillars Movement

BUSINESS INTERRUPTION
EVENT

We could suffer a significant business
interruption eventimpacting one or more
of our key locations. For example, a
prolonged power outage, denial of access
oranincident resulting in physical damage.

OPERATIONAL

We would potentially be unable to
supply our customers for a period
of time. This could impact our own
customers, those of our franchise
partners, and also our wholesale
sales through Icefand Foods.

- We have contingency plansin place for our sites,
which are tested periodically.

- Ourresilience throughout the pandemic demonstrates

that we are well-placed to manage disruption to our

operations.

Our diversified product range from multiple production

sites provides alternatives for our customers.

- We have flexibility within our network, to enable us
to continue our operations.

Insurance cover isin place.

00606 -
o0

SUPPLY CHAIN
DISRUPTION

External supply could be interrupted,
resulting from issues such as third-party
business interruption or unexpected
product shortage.

A prolonged outage at one of

our key suppliers could impact
on our ability to produce some

of our range, or otherwise impact
on our ability to operate.

Inthe event of interruptions, we are agile in our
response to implementing contingency plans.
These are regularly tested.

We try to avoid single source supply for key ingredients.

OPERATIONAL

CYBER & DATA We could suffer a significant loss - Third parties provide expertise and support, including 000 1t
of data, resulting in litigation regular penetration testing and a Security Operations

SECURITY INCIDENT

Acyber incident may occur which
impacts on our IT infrastructure.

The external threat environment is
constantly evolving and there is currently
an extended period of heightened cyber
threat, as advised by the National Cyber
Security Centre.

OPERATIONAL

and fines.

Our operations could be disrupted
fora period of time.

Centre monitoring our networks.

Our technical measures are constantly reviewed and
updated in line with changing requirements and
recognised information security control sets.

Our Operating Board took part in a desktop cyber event
simulation, facilitated externally.

Greggs plc Annual Reportand Accounts 2022 4 9



RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Risk and description

Impact

Key mitigations

STRATEGICPILLARS: () Greattasting,freshly preparedfood €)) Bestcustomer experience () Competitive supplychain () Firstclasssupportteams (@) The Greggs Pledge

Strategic pillars Movement

PROLONGED SYSTEM
DOWNTIME/
INTERRUPTION

As we streamline the business and
embrace greater flexibility in our working
arrangements, we increase our reliance
on technology. Any system interruption
becomes more disruptive, withan
increased risk of it having animpact

on business operations.

OPERATIONAL

We may be unable to run our
production systems for a period
of time. This could ultimately
impact on our ability to supply
into our shops for our customers.

Data may be unavailable or lost,
making it difficult for us to operate.

We continue to invest in our IT infrastructure.

We have established disaster recovery processes
which are tested periodically.

Our ERP systemincorporates multiple

layers of resilience.

External partners are engaged to provide
specialist support and expertise when required.

We will be refreshing our crisis and contingency
plansin2023.

000 -

DETERIORATION OF
RELATIONSHIP WITHKEY
PARTNER

We continue to work closely with
franchise, wholesale and delivery
partnersin order to broaden our service
offer into locations where our customers
wantus to be. Thereis arisk that our
strategy and goals are not fully aligned.

STRATEGIC

Alack of alignment could result
intargets not being met, due to
performance not being optimised.
The brand’s reputation could be
damaged, and the relationship
would be put at risk.

We work with a number of respected partners and
are continuing to broaden the range of businesses
with whom we operate. Thisreduces the reliance
on any one individual partner.

Contracts and service level agreements are in
place, along with arobust onboarding process
for new partners.

- Weare strengthening our in-house teams
to provide more resource to support our partners.




PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Risk and description

Impact

STRATEGIC REPORT

Key mitigations

DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

STRATEGIC PILLARS: o Great tasting, freshly prepared food e Best customer experience 0 Competitive supply chain o Firstclass support teams e The Greggs Pledge

Strateqic pillars Movement

ABILITY TO ATTRACT/
RETAIN/MOTIVATE
PEOPLE

Our peoplzare an essential part of our
business and our culture. Particularly in
the current environment, we may be
unable to attract and retain the right
talent within Greggs.

OPERATIONAL

We may be unable to continue
to deliver the product range
and service standards that
our customers want and
expect fromus.

The loss of existing resource
results in additional recruitment,
which in turn creates workload and
training requirements.

Ultimately, we may be unable
to grow the businessintine
with our strategy.

We recognise that our people are a key asset to the
business, and offer competitive packages, along with
extensive training and development opportunities.

- Colleagues have arange of ways to communicate their
ideas forimprovement, including opinion surveys and
listening groups.

We have arobust succession planning process for our
leadership teams and are continuing to develop this
across the wider organisation.

000 t
o0

DAMAGE TO REPUTATION

As we grow our social media presence,
and engage more with our customers,
there is arisk of damage to our brand if
we fail to respond quickly and
appropriately to anincident.

STRATEGIC

Customers could lose their trust
inthe brand, ultimately impacting
on our ability to grow our estate
and achieve our objectives.
Shareholder value could

be reduced.

We have araobust crisismanagement process in place,
which we testregularly. This is supported by appropriate
third parties{such as PR agencies)when specialist
adviceisrequired.

- We have conducted a detailed review of our Food Safety
incident response with our Operating Board.

Allof our shops are required to follow consistent

procedures, to ensure that our food complies
with standards.

- Our audit team ensure compliance, across both
company-managed and franchise shops.
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RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED STRATEGICPILLARS: o Great tasting, freshly prepared food e Best customer experience e Competitive supply chain o First class support teams e The Greggs Pledge

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Risk and description Impact Key mitigations Strategic pillars Movement
SIGNIFICANT FOOD There could be hlalrm to our - All new external suppliers require formal approval. o e e L g
customers or colleagues. ~ Alli i P
SAFETY INCIDENT/ :&(:I;r;gSLergli;\;ss‘iasr:gscr;ducts have specifications ° e
PRODUCT QUALITY ISSUE . ) ) .
Ourreputationas atrusted - Allergenrisk assessments are in place.
We may inadvertently produce and/or sell brand tcc’d“'d :e iignificamly " - Ourteams are trained, with specialists able
Impacted, which in turn wou i iti
products which are unsafe, or not of the affect our financial performance. toprovide adf1|t|onal knom{Iedge. I
appropriate quality. This could be a result We could also be exposed to - Wehave aPrimary Authority relationship in place,
of incorrect labelling of allergens, significant fines. which gives independent assurance that our
product contamination or a failure to processes and procedures are adequate.

correctly follow procedures.

Audits are undertaken by our internal teams
and external bodies.

Our complaints process ensures all matters
areinvestigated. When aroot cause identified,

OPERATIONAL we take action to address it.
- i i viti L d

CHANGES IN THE :;r:kzy::ar;:iesiza;:::::jjzt :jgtjlra:e:?r:zon scanning activities are undertaken g e 9
Eﬁﬁ%léAc.LOPREY range. Without an ability to - We engage with Trade Associations and government

respond quickly, we could lose bodies to ensure we are updated with developments.

market share. I . .

. - Participatinginindustry forums gives us an opportunity

New regulatory requirements could be to influence decision making.
implemented, driven by environmental, We believe that we may have
health or other concerns. greater exposure in some areas

LEGAL/REGULATORY than our competitors.




Viability statement

The Directors have assessed the Group’s prospects and
viability taking into account its current position, plans and
principal risks. In carrying out its assessment the Board has
reviewed the three-year operational and financial plans to
2025. Thisis the period over which the Board reviews
management’s business planning and sets performance
targets, and therefore the Board believes that this remains
the most appropriate timeframe over which to make the
viability assessment.

The Directors have carried out arobust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group, including those that would
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency
or liquidity.

The principal risks to which the Group is exposed ultimately
affect the ability of its shops to trade successfully, either due
tcreduced demand or because of operational interruptions,
including those to its internal supply chain. A significant loss
of sales is particularly damaging given the Group’s vertical
integration in that the cost of the internal supply chain
cannot be reduced quickly.

Scenarios were modelled in order to stress-test the Group’s
financial resilience to the impact arising from occurrence of
the following principal risks:

. Pandemic threat - the risk that the Group is forced to
close its shops to walk-in customers for three months as a
result of lockdown rules, and subsequently experiences
subdued levels of walk-in trade as the economy recovers
(starting at 50% of previously forecast sales in January
2024, building back to 100% by the end of that year).
Delivery channel sales are assumed to continue through
the lockdown months, with a2.5xincrease in volume as
customers switch channels, as are ‘bake at home'sales
through the Group's wholesale relationship with Iceland
Foods. This forward scenario assumes that Government
support would be available for the support of employment
and that relief from business rates would be available
during the periods of forced closure.

~

. Abrand-damaging food scare resulting in a significant
one-year sales reduction{c. 25% sales reduction for initial
sixmonths)followed by gradual recovery of confidence.
In making assumptions the Directors considered real
examples of companies in the food sector that had
experienced such issues.

w

. Temporary loss of production capacity for the Group’s
iconic savoury products and the consequences for
liquidity as capacity is restored.

Ineach case the Directors reviewed the mitigating actions
that would be necessary to protect the Group’s liquidity.

These included:

- Thetemporary suspension of dividend paymentsin order
to preserve cash for operational use;

- Restriction of capital expenditure whilst protecting
essential infrastructure maintenance and commitments
to-strategic investments;

- Access to Government support;

- Drawing on existing committed financing facilities; and

- Calling on the Group's insurance arrangements on the
occurrence of aninsured risk.

STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

The scenarios tested were capable of being managed within
the Group's existing, committed financing facilities. The
pandemic scenario presents by far the greatest financial
stress to the business, and this simulation does show a
breach of the fixed interest cover covenant at one reporting
date. Given the Group's relationship with lenders, and the
actions of banks through the Covid-19 pandemic, the
Directors believe it is reasonable to conclude that a waiver
would be secured.

Given the opening cash position in 2023 the Group has
sufficient existingand committed financing facilities to
manage in a situation where multiple principal risk scenarios
occur concurrently. This will likely not be the case in future
years as we increase capital expenditure and reduce the
Group’s cash position. In the event of multiple principal risk
scenarios occurring the Directors believe that the borrowing
capacity of the Group would be sufficient to allow it access
to temporary additional facilities.

Based on the results of the analysis, the Directors have
areasonable expectation that the Group will be able to
continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due
over the three-year period of their detailed assessment.
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS

ENGAGING WITH
OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Despite significant pressures on customers’incomes and against an economic
inflationary environment, we made progress with our strategy during 2022, and
the Directors continued to engage with our stakeholders through a series of
formal and informal activities.

Our Executive Directors undertake much of the day-to-day
engagement across the various stakeholder populations
with members of the Operating Board sometimes acting
as proxies for the Directors. For example, since her
appointment, the Chief Executive has met with several
suppliers accompanied by our Operating Board lead,

the Commercial Director. These have deepened her
understanding of the those retationships, and allowed
her to hear how they are mutually beneficial, and what
improvements could be made. After an engagement,

the Chief Executive reports key findings to the Board.

Aseries of activities are planned across the year to which
the Non-Executive Directors are invited. These include
listening groups with colleagues, the annual management
conference, and formal and informal visits to shops and
production and distribution sites. Our Company Secretary
retains an engagement log. At Board meetings, Directors are
invited to comment on their activities and the key things they
have learned.

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The following pages 54 to 61 comprise
our section 172 statement and
describe how the Directors
individually and collectively, acting
in good faith, have exercised their
duties over the course of the year

to promote the long-term success
of the Company for the benefit if its
members as a whole, and in doing so
have had regard to the matters set
outin section 172(1)(a} to {f) of the
Companies Act 2006.




CUSTOMERS

COLLEAGUES

STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

SUPPLIERS

How and why we engage

COur customers are at the heart of everything we do.
Understanding the role we play in peoples’livesis at the
forefront of how we plan and operate, so we're constantly
evolving our proposition to remain relevant.

By speaking to customers in shops, through our Customer
Care and Insight teams, and across our digital channels

- we're constantly listening and learning so we can
understand how best to serve the nation.

0ado

How and why we engage

Our people are what makes our business successful. We
strive to provide a great place to work, where our colleagues
feelvalued, can be themselves, want to stay with us, and new
employees want tojoin. As our business grows, we continue
to recruit new talent, which is harder in the current
employment market. To help us tackle this issue, we launched
anew Greggs Career website and recruitment systemin
2022. We continue to communicate with our colleagues
through regular Chief Executive updates, partnership
forums, the colleague suggestion scheme ‘Your Ideas Matter’,
and our annual conference and cascades. Our three networks
- ethnicity, disability, and LGBTQ+, as well as our D&I steering
group -are attended by many colleagues fromacross the
business as well as the sponsors from our Operating Board.

How and why we engage

By working collaboratively with suppliers who share our
values, we produce high-quality products while also having
apositive impact on people and the planet. Although we
manufacture the majority of what we sell, we are reliant on
food ingredient suppliers, services providers, property
landlords, sellers of ‘goods not for resale’ - such as shop
uniforms and equipment - and many other suppliers. We
use the Ariba platform to qualify suppliers and a variety of
tools to support our focus on ethics and sustainability. To
build and maintain good relationships, we also hold regular
meetings, undertake joint projects and visit and invite our
suppliers to our annual Supplier Conference.

(1 ]2]3]415)

Impact on Board decisions

Qur purpose is to make great tasting, freshly prepared food
available to everyone, and our vision is to be the customers’
favourite for food-on-the-go. With this in mind, the Board
approved a significant and extended shop opening
programme which is putting Greggs into new locations
through relationships with, for example, supermarkets and
new franchise partners. The Board approved extending shop
opening hours so that at least 500 shops would remain open
until 8pm, with a complementary evening range.

Az the Board's strategy meeting in the summer, the team
considered what the future might hold for our customers
intenyears’time. This assessment is now being used

to develop customer strategies in the coming years.
More detail has been set out in the case study entitled
Understanding our customers on page 60.

Impact on Board decisions

With the lifting of Covid-19 restrictions, the success of the
national vaccination campaign and the lower impact of the
Omicron variant, the Board were pleased to be able to
recommence meeting coileagues from across the business
inperson. These meetings help our Directors to consider
the environment in which our people operate, the challenges
that they face in their day-to-day working lives, and the
impact of Board decisions on operational activities. For
example, the Board’s decision to extend shop opening hours
requires additional workforce planning and recruitment to
keep shops open during longer hours, often for 12 hours or
longer. Board members attended Listening Groups and
meetings of the Greggs Negotiating Committee (GNC)(the
formal conduit for engaging with recognised unions). More
information outfining the various colieague engagement
activities is outlined in pages 58 to 59.

Impact on Board decisions

Every year. our Chief Executive attends several ‘top-to-top’
meetings with selected suppliers, accompanied by the
Operating Board’s Commercial Director. Since taking on the
Chief Executive appointment, these included a visittoa
waste recovery and recycling plant operated by our partner,
Biffa, and a meeting with our milk supplier, Mlier, to discuss
our commitment to animal welfare. Findings from such
meetings assist the Board in considering our environmental
strategy as part of The Greggs Pledge, for example, the
difference we can make to recycling rates by improving
how we sort our waste before it goes to Biffa's plant.

STRATEBIC PILLARS n Great tasting, freshly prepared food

a Best customer experience a Competitive supply chain

First class support teams a The Greggs Pledge
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS CONTINUED

SHAREHOLDERS

LENDERS

COMMUNITIES

How and why we engage

Our shareholders are the owners of the business, and we
have obligations to keep them apprised of significant
developments. We do this through our regular reporting
schedule and meetings with institutional shareholders
across thz year, conducted mainly by the Chief Executive
and Chief Financial Officer.

We hold an AGM after which Directors mix with attendees
over a Greggs lunch. After two years of virtual meetings due
to the pandemic, we were pleased to once again welcome
shareholders in-person to our AGM in May 2022.

2]«]5)

How and why we engage

Greggsisacash-generative business and prior to the pandemic
had not needed to approach capital and debt markets to fundits
growth strategy. With the onset of the pandemic, it became
clear that it would be appropriate and prudent to have in place
aformalbank facility, and consequently, towards the end of
2020, a revolving credit facility of £100 million was putin
place with two commercial banks. Although that facility
remains undrawn, as part of that ongoing relationship, the
Finance team provide regular performance and covenant
compliance updates to banking partners.

088006

How and why we engage

The sheer ‘locainess’ of our operations and our longstanding
relationship with the Greggs Foundation helps us to better
understand the needs of our communities and how we are
placed to make a positive impact. We aim to build stronger,
healthier communities - afundamental tenet of The Greggs
Pledge. We do this through initiatives such as Greggs
Breakfast Clubs, our food donation programme and our
employability programme Fresh Start, as well as by facilitating
fundraising activities for many other good causes, including
the Disasters Emergency Committee (DEC), Childrenin Need,
The Children’'s Cancer Run and the Poppy Appeal.

Impact on Board decisions

The Chief Financial Officer leads on the Board’s engagement
with institutional investors and analysts, has regular
interacticn with existing and potential investors, and reports
to the Board on the key points that arise from those
meetings. At each Board meeting, aregister of the top
shareholdings s tabled, including movements of buyers

and sellers. Following the Preliminary and Interim Results
Roadshows, the Board receives feedback frominvestors
and analysts on Company performance and levels of
engagement. The Chair and Senior Independent Director
offered meetings to several major shareholders

to discuss the process that had resulted in Roisin Currie
succeeding Roger Whiteside as Chief Executive.

Impact on Board decisions

Indetermining the use of cashresources, the Board has
regard to several stakeholders, including shareholders
(through the potential for dividend payments), colleagues
(through pay awards and bonus entitlements), and Greggs
pension scheme obligations{through managing the scheme
alongside the Trustee to ensure itis successful onits journey
to de-risking in the next few years). Should the Board
authorise a drawdown of the revolving credit facility, it would
take that debt into consideration when determining the
allocation of cash resources.

During the year, the Board approved the payment of an
additional £5.5million to the Trustee of the defined benefit
pension scheme{'the Scheme’), to enable it to respond

to cash calls received from Legal & General Investment
Management during the so-called ‘LDl crisis’. The Board
had previously approved the payment of £15 million into
the Scheme over six years as part of a deficit recovery
programme and agreed to bring forward annual payments
so that the Trustee could meet the cash call. This advanced
funding will assist the Company and the Scheme along its
journey towards buy-out in the coming years.

Impact on Board decisions

The Board, acting through the Operating Board, approved
support for the DEC's fundraising to provide relief to those
impacted by the war in Ukraine. Thanks to the generosity of
our customers, we were able to donate over £278,000. We
also celebrated our sixteenth anniversary as a BBC Children
in Need partner, helping to improve the lives of children and
support our communities across the UK - raising over
£782,000 this year alone.

STRATEGIC PILLARS

n Great tasting, freshly prepared food
a Best customer experience
a Competitive supply chain
First class support teams

a The Greggs Pledge



STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

Following two years of disruption caused by the pandemic when virtual meetings were the norm,
the Board welcomed the opportunity to engage with stakeholders face-to-face in 2022.

Below, by stakeholder, are some examples of the activities undertaken by the Board, or relevant information that was presented to them.

COLLEAGUES CUSTOMERS SHAREHOLDERS

Attendance at Greggs Negotiating Committee meetings Progress report on App development Declaration of interim dividend
Attendance at listening groups with our retail operations Market insight presentations Annual general meeting

managers and manufacturing colleagues

Updates on achieving the National Equality Standard Pricing strategy and impact of inflation Share register monitoring and development

of anengagement plan
Findings from the Employee Opinion Survey Attendance at a menu tasting session with Investor relations strategy review and
(see more on page 61) our category and food development teams . the allocation of resource

(see case study on page 59)

Undertaking shop visits to meet our shop teams Attendance at ‘Customer of the Future’ session Transparency around the Chief Executive
(see case study on page 60} recruitment plan

Attending a fundraising walk to support the Gregcs Foundation Presentations from Customer Insight team Consultation ahead of the tabling

(see case study on page 58} (see case study on page 60) of the remuneration policy in 2023

Participating in colleague development days
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS CONTINUED

Colleague engagement

Board engagement

In September, the Board visited shops in and around
Birmingham city centre, speaking with colieagues and
customers, and seeing new formats such as the ‘Tasty by
Greggs' cefé within the Primark store. The Board also
visited the Birmingham distribution centre and engaged
with colleagues responsible for fulfilling shop stocking
requirements and saw the logistics planning system that
supports deliveries to shopsin the Midlands area every day.

In addition to the Board visit to Birmingham, Chief Executive,
Roisin Currie, Non-Executive Director Mohamed Elsarky, and
Supply Chain Director, Gavin Kirk, visited colleagues at our
National Distribution Centre in Kettering to discuss the
current operation at the site and understand key capacity
constraints and plansin place to ensure supply at peak
trading. They also discussed local recruitment, logistics
plans and colleague facilities.

Non-Executive Director Helena Ganczakowski attended a
meeting with colleagues at our North Lakes manufacturing
site. A number of topics were discussed including the
recruitment market, the available facilities on site and

pay levels.

Sandra Turner, the Non-Executive Director having oversight
for colleague engagement, attended the Masterclass
development programme for some of our senior leaders
and shared her knowledge and experience of being a
non-executive director as well as providing an overview

of her role. Sandra also conducted shop visits to meet

our retail colleagues. Product availability was among the
topics discussed.

Union recognition and engagement

As part of Greggs'longstanding relationship with recognised
unions (Bakers Food and Allied Workers Union(BFAWU),
Union of Shop, Distributive and Allied Workers (USDAW)and
United Road Transport Union{URTU)), regular meetings are
held covering a variety of topics, including trading, strategic
initiatives, The Greggs Pledge and annual pay negotiations.

The GNC is our national union forum. It is attended by
Sarah Woolley (General Secretary of the Bakers Food &
Allied Workers Union)and union representatives from

across our business. In July 2022, our Non-Executive Chair,

lan Durant, attended a scheduled meeting for an open
feedback session where the teams were able to ask
questions and provide any feedback on operations. The
Chief Executive regularly attends this forum to provide
abusiness update and engage in an open discussion
regarding any issues the forum choose to table.

Topics that were discussed included recruitment challenges
across the business, the appointment of the new Chief
Executive as well as succession on the Main Board.

Retail Partnership Forum - December 2022

The Retail Partnership Forum is made up of our union
representatives from across retail and the teams specifically
discuss operational issues across the retail estate. Non-
Executive Director Lynne Weedall attended to meet the team
and understand their roles in representing their colleagues
across retail. Key topics discussed in this meeting included
retail systems and connectivity in shops and recruitment.

Fundraising walk to
support the Greggs
Foundation

Greggs continues to support the fantastic work
of the Greggs Foundation including its Breakfast
Club programme which by the end of 2022 had
789 Breakfast Clubs up and running, serving
afree breakfast to 49,000 children.

To help raise funds for its Breakfast Club
programme, the Greggs Foundation hosts an
annual walk. In 2022, the walk covered 21 miles of
the Northumberland coast, stretching from Holy
Island to Bamburgh Castle. Over 250 walkers took
part on the day, including members of the Board,
colleagues, suppliers and partners, helping to
raise atotal of £50,000.

Total amount raised from the walk

£50,000




Rewarding the workforce

Following a strong business performance in 2022, the Board
was delighted to continue its long tradition of sharing 10%

of profits with colleagues, enabling them to sharein our
success. Payments to qualifying colleagues willbe made
inlate March 2023.

In order to determine the annual pay award, eachyear we
undertake negotiations with the relevant trade unions
representing those colleagues covered under a collective
bargaining agreement. Following the successful conclusion
of the resulting ballot, our shop teams receive a pay increase
with effect from Aprilin any year and our supply chain teams
fromJanuary in any year.

The 2023 pay award agreed for our wider workforce
consisted of a base pay award of 7%, with an additional 3%
(10% in tozal)for certain roles and an additional 3.2% (10.2%
intotal}for our retail team members. Over three-quarters of
cur workforce received a pay increase of 10% or more. We
chose to bring forward the pay increase for our operational
retail colleagues (over 21,500 colleagues) by three months,
from April to January 2023.

Qver recent years, the pay award applied to our graded
management population and Directors has reflected the
base increase for our wider workforce and is genzrally
applicable from January in any year. However, the Board
acknowledged that 2022 was an unusual year with
significant inflationary pressures being faced, particularly
in the second half of the year. Inrecognition of these
significant economic conditions and the disproportionate
impact on our lowest paid colleagues, the Board agreed a
tiered pay award for our graded management teams. Our
lower paid management colleagues therefore received the
base increase of 7%, whilst senior managers’ pay awards

ranged between 5% and 68%. It was-agreed that the pay
award of both the Executive Directors and Operating Board
should be proportionally lower and were subsequently
agreed by the Board at 4%.

The pension contributions {or cash equivalent)for Executive
Directors are fully aligned with most of the workforce as of

1January 2023. Further details can be found in the Directors’

remuneration report on page 78.

Provision 36 of the Governance Code requires the
Remuneration Committee to develop a formal policy for
post-employment shareholdings. The Committee has
considered the new remuneration policy for the coming
three-year period and the post-employment holding
requirement will apply to all Executive Directors at the level
of the shareholding guideline prior to departure or the actual
shareholding on departure if lower. The previous approach
was that a post-employment holding requirement would
apply only for new Executive Directors. Full details can be
seenin the Directors' remuneration report on page 85.
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Menu tasting with our category
and food development teams

As afoodretailer, our menuis at the heart of our
operations, and new product development and
evolving our existing menu is key to our success.

In November 2022, the Board attended a presentation
and tasting session led by our category and food
development teams at our dedicated FoodZone
facility. As part of this session, the Board were invited
to share feedback and insights on the core pillars of
the menu for 2023 and beyond, diversification of the
menu, healthier choices and the growth of our vegan
range in line with our sustainability commitments.

Greggs ple AmualReportand Accounts 2022 D3
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Understanding our customers

The Board receives several reports and
presentations across the year from the
Customer Insight team, which helps the
Board determine various commercial
strategies, factoring in competitor activity,
pricing and inflation, customer footfall for
shop locations and marketing promotions.

Specific topics covered in the year included:

- Macro customer trends

~ Food-to-go market overview

- Greggs and competitor performance
infood-to-go

- Brandhealth

- Brand perceptions/satisfaction

- Competitor profiling and analysis

- Daypart performance

- Business plan, deep dives:
- Focus ondelivery/evening/hot food
'~ Focuson coffee
- Focuson health

As part of our longer-term strategic planning
for the business, the Board was engaged to
provide challenge and debate about our
future customers, their likely preferences,
and how the business proposition would
need to evolve to ensure that we remain
relevant and appealing to reach our
customer growth and retention aspirations.

We chose 2030 as the future date, and
invited a third-party agency to provide an
independent view of future mega-trends,
using existing business knowledge and
insights to help inform likely future
customer habits.

The habits deemed the most pertinentin
affecting the future strategic direction of
the Greggs offering were then distilled into
key areas. Members of the Operating Board
used these areas to develop hypotheses
which formed the foundation of a face-to-
face Board strategic debate. The Board
members’role was to challenge and shape
the thinking of the business and to provide
expert insights from their own experiences.

The outputs of these sessions and the
strategic debate were fed into the relevant
development teams and the workshops have
now beenrepeated with our senior managers
to further enhance the robustness of the
inputs to our future strategy.



Colleague engagement survey - Your Opinion Matters
In November 2022, the Directors received a presentation
from Emma Walton, People Director and her team on the
findings of the latest colleague engagement survey, 'Your
Opinion Matters’, conducted in the third quarter of 2022. The
response rate was 78% overall {21,067 respondents), made
up of 92% management and support, 79% in retail and 68%
of supply chain. This compared with an overall response rate
of 64% the last time the survey wasundertaken in 2021.

We calculate an engagement score using four questions
from the survey including: ‘| am proud to say | work for
Greggs'and’l would still like to be working at Greggs in two
years’time’. The engagement score was 77%, adrop of 5%
versus 2021, 10% ahead of the relevant benchmark and given
the unusual year with significant economic uncertainty
which had animpact on the whole of the UK, the Board
considered this to be a good outcome.

We cross-reference responses with self-declared ethnicity,
sexual orientation and disability, and were pleased to see
that overall levels of engagement are similar to those
reported for the whole responding population. These results
were shared with the Main Board and the D&| steering group.
Sharing ethnicity data allows the Board to see progress
towards our goal of having a workforce which reflects the
communities where our shops are located.

The Board was informed that each function would be
producing an action planin response to specific findings,
with the aim of improving the engagement of our colleagues
over the next year.

Shareholders

The Chair takes responsibility for ensuring that key
shareholders are aware of, and supportive of, the Board's
approach to governance, networking widely across the
institutional shareholder population, and from time-to-time
meeting with larger shareholders.

Much of the regular interaction with shareholders and the
analyst community is undertaken by the Chief Executive
and Chief Financial Officer, particularly around the times
of the release of the preliminary and interim results. In
between, the Chief Financial Officer is in reqular contact
with the investment community sharing details of the
Company'’s performance and strategy. Following key
announcements, the anonymised views of shareholders
are reportedto the Board by UBS and Investec, the
Company’s retained brokers, and press and analyst
feedback is provided by Hudson Sandler, the Company’s
financial communications consultants.

Following two years of virtual AGMs due to pandemic
restrictions, we were pleased to be able to welcome our
shareholders to attend the 2022 AGM in person. The AGM is
generally attended by around 60 to 70 private shareholders
and all Board Directors were in attendance along with
members of the Operating Board.

Shareholders were able to meet Directors and Operating
Board members during the refreshment breaks held before
and after the meeting, as well as being invited to ask
questions during the meeting itself. The Directors appreciate
the opportunity to hear from private shareholders about
their views on Company performance. Qur Head of
Sustainability was also in attendance to share key

progress made in The Greggs Pledge.
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On this occasion, the Board welcomed two individuals who
raised concerns about the remuneration and treatment of
workers within the business of our partner for online food
order and delivery. They were given the opportunity to put
their concerns to the Board both formally during the meeting
and informally afterwards. As aresult, the Board ensured
that those concerns were raised with its delivery partner.

Inadvance of the Board seeking approval of its remuneration
policy at the Annual General Meeting to be held in May 2023,
the Chair of the Remuneration Committee wrote to the top 12
shareholders on the register and other interested parties to
explain proposed changes to the policy and offered to meet
and explain the Committee’s reasoning. Several shareholders
and proxy agencies responded offering support or seeking
furtherinformation ahead of casting their votes. Feedback
from that engagement was shared with the Remuneration
Committee and Board, and was used to shape how the policy
will be applied, assuming it isapproved.

Other stakeholder considerations

Greggs is committed to acting fairly towards all stakeholders
of the Company. The impact of the Company’s operations on
the environment is covered in The Greggs Pledge reporton
pages 32 to 34. Our business conduct policy is available on
our website.

Roisin Currie
Chief Executive
7March 2023
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

MATT DAVIES

Chair

ROISIN CURRIE

Chief Executive

RICHARD HUTTON

Chief Financial Officer

MOHAMED ELSARKY

Non-Executive Director

KATE FERRY

Non-Executive Director

Mattis awidely experienced retailer
and was previously the CEO of Tesco
UK&ROI, before which he held CEO
positions at Pets at Home and
Halfords. As a Non-Executive
Director, Matt chaired N Brown Group
plcand was on the Board of Dunetm
Group plc.

Roisin was appointed Chief
Executive following the AGM held on
17 May 2022, having been appointed
to the Board on 1 February 2022
from the role of Retail and Property
Director. Prior to joining Greggsin
2010, Roisin worked at Asda where
she held People Director roles
responsible for the organisation’s
retail and distribution operations.

Richard qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with KPMG and gained
career experience with Procter
and Gamble before joining Greggs
in1998.

Mohamed is an experienced
internationat food manufacturing
executive, who has held senior
positionsin Kellogg, Danone and
Godiva Chocolatier and has
previously held Non-Executive
Director positions including at
Nomad Foods, a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange.

Kate was appointed Chief Financial
Officer at McClaren Group in April 2021.
Prior tojoining McClaren Group, Kate
was Chief Financial Officer of TalkTalk
Group and has previously held positions
onthe Dixons Carphone plc Executive
Committee. Kate began her careerin
audit with PricewaterhouseCoopers,
qualifying as an ACA before moving to
Merrill Lynch as a Director within the
retail sector equity research team,
where she spent the next tenyears. .

Appointed since Appointed since Appointed since Appointed since Appointed since

2 August 2022 1February 2022 13 March 2006 21June 2021 1June 2019

Independent Independent Independent Independent Independent

Yes n/a n/a Yes Yes

Committee membership External appointments External appointments Committee membership Committee membership

Chair of Nominations Committee.

External appointments

Chair of Travel Counsellors and
Hobbycraft. Trustee of Barnardos.
Operating Partner Advent
International.

Chair of the Employers Forum
For Reducing Re-offending.

Non-Executive Director and Chair
of the Audit Committee of

The Lakes Distillery Company plc.
Trustee Director of Business
inthe Community. Trustee

of Greggs Foundation.

As noted on page 66, Nigel Mills was appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 7 March 2023.

Member of Audit, Remuneration and
Nominations Committees.
External appointments

Senior Adviser at Bain Partners

Chair of Audit Committee.
Member of Remunerationand
Nominations Committees.

External appointments

CFO McLaren Group. Chair of Audit
Committee - British Olympic
Committee Foundation.




HELENA GANCZAKOWSKI

Non-Executive Director

SANDRA TURNER

Non-Executive Director

LYNNE WEEDALL

Non-Executive Director
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JONATHAN JOWETT

Company Secretary and General Counsel

Helena worked for Unilever for 23 years and
held senior positions in brand management and
marketing, including UK Marketing Director and
ultimately Head of Global Agencies. Helenawas
also previously a director of PAD, aleading
producer of sustainable cleaning brands.
Helena has a PhDin Engineering from the
University of Cambridge.

Sandra has been involved in the retail sector
throughout her career and was employed by
Tesco PLC, latterly as Commercial Director for
Tesco Ireland, from 1987 to 20089. Prior to this
she worked in sales and marketing roles for
Unilever and Wilkinson Sword. Sandra has
held a number of Non-Executive Directorships
in UK-listed companies, including McBride plc
and Countrywide PLC.

Lynne has beeninvolved in the retail sector
throughout her career, latterly as Group People
and Culture Director for Selfridges Ltd. Priorto
joining Selfridges Ltd, Lynne was Group Director
of Human Resources at Dixons Carphone plc
{now Currys pic)and has previously held senior
positions in companies such as Whitbread plc
and Tesco plc.

Jonathanis a lawyer by profession and has held

‘the position of Company Secretary for anumber

of FTSE 250 and FTSE Smallcap companies.
His previous employers include Avon Cosmetics
Limited. SSL International plc, Wagon plc and
Bakkavor Group.

Appointed since Appointed since Appointed since Appointed since
2January 2014 1May 2014 17May 2022 12 May 2010
Independent independent Independent Independent

Yes Yes Yes n/a

Committee membership Committee membership Committee membership External appointments

Member of Audit, Remuneration and
Nominations Committees.

External appointments

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
and Remuneration Committee Chair of Croda
International Plc. Owner and manager of a
consulting business working at a global level
with multi-national food businesses, helping
them to develop and implement strategies.

Senior Independent Non-Executive
Directorand Non-Executive Director
having oversight of colleague engagement.
Member of Remuneration, Audit and
Nominations Committees.

External appointments
Non-Executive Director of Huhtamaki OYJ.

Chair of Remuneration Committee. Member
of Audit and Nominations Committees.

External appointments

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director and
Remuneration Committee Chair at Dr. Martens
plcand Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
and Remuneration & Nomination Committee
Chair at Softcat plc. Non-Executive Director of
Stagecoach. Member of The Prince’s Trust Council.

Member of the British Retail Consortium Policy
Board. Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director of Newcastle Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust. Chair of Trustees of the
Great North Air Ambulance Service.
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The Nominations Committee uses a skills matrix
as it assesses the requirements for new recruits.
This is shown below, with incumbents’attributes:

MattDavies

Mohamed Elsarky

Kate Ferry

HelenaGanczakowskl  SandraTurner

Rolsin Currle Richard Hutton

Lynne Weedall

UK PLC Executive Director experience

UK PLC Non-Executive Director [
outside Greggs

Finance/banking [ ]

Mergers and acquisitions [ ]

HR and Remuneration Committee experience

Food manufacturing experience

Food retailing experience

Food safety, Health and safety

International experience

Broader consumer sector experience

Marketing expertise

Digital expertise

Gender diversity

Ethnicity diversity

Corporate governance )




GOVERNANCE REPORT - CHAIR'S INTRODUCTION

CHAIR'S INTRODUCTION

Dear Shareholder

Welcome to my introduction to the governance section
of the Greggs annual report, following my appointment
as Chair on1November 2022.

lam delighted to have been asked to Chair the Board of
Greggs, acompany | have long admired. | have spent my
first few months since | was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director visiting our operations and meeting colleagues
across the business.

Culture and purpose

At Greggs, our purpose is to provide our customers with
great tasting, freshly prepared food at affordable prices.
Our colleagues are what makes our business successful.

We are focused on providing them with a great place to work,
where they feel valued and have the opportunity to fulfil their
potential. Our values are at the core of how we operate, and
the Board experiences those values whenever it meets with
colleagues across the breadth of our operations.

Our people

We remain focused an improving our diversity and inclusion
across the business. Earlier in the year, we achieved
accreditation to the National Equality Standard, and we
now have a number of working groups where colleagues
have the opportunity to consider ways that we canimprove
their experience as acolleague at Greggs.

Board composition and operations

It has been another very busy year for the Nominations
Committee, firstidentifying and recommending Lynne
Weedall to the Board. Lynne is a highly experienced
executive and Non-Executive Director, and has assumed

the Chair of the Remuneration Committee in anticipation
of Helena Ganczakowski's stepping down from the Board
following the 2023 AGM.

As noted below, we have recruited Nigel Mills as Senior
Independent Director to replace Sandra Turner, who will also
step down from the Board after the AGM. | have placed on
record the Board's thanks for their nine years on the Board
overseeing significant change and growth. The Nominations
Committee also oversaw my recruitment, which is reported
oninmore detail on page 67, and on behalf of the Company
I'thank lan Durant for ensuring such a smooth hand over, and
for his leadership of the Board since 2013.

The Board has largely met in person during the year, save
for two shorter meetings which were held virtually. In
September we met with senior managers from the retail
team and visited our own and competitor shops, talking with
colleagues and customers about their Greggs experience.
We also visited the Birmingham distribution centre and
spoke with colleagues who are working so hard to deliver
quality products to our customers. More details of how we
engage with stakeholders are set out on pages 54 to 61.

The Greggs Pledge and sustainability

The Greggs Pledge is a topic of regular focus, and the

Board receives frequent updates on progress against those
commitments, and on the wider sustainability agenda. More
details of our activities are set out on pages 32 to 34, and in
our separate sustainability report, The Greggs Pledge, which
can be found on the corporate website. The team have
produced a much-extended report of our approach to and
compliance with the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures, which can be found on pages 35 to 41. There are
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acouple of areas that we continue to work on to achieve full
compliance, but we are very pleased with the progress so far.
We have set near-term science-based emissions reduction
targets which have been approved by the Science Based
Targets initiative, and again further details can be found on
page 35.

Governance and reporting

| am aware that Greggs has a good record of governance,
ensuring that it has the right processes in place to support
the business as we continue to deliver our growth plans as
were highlighted by management in October 2021. However,
there were two areas from the UK Corporate Governance
Code(2018){'the Governance Code’) where the Company

did not comply during the year. Those are in respect of
Provision 18, as my predecessor remained on the Board

for ten years and 11 months as he oversaw Chief Executive
succession delayed by the pandemic, and Provision 38,
where our Chief Financial Officer's pension contribution
was being aligned with that of the majority of the workforce
over time, but has since been broughtinto line. Otherwise
we were compliant with the Governance Code during 2022,
and | invite you to consider that alongside the report on how
the Directors have fulfilled their duties in accordance with
s172 Companies Act 2006.

|look forward to welcoming shareholders to our AGM which
will be held in Newcastle on 17 May 2023.

Matt Davies
Chair
7March 2023
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This Governance Report sets out how the Company
has applied the principles in the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code during its financial period ended
310ecember 2022. A copy of the Code is available at
https://www.frc.org.uk/directors/corporate-
governance/uk-corporate-governance-code

Board composition, succession and evaluation

The Board has seen several changes in the year. Roisin Currie
joined the Board as CEO Designate on 1February 2022, and
became Chief Executive following her election to the Board
by shareholders immediately following the close of the
AGMon 17 May, as Roger Whiteside retired from the Board.
Onthe same date, Lynne Weedall joined the Board as
anindependent Non-Executive Director, and will offer
herself fcr election by shareholders at the 2023 AGM.

Lynne became Chair of the Remuneration Committee in
September 2022, taking over from Helena Ganczakowski
ahead of an informal consultation with certain institutional
investors and proxy advisers in advance of the renewal of
our remuneration policy due to be tabled at the AGM in 2023.

lan Durant stepped down as a Director and Chair on
310ctober 2022, having been a Non-Executive Director since
October 2011 and Chair since May 2013. lan had been invited
to extend his tenure on the Board beyond the nine years
anticipated by Provision 19 of the Governance Code, in order
to oversee the Chief Executive succession plan which had
beendelayed as a result of the pandemic. In that respect,
the Comgany did not comply with the Governance Code,

but despite this lan had been re-elected by shareholders

at the AGMin May 2022 with over 35% of those who voted
supporting his re-appointment. Our new Chair, Matt Davies,
will step down from the Board and offer himself for election
by shareholders at the AGM in May 2023.

As part of the appointment of any new Non-Executive
Director, anumber of engagements with colleagues are set
up to familiarise the appointee with all operations, including
those in shops, at production and distribution sites, and at
Greggs House. As Raisin Currie had not previously held a
directorship of a public company, her inductionincluded
reference to the roles and responsibilities of beinga
company director of alisted company.

Once a new Non-Executive Director has been on the Board
for around six months, they are asked to present to the Board
their firstimpressions’. This provides feedback on strategy,
processes and procedures including the induction process,
and a view on key strategic priorities for the future. This
facilitates further debate and discussion around the Board
table, with agreed areas for attention in the coming months.
In particular it helps identify areas within the induction
process where greater or lesser focus may be appropriate.
As their nine-year terms have or will have expired by the
time of the AGM in 2023, both Sandra Turner and Helena
Ganczakowski will leave the Board following the close

of that meeting. Helena relinquished the role of Chair of the
Remuneration Committee in September 2022 following the
appointment of Lynne Weedall. As announced on 7 March
2023,the Board has appointed Nigel Milis as an independent
Non-Executive Director. Following his election to the

Board by shareholders, Nigel will assume the role of Senior
Independent Director when Sandra Turner steps down from
the Board at the close of the AGM on 17 May 2023.

Nigel had a distinguished executive career having been
Chief Executive at Hoare Govett and Chair of Corporate
Broking at Citi Group, advising a wide range of companies
including a significant number within the Consumer sector.
He currently holds the Senior Independent Director role at
both John Wood Group PLC and at Persimmon plc, where
he was also acting Chair during 2018.

The Nominations Committee is also currently in the process
of recruiting an additional independent Non-Executive Director.

Sharing Board responsibility

Thereis a clear written statement of the division of
responsibilities between the Chair and the Chief Executive,
and the Chair is considered by all of the Directors to have been
independent on his appointment, and continues to be so.

There is a written statement of the responsibilities of

the Senior Independent Director, duly approved by the
Nominations Committee and the Board. Sandra Turner
was Senior Independent Director throughout the year,
and met with the other Non-Executive Directors on at
least one occasion in the absence of the Chair. Sandra
also chaired the Nominations Committee as it set about
the search for anew Board Chair, ultimately leading to the
Committee recommending to the Board the appointment
of Matt Davies, initially as anindependent Non-Executive
Director and Chair Designate.

During the year, lan Durant continued his adopted practice
of holding regular and informal conversations with the
Non-Executive Directors, collectively and individually
ensuring that they had plenty of opportunity to raise any
concerns that they might have or to express opinions.

lan also had regular sessions with the Executive Directors
and members of the Operating Board. Matt Davies is now
developing his own style of leadership and interaction
with Board members and senior management.



The Board has three main Committees, being the Audit,
Remuneration and Nominations Committees, each chaired
by anindependent Non-Executive Director. Terms of
reference for each of the Committees, which were last
reviewed by the Board and re-adopted by the respective
Committee in November 2022, can be found on the
corporate website. Details of the work of those Ccmmittees
can be found on pages 72 to 77{Audit Committee report),

78 t0 100 (Directors’ remuneration report), and 67 to 68
(Nominations Committee update).

The Board generally schedules six formal meetings in each
year, and then meets from time to time as may be required.
Board and Committee meetings are well attended, and
attendance is set out in the following table:

Audit Remuneration Nominations
Attendance Board

Current Directors

Matt Davies' 2/2 n 2/2
Roisin Currie? 6/6

Richard Hutton 8/8

Mohamed Elsarky 8/8 44 44 6/6
Kate Ferry 8/8 414 414 6/6
Helena Ganczakowski  8/8 414 414 6/6
Sandra Turner 8/8 414 414 6/6
Lynne Weedall® 4/4 212 313 313

Retired Directors

lan Durant® 6/6 5/5

Roger Whiteside® 4/4

Matt Davis joined 1August 2022

Roisin Currie appointed 1February 2022

Lynne Weedall appointed 17 May 2022

lan Durant retired 310ctober 2022

Roger Whiteside retired as a Director 17 May 2022

W=

Nominations Committee update

The Nominations Committee is chaired by the Board Chair
and has written terms of reference that are reviewed

each year and approved by the Board and adopted by the
Committee. Those terms of reference, which are available
on the Company's corporate website, set out the
responsibilities of the Committee. All of the Non-Executive
Directors are members of the Committee, in line with the
Board’s current policy of having all Non-Executive Directors
appointed to each of the three main Committees. The Chief
Executiveisaregular attendee at Nominations Committee
meetings, and from time to time the Chief Financial Officer
and the People Director are also invited.

The Committee’s primary responsibility is to ensure plans are
inplace for orderly succession to the Board, and also to the
Operating Board when that is not reviewed by the Boardas a
whole. During 2022, the Board received a presentation from
the Chief Executive and from the People Director on the
succession plan for the Operating Board Birectors, to include
areview of potential candidates and their proximity to being
ready to take up an appointment as and when appropriate.
During the year, there were two appointments to the
Operating Board, both of which were internal promotions.

During 2022, the Committee’s primary task was to oversee
the recruitment of a Chair to replace lan Durant, who was
to step down from the Board having overseen the Chief
Executive succession. In this respect, Sandra Turner led
the Committee, supported by Heidrick and Struggles (H&S),
the Committee’s retained adviser{who have no connection
with the Company or any individual Director). The key stages
of that process included:

- H&S conducting one-to-one confidential interviews with
all Board Directors on the key criteria(skills, experiences
and personal characteristics)required for the new Chair
including interviews with the outgoing Board Directors.
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- Board Directors participated in the H&S Success Profile
Builder, an online, mabile-enabled survey to ensure
alignment on the strategic context and collective
priorities amongst Board members.

- Arole specification for the new Chair was prepared
forand approved by the Board.

- H&S conducted amarket mapping exercise to identify
Chair candidates who met the agreed selection criteria
and then began initial informal referencing of candidates
approved by the Nominations Committee.

- Interested Chair candidates were introduced to Sandra
Turner and Helena Ganczakowski for an initial meeting,
supported by confidential candidate reports.

- Chair candidates met with Roisin Currie ahead
of the Committee agreeing on preferred candidates
to take forward.

- Preferred candidates met remaining Non-Executive
Directors and the Chief Financial Officer.

- Preferred Chair candidates met with lan Durant for
information gathering purposes and due diligence.

The process lasted some five months, with the Nominations
Committee meeting during July 2022 and the Board decision
on the appeintment being made on 1August.

Inthe meantime, the Nominations Committee, led by Board
Chair, lan Durant, had also undertaken a process to appoint
anew Non-Executive Director with experience of chairing
Remuneration Committees, with a view to replacing Helena
Ganczakowski as Chair of the Remuneration Committee
given that Helena’s nine-year term as a Director was due to
expire in January 2023. The Committee was again supported
by H&S, and on 27 April 2022 the Board announced that
Lynne Weedall had been appointed with effect from the
close of the AGM on 17 May 2022. Lynne will step down as
aDirector at the AGMin 2023, and will offer herself for
election by shareholders.

Greggs plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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In selecting new Non-Executive Directors the Nominations
Committee uses a skills matrix (as shown on page 64)to
assess the necessary and preferred attributes in potential
candidates, and for the exercise undertaken in 2022, the
assessment was reviewed by H&S and used to develop the
role specification. The Nominations Committee also takes
into account other demands on the potential candidates’
time and asks them to confirm they will be able to commit the
necessary time to Greggs, with that commitment ultimately
beingincluded in the Letter of Appointment.

The Nominations Committee has considered the
contribution of each of the Directors, and has confirmed
to the Board its recommendation that all Non-Executive
Directors including the Chair should be appointed or
re-appointed at the AGMin May 2023.

Board evaluation and activity

Asrequired by the Governance Code, the Board undertakes
anannual evaluation of its activities and effectiveness and
those of its Committees. An externally facilitated evaluation
was undertaken in 2021, supported by Grant Thornton, and
therefore in December 2022, under the leadership of new
Board Chair Matt Davies, it was agreed that aninternal
assessment be undertaken, using the Board Clic online tool.
This generated areport for the Board and each of its
Committees, and also a comparison with scores from the
previous year when the tool had also been used to support
Grant Thornton's review. The Company Secretary produced a
summary of key themes arising from the reports, and having
discussed those themes and the reports, aseries of actions
were agreed as part of the Board's objectives for 2023.

In addition the Non-Executive Directors meet without the
Chair present to appraise the performance of the Chair. The
Non-Executive Directors met during 2022 to appraise the
performance of lan Durant during 2021. Given the change of
Chair announced in the summer of 2022 which was effected

on1November 2022, the Senior Independent Director and
the remaining Non-Executive Directors did not consider an
appraisal of either the outgoing orincoming Chair's
performance appropriate.

The Board made a number of key decisions across the year
including the significant appointments of a new Chief
Executive and Chair, and plans for significant supply chain
investment as had been envisaged at the Capital Markets Day
held in October 2021. Other matters considered across the
year included:

January Appointment of CEQ Designate; budget for 2023; risk
review; governance report for the annual report; and

Board evaluation.

March Preliminary results and annual report; the
partnership with Primark; the commencement of a
review of the potential for expansion beyond the UK;
aninvestor relations strategy; and resource

requirements.

May Supply chain development; a review by joint broker
Investec; and AGM preparation including
consideration of proxy adviser reports and voting.

June The annual strategy meeting where topics included
customer and market insight, the customer and
workforce of the future; anda deep dive into

sustainability and climate change.

July Interim results; business plan 2022 progress
updates; and the appointment of a Chair Designate.

September A visit to a number of our shops in Birminghamand a
visit to the Birmingham distribution centre; a review
of stakeholder engagement; a market update and
presentation from UBS as joint broker; areview of
Operating Board succession; and an update on
supply chain development plans.

November A presentation on the outcomes of the annual
employee opinion survey; areview of food safety and
health and safety; and a presentation from the new

Chair of the Greggs Foundation on its recent activity.

Diversity and inclusion (D&I)

The Board as awhole, rather than the Nominations
Committee, monitors the gender balance in the Company.
67% of our employees are women, with female workers
largely within retail shops. There is a strong representation
of women at the most senior level. Of the seven Non-
Executive Directors(including the Chair)four are female.
Greggs is one of 18 FTSE 350 companies to be led by afemale
Chief Executive. At Operating Board level, including the two
Executive Directors, four out of 11are women and
approximately 46% of roles reportinginto an Operating
Board Director are held by women. Further information on
our statutory gender reporting can be found on page 42.

In 2021, we set out our intention to pursue the National
Equality Standard which we successfully achievedin 02 2022.

Key to our success is having leaders who advocate for D&I,
supporting people throughout their employment journey and
having strategies in place to drive change. During 2022 we
established a D&l steering group, with cross functional
representation at senior management level.

Our colleague networks continue to develop, supported
by their Operating Board sponsors.

Our LGBTOQ+ colleague network worked on recommendations
for optional pronouns to be included on name badges.

Our Ethnicity network supported the development and
delivery of a Zero Tolerance campaign focusing on customer
attitude towards colleagues and our Disability network
provided invaluable insight and feedback to develop our
Neurodiversity Guides covering ADHD, Autism, Dyslexia

and Dyspraxia. We continue to listen to and learn from our
networks to understand how we canimprove the way we

do things at Greggs and how we can be more inclusive of
colleagues from minority groups.



A more comprehensive outline of our achievements can be
found in The Greggs Pledge report, available at corporate.
greggs.co.uk/responsibility/the-greggs-pledge.

As part of the DTR 7.2.8A disclosure, pages 32 and 33 are
incorporated by reference into this Directors’ report.

Other disclosures

Directors and their interests

The names of the Directors in office during the year, together
with their relevant interests in the share capital of the
Company at 1January 2022 and 31 December 2022 are set
out in the Directors’ remuneration report on page 98. Details
of the Directors’ share options are set out in the Directors’
remuneration report on page 96.

Directors’ indemnities and conflicts

As at the date of this report, indemnities are in force under
which the Company has agreed to indemnify the Directors,
to the extent permitted by law, in respect of losses arising
out of, or in connection with, the execution of their duties,
powers or responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

The indemnities do not apply in situations where the relevant
Director has been guilty of fraud or wilful misconduct.

Under the authority granted to them in the Company's
articles of association, the Board has considered carefully
any situation declared by any Director pursuant to which
they have or might have a conflict of interest and, where
it considers it appropriate to do so, has authorised the
continuation of that situation. At each Board meeting,
aSchedule of Potential Conflicts of Interest is reviewed
and Directors are asked to declare any new or changed
interests. In exercising their authority, the Directors
have had regard to their statutory and other duties to
the Company. All Directors have access to the Company
Secretary as and when required.

Substantial shareholdings

At 6 March 2023 the only notified holdings of substantial
voting rights in respect of the issued share capital of the
Company (which may have altered since the date of such
notification, without any requirement for the Company
to have beeninformed)were:
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Authority to purchase shares

At the AGM on 17 May 2022, the shareholders passed a
resolution authorising the purchase by the Company of

its own shares to a maximum of 10,100,000 ordinary shares
of two pence each.

That authority had not been used as at 31 December 2002.
The authority remains in force until the conclusion of the
AGM in 2023 or 16 August 2023, whichever is the earlier. It is
the Board's intention to seek approval at the 2023 AGM for

the renewal of this authority.

Tal directive information

Percentage of

Number of Issued share
Shareholder shares held capital
Royal London Asset Management 6,117,002 5.99%
BlackRock, Inc. 5,185,999 5.08%
Schroders plc 5,121,967 5.02%
MFS Investment Management 5,049,548 4.95%
Aviva plc 4,065,885 3.98%

Additional information

- Future business developments: details of future business
developments can be found throughout the strategic
report onpages1to6l.

- Financial risk management: details of our financial risk
management policies and objectives can be found in Note
2ofthe accounts.

- Theinformation set out within the governance reportin
pages 65to 71forms part of the Directors’report.

- Greenhouse gas emissions: All disclosures concerning
the Group's greenhouse gas emissions (as required to be
disclosed under the Companies Act 2006 (strategic report
and Directors' report)Regulations 2013) are contained in
the TCFD report on pages 35 to 4.

- Dividends: details of the dividends declared
and paid are given in Note 22 of the accounts.

- Stakeholder engagement: details of the Group's
engagement with colleagues, suppliers, customers
and others are given on pages 54 to 61.

Non-financial reporting regulations

The information required by sections 414CA and 414CB of the
Companies Act 2006 is included within the strategic report
on pages 1to 61and the Directors’ report on pages 62 to 101.

Following the implementation of the European Directive on
Takeover Bids by certain provisions of the Companies Act
2008, the Company is required to disclose certain additional
informationin the Birectors’report. This informationis set
out below:

- The Company has one class of share in issue being
ordinary shares of 2 pence each. As at 7March 2023, there
were 102,120,602 such ordinary sharesinissue. There are
na shares in the Company that grant the holder special
rights with regard to the control of the Company:

- Atgeneral meetings of the Company, on a show of hands,
every shareholder presentin person or by proxy has one
vote only and, in the case of a poll, every shareholder
presentin person or by proxy has one vote for every share
in the capital of the Company held;

- The Company's articles of association set out the
circumstances in which shares may become
disenfranchised. No shareholder is entitled, unless the
Directors otherwise determine, in respect of any share
held to be present or vote at a general meeting either
personally or by proxy(or to exercise any other right in
relation to meetings of the Company)in respect of that
share in certain circumstances if any call or other sum
is payable and remains unpaid, if the shareholderis in
default in complying with a duly-served notice under
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section 793(1) of the CA 2006 or if any shareholder has
failed to reply to a duly-served notice requiring them to
provide a written statement stating they are the beneficial
owner of the shares;

- Anotice convening a general meeting can containa

statement that a shareholder is not entitled toattend and
vote at a general meeting unless their name is entered
on the register of members of the Company at a specific
time (not more than 48 hours before the meeting)and

if a shareholder’s name is not so entered, they are, not
entitled to attend and vote;

- Under the Company's articles of association the Directors
may, in their absolute discretion, refuse to register the
transfer of ashare in certified formin certain circumstances
where the Company has a lien on the share(provided that
the Directors do not exercise their discretion so as to
prevent dealingsin partly paid shares from taking place
on an open and proper basis), where a shareholder has
failed to reply to a duly-served notice under section 793{1)
CA 2006 orif atransfer of ashare is in favour of more than
four persons jointly. In addition, the Directors may decline
to recognise any instrument of transfer unlessitisin
respect of only one class of share and is deposited at the
address at which the register of members of the Company
is held{or at such other place as the Directors may
determine)accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s)
and such other evidence as the Directors may reasonably
require to show the right of the transferor to make the
transfer. Inrespect of shares held inuncertificated form
the Directors may only refuse to register transfarsin
accordance with the Uncertificated Securities Regulations
2001(as amended from time to time};

- Under the Company’s code on dealings in securities

in the Company, persons discharging managerial
responsibilities and some other senior executives may
in certain circumstances be restricted as to when they
can transfer shares in the Company;

There are no agreements between shareholders known
to the Company which may result in restrictions on the
transfer of shares or on voting rights;

Where, under an employee share plan operated by the
Company, participants are the beneficial owners of
shares but not the registered owner, the voting rights

are normally exercised by the registered owner at the
direction of the participant;

The Company’s articles of association may only be
amended by special resolution at a general meeting

of the shareholders;

The Company’s articles of association set out how
Directors are appointed and replaced. Directors can be
appointed by the Board or by the shareholdersin a general
meeting. At each AGM, any Director appointed by the
Board since the last AGM must retire from office butis
eligible for election by the shareholders. Furthermore,
the Board hasresolved that, inline with the Corporate
Governance Code(2018 revision), all the Directors will be
subject to annual re-election by shareholders. Under the
CA 2006 and the Company’s articles of association, a
Director can be removed from office by the shareholders
inageneral meeting;

The Company’s articles of association set out the powers
of the Directors. The business of the Company is to be
managed by the Directors who may exercise all the
powers of the Company and do on behalf of the Company
all such acts as may be exercised and done by the
Company and are not by any relevant statutes or the
Company’s articles of association required to be
exercised or done by the Company in general meeting,
subject to the provisions of any relevant statutes and the
Company’s articles of association and to such regulations
as may be prescribed by the Company by special resolution;
Under the CA 2006 and the Company's articles of
association, the Directors’ powers include the power to
allot and buy back shares in the Company. At each AGM
resolutions are proposed granting and settinglimits on
these powers;

- The Company is not party to any significant agreements
which take effect, alter or terminate uponachangein
contrel of the Company, following a takeover bid; and

- Thereare noagreements between the Company and its
Directors or employees providing for compensation for
loss of office or employment{whether through
resignation, purported redundancy or otherwise}that
occurs because of a takeover bid. However, provisions
inthe employee share plans operated by the Company
may allow options to be exercised on a takeover.

Significant relationships

The Group does not have any contractual or other
relationships with any single party which are essential to the
business of the Group and, therefore, no such relationships
have beendisclosed.

Colleagues

What makes Greggs so special is its culture - the way our
people behave and support each other. We want everyone to
feelwelcome at Greggs and our colleagues to be able to be
themselves at work, whatever their background, preferences
orviews. Where colleagues or prospective colleagues have
adisability then discussions will be had with individuals to
review any adjustments required and every effort will be
made to support them. Greggs is committed to creating
awork environment free of discrimination, bullying,
harassment and victimisation, where everyone is treated
equally with dignity and respect. This applies in all aspects
of employment including, recruitment and selection,
promotion, transfer, training or other developmental
opportunities, pay and benefits, other terms of employment,
discipline and selection for redundancy. Our colleague
networks, covering LGBTQ+, ethnicity and disability provide
valuable insight and feedback and help us to develop training
for our colleagues and understand how we can improve the
way we do things at Greggs. Details on the contribution of our
networks can be found on page 68.



Accountability, audit and going concern

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a fair,
balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
position and prospects. In order to assist the Board to
comply with the requirements within the Corporate
Governance Code, each year the Audit Committee is
requested to undertake an assessment of the anaual report
and to make arecommendation to the Board. This request
has been enshrined within the Audit Committee’s terms of
reference, which are available at corporate.greggs.co.uk.

The actions undertaken by the Audit Committee

in confirming its advice to the Board included the
consideration of a detailed review that has been
undertaken by the Head of Business Assurance and
reviewing the annual report as a whole to confirm that it
presents a fair, balanced and understandable assessment.
In consicering the advice of the Audit Committee, and
having reviewed the annual report including the contents
of the strategic report on pages 1to 61, together with the
statutory accounts themselves, the Board duly considers
the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable, and provides the necessary
information for shareholders to assess the Company’s
performance, business model and strategy.

A statement of Directors’responsibilitiesin respect of the
preparation of accountsis given on page 101. A statement of
auditor's responsibilities is given in the report of the auditor
on page 106.

After making enquiries, the Directors have areasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

For thisreason, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the accounts{see basis of preparation
on page 114). The Board’s viability statement made in
accordance with Corporate Governance Code Provision 31
can be found on page 53.

Policies

Freedom of association

At Greggs, we recognise the right of all employees to
freedom of association and collective bargaining. Whilst we
do not have a formal Freedom of Association policy, the
Company encourages ail its employees in supply sites, shops
and offices to become, and remain, members of a union.

Bribery and corruption

Greggs has an Anti-Bribery and Corruption policy which
applies to all employees and prohibits the offering, giving,
seeking or acceptance of any bribe inany form to any person
or company by acting onits behalf, in order to gain an
advantage in an unethical way.

Business conduct

We have a specific policy that sets out the standards of
ethical behaviour that are expected of all employees. Graded
managers, and all members of the procurement department,
are required to make an annual confirmation

of their compliance with the policy.
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Whistle-blowing

Our’'whistle-blowing’ policy creates an environment

where employees are able to raise concerns without fear of
disciplinary action being taken against them as aresult of any
disclosure. Any matters raised are treated in confidence andan
independent review will be undertaken where it is appropriate.
The Chair of the Audit Committee is the designated first point
of contact for any concerns which cannot be addressed
through normal management processes.

Political donations

Greggs has a clear palicy forbidding political donations
or contributions. This includes financial and in-kind
contributions made by the Company.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each of the Directors who held office at the date of approval
of this Directors’ report confirms that, so faras they are
individually aware there is no relevant audit information

of which the Company’s auditor is unaware and that they
have taken all the steps that they ought to have takenas a
Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditor

is aware of that information.

By order of the Board

Jonathan D Jowett

Company Secretary

7March 2023

Greggs plc(CRN 502851)

Greggs House, Quorum Business Park
Newcastle upon Tyne NE12 8BU
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Introduction

Dear Shareholder

As Chair of the Audit Committee, | am pleased to present
the Committee’s report for the 52 weeks ended
31December 2022.

The Committee plays animportant part in the governance
of the Company with its principal activities focused on the
integrity of financial reporting, quality and effectiveness of
internal and external audit, risk management and the system
of internal control.

Inthis report, | aim to share some of the Committee’s
discussions from the year, providing insight regarding the
role of the Committee, the main matters considered by it
during the year and the conclusions drawn. The Committee
meets formally at key times within the reporting calendar
and the agendas for its meetings are designed tc cover all
significant areas of risk over the course of the year and

to provide oversight and challenge to the key financial
judgements, controls and processes that operate within
the Company.

During 2022 the Committee has:

- Reviewed the performance of RSM as external auditor
following their first full audit cycle.

- Overseen the development of our TCFD reporting
following our first such reportin 2021. The TCFD report
is set out on pages 35to 41.

- Maintained an awareness of cyber security, and reviewed
the processes and controls in place across the business.

- Overseen the continuing rollout of our new Enterprise
Risk Management (ERM)framework, which was
implemented in 2021, ensuring that our approach
remains robust and fit for purpose.

The Committee continues to keep its activities under review
inthe light of the Government's audit and governance reform
agenda. The Committee has received regular updates
following the publication of the draft Audit Reform Bill during
2022 and ahead of the introduction of the Audit, Reporting
and Governance Authority(ARGA)and it is ready to respond
to anticipated regulatory changes.

During 2023 the Committee will oversee arisk evolution
project, reviewing and refreshing our approach to risk and
insurance. This will ensure that we have the appropriate risk
financing strategy in place as the business continues to grow.
The Committee will be involved in redefining the Company’'s
risk appetite, which is a key early step in the process.

Within the scope of our ongoing review of the approach to
risk management, the Committee will be supportingareview
and refresh of the Risk Committee’s terms of reference.

The Committee will also monitor progress with the
development of business continuity planning across the
business. This project is being undertaken to strengthen
and formalise existing arrangements and improve
business resilience.

Overall, | am satisfied that the activities of the Committee
enable it to gain a good understanding of the key matters
impacting the Company during the year along with oversight
of the governance and operation of its key controls, and
ultimately to draw the conclusions set out in the following
report. | will be available at the AGM to answer any questions
about our work.

Kate Ferry
Chair of the Audit Committee
7March 2023



Composition
The Audit Committee is comprised of the following:

Kate Ferry(Chair)

Helena Ganczakowski

Sandra Turner

Mohamed Elsarky

Lynne Weedall(from 17 May 2022)

Itis the practice of the Company for allindependent Non-Executive Directors to serve as
members of the Audit Committee.

Trainingis provided for any new members of the Audit Committee by way of a thorough
induction process which includes access to the external auditor, the Head of Business
Assurance and relevant members of management.

The Committee provides independent and robust challenge to management and our internal
and external auditors, ensures there are effective and high-quality controls in place and
appropriate judgements are taken, with a particular focus on matters that involve either
ahigh degree of judgement and/or are significant to the accounts.

The Directors’biographies on pages 62 to 64 detail the Committee members’ previous
experience and demonstrate that they have experience individually in arange of disciplines
relevant to Greggs’business. The Board considers that Kate Ferry has recent and relevant
financial experience.

Role and responsibilities
The terms of reference of the Committee can be accessed at: http:/corporate.greggs.co.uk/
investors/corporate-governance/company-documents.

The key responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

- Ensuring that the accounting and financial policies and practices of the Company are
proper and effective;

- Assisting the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by monitoring the integrity of
the accounts and information published by the Company and reviewing and challenging
significant financial judgements contained in them;

- Advising the Board on whether it believes the annual report and accounts, taken as awhole,
is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s position and performance, business model
and strategy;
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- Reviewing the internal financial controls and the Group's approach to risk management;

- Overseeingwhistle-blowing arrangements;

- Monitoring compliance with the Listing Rules and the recommendations of the UK
Corporate Governance Code;

- QOverseeing the Company's internal auditors and reviewing the effectiveness and
objectivity of the audit process;

- Overseeing the Company’s external auditors, reviewing their independence and objectivity
and monitoring the effectiveness of the audit process:

- Developing and implementing policy on the external auditor’s provision of non-audit
services; and

- Reportingto the Board on how it has discharged its responsibilities.

. Meetings during the year

The Audit Committee met four times during the year. Details of Committee members’
attendance are given on page 67. All members attended every meeting they were eligible
to attend. Detailed papers are prepared and circulated in advance of Committee meetings
by both management(including internal audit) and the external auditor, thereby allowing
informed discussions, challenge and decision making to take place at meetings.

The Committee normally invites the Company Chair, the Executive Directors, the Head of
Business Assurance and the external auditor to attend its meetings. Time is set aside
bi-annually for discussion with the external auditor and with the Head of Business Assurance,
in each case in the absence of all Executive Directors. The Committee also has access to the
Company’s management team and to its auditor and can seek further professional advice, at
the Company’s cost, if required. The Chair has regular contact with the Chief Financial Officer,
and internal and external auditors, in addition to scheduled Committee meetings to ensure
that emerging issues are addressed. She also has access to an audit partner independent of
the partner responsible for the audit.

Financial reporting

© In2022 the Audit Committee reviewed the 2021 annual report, interim results, preliminary

results announcement and reports from the external auditor on the outcome of their reviews
and audits.

During the year, and up to the date of this report, the Committee considered key accounting
issues and judgements and related disclosures in the Group’s accounts. The significant areas
of judgement considered by the Committee in relation to the accounts for the 52 weeks ended
31December 2022 are as follows:

Greggs plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

73



74

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Area of focus

Action taken

Accounting for leases

Under IFRS 16 lease liabilities, representing the obligation to make lease payments, are recognised
onthe balance sheet together with corresponding right-of-use assets. In the income statement
rent costs are replaced by a straight-line depreciation charge on eachright-of-use asset

and aninterest charge that reduces over the lease term.

At the end of 2022 the Group has recognised right-of-use assets of £281.6 million
{2021: £263.6 million)and lease liabilities totalling £301.3 million{2021: £283.2 million).
Charges to the income statement of £52.8 million{(2021: £48.7 million}in respect of
depreciation and £6.8 million{2021: £6.3 million)in respect of interest were recognised.

The sensitivities of the assumptions on this amount are set out an page 116.

The Committee continues to review and monitor developmentsin this area to ensure that judgements made
areup to date and remain valid and that the approach adopted is still appropriate to the Group’s circumstances.

The Committee considers that the judgements made are appropriate to the Group’s particular circumstances.

Fair, balanced and understandable
The Committee is responsible for advising the Board on whether it believes the annual report and
accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable.

The Committee received a report from the Head of Business Assurance who is not involved in the
preparation of the annual report and accounts and who conducted an independent review of it.
The following factors were considered during the course of this review:

- Ensuring that all the statements are consistent with one another;

- Verifying that figures in the narrative sections are consistent with the relevant financial detail;
- Identifying any duplication of information;

- Confirming that ‘bad news'is inciuded, as well as ‘good news’; and

- Highlighting any inappropriate use of technical language or jargon.

The Audit Committee considered the feedback from this report alongside its own review of the
annual report and accounts when making its recommendation to the Board regarding fair, balanced
and understandable.

Going concern
The accounts continue to be prepared on a going concern basis.

Information provided by the Chief Financial Officer regarding future financial plans, risks and liquidity
was presented to the Committee to enable it to determine whether the going concern basis of
accounting remained appropriate.

The Committee reviewed and challenged the assumptions used and concluded that the Board is able
to make the going concern statement on page 71 of the Directors'report.

Viability
The Board is required to consider the period over which it is able to conclude that the Company will
remain viable, having taken into account severe but plausible risks and risk combinations.

The Committee reviewed the process undertaken by management to support and allow the Directors to
assess the Group’s long-term prospects and make its viability statement. The Committee considered
and provided input into the determination of which of the Group’s principal risks and combinations
thereof might have animpact on the Group's liquidity and solvency.

The Committee reviewed the results of management's scenario modelling and the stress testing of
these models. The Committee reviewed and challenged the assumptions used and concluded that the
Board is able to make the viability statement on page 53 of the strategic report.




Last year the following issues were separately disclosed as key areas of judgement in the

Audit Committee report but are no longer considered to merit separate disclosure:

- Theimpairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. Following
the recovery from the pandemic and associated improvement in trading performance,
management no longer considers there to be a global indicator of impairment and have
reverted to reviewing the estate for specific indicators of impairment.

- The valuation of defined benefit pension liabilities. In 2021 the Company agreed to a
schedule of contributions to the defined benefit pension scheme to address the actuarial
deficit at 6 April 2020. This introduced a need to consider the appropriate accounting and
whether a net pension surplus should be recognised. The conclusion reachedin 2021is not
expected to change from year to year.

The Committee also considered other key accountingissues and related disclosures in the

Group's accounts as follows:

- Whether the principles and judgements applied when management assess property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets for impairment remain appropriate;

- Whether the assumptions made in valuing thz defined benefit pension scheme liabilities
remain appropriate, including consideration of the discount rate, inflation rates and
mortality rates as well as the requirements of IFRIC 14: IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction;

- Whether there were any material items of income or expense in the year together
with the Financial Reporting Council's{FRC's)guidance on the subject;

- Whetherany changes in accounting policy were required following changes
inthe business or in legislation;

- Whether the Company's tax policy remains appropriate;

- Theimpact of changes in accounting standards and their relevance, if any,
to the Company; and

- Reports from the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer which
assess the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules.
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External audit

Assessing external audit effectiveness

The Audit Committee discussed and agreed the scope of the audit with the external auditor
and agreed their fees in respect of the audit.

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit in line with the FRC's
‘Practice aid for audit committees’(December 2019). It sought feedback from senior
management, by way of a detailed questionnaire, in respect of the effectiveness

of the audit process. ’

The Committee also considered the effectiveness of the audit through the reporting from and
communications with the auditor and an assessment of the auditor’s approach to key areas of
judgement and any errors identified during the course of the audit. '

The Committee concluded that the audit was effective and that the relationship and
effectiveness of the external auditor be kept under review.

Appointing the auditor and safeguards on non-audit services

The Committee’s policy on auditor appointment is to consider annually whether to conduct an
audit tender for audit quality or independence reasons. During 2020 the Audit Committee
conducted a full tender exercise for the appointment of a new auditor which resulted in the
appointment of RSM UK Audit LLP{RSM)as auditor at the AGM in May 2021.

Itis the responsibility of the Committee to monitor the independence and objectivity of the
external auditor {including the impact of any non-audit work undertaken by it)and its suitability
for reappointment.

The Company has a formal policy to ensure that the provision of non-audit services by the
external auditor for non-audit work does not compromise the auditor’s independence or
objectivity. It monitors the level and type of non-audit fees on an annual basis and ensures that
the overall level of non-audit fees remains in line with current ethical guidance governing the
accounting profession.

The Audit Committee favours a presumption that non-audit work will be awarded to a firm
other than the audit firm unless there is a good reason to use the auditor. An annual base plan
for non-audit fees paid to the external auditor is agreed in advance by the Audit Committee.
Expenditure in accordance with this plan can then be committed without further referral to
the Audit Committee. Expenditure that is notincluded in the agreed plan is subject to strict
authority limits and is reviewed by the Committee.
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Alluse of the external auditor for non-audit work must be reported to and approved by the
Committee. In circumstances where non-audit fees are significant relative to the audit fee
an explanation would be provided in the subsequznt Audit Committee report. In addition,
the Audit Committee ensures that the external auditor has its own policies and is subject to
professional standards designed to safeguard their independence as auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed whether, and is satisfied that, the Company's current
auditor, RSM, continues to be objective and independent of the Company. The Committee has
approved RSM to provide non-audit services during 2022 in respect of the review of turnover
certificates as required by certain shop landlords. Fees of £31,300 were billed during the year
for turnover certificate reviews, which represents 11.8% of the audit fee for the year.

Appointment of auditor

Inaccordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2008, a resolution for the reappointment
of RSM UK Audit LLP wili be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. The length of their tenure as
external auditor is two years.

Risk management and internal control

Internal control

The Group has an internal control enviranment designed to protect the business from the
material risks which have been identified. Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal controls and the Audit Committee has responsibility for
ensuring the effectiveness of these controls. The Committee receives updates from the
Business Assurance function on the internal control environment at every meeting,
covering both risk management and internal audit perspectives. This regular reporting
ensures timely review of any key issues. Whilst the Committee is updated on all internal
audit activity, those reports which conclude only limited assurance are considered in
greater detail, with a summary provided of key issues identified. This gives Committee
members assurance that appropriate actions have been taken or are in progress to
implement the audit recommendations.

The Committee considers the matters described above to be the main features of the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems in relation to the financial reporting process
for the undertakings includedin the consolidation as a whole. The Committee reviewed the
Company’s internal control environment and is satisfied that procedures are in place to ensure
that assets are well protected, authority levels for expenditure are clear, segregation of duties
exists and performance is regularly monitored. Processes are in place to ensure that key
controls are being operated and compliance with these processes is the subject of inspection
by the Internal Audit team within the Business Assurance function, and subsequent review and
oversight by the Audit Committee.

Whistle-blowing

The Company’s whistle-blowing policy is available to all employees via the intranet, as well
as via posters displayed across the business This gives information regarding how to raise
aconcern instrict confidence, and incorporates three escalation levels. Our policy has been
subject to aninternal audit during 2022, which made a number of recommendations, all of
which have beenimplemented or are in progress. This will ensure that our policy is aligned
with best practice and improve our colleagues’ awareness.

Our Audit Committee Chair is the final contact and resolution point for this process, and
received three calls during the year. All allegations were thoroughly investigated. One
colleague was assigned to work in a different shop as a result, but no formal action was taken.

Risk management process .

The Audit Committee receives an update on risk management at each of its meetings, and an
annual report providing detail on the overall process and key activities during the year. This
process ensures that the Committee meets its obligation to oversee the effectiveness of risk
management, and allows it to confirm to the Main Board that arrangements are appropriate.

The risk management process is explained in more detail on pages 46 to 52,



The Committee has reviewed the risk management process and is satisfied that appropriate
arrangements are in place to ensure that existing risks are properly managed across the
business and that processes are in place to identify and consider any new and emerging risks
inatimely manner. Key areas subject to specific review by the Committee include the following:

Areaof focus Action taken

Financialreporting Alljudgemental areasin the accounts are considered by the Committee, to
provide independent challenge to the process.

TCFD The Committee considered and confirmed the proposed statement regarding
TCFDrequirements.

Cyber risk and Cyber risk and information security is considered at every Audit Committee

information meeting, within the Head of Business Assurance’s activity update. In particular,

security there have been regular updates on the Information Security Management
System, the implementation of which continues to strengthen our cyber
resilience. The Committee is also apprised of future developments including
further testing and simulated attacks.

ERM The Audit Committee has received updates on the progress with the

implementation of our ERM model, including how the wider business is being
engaged in the process.

New and emerging New and emerging risks are raised and discussed by members of the Risk
risks Committee at each of its meetings.

Any significant matters are escalated to the Audit Committee for
further discussion.

Review of principal The Risk Committee discussed the key risks faced by the business during 2022

risks and and used this to develop the content of the statement of principal risks and

uncertainties uncertainties. This in turn was considered by the Audit Committee after the year
end, and approved for inclusion in this report, on pages 43 to 52.

Viability and going  As part of the annual report review, the Committee has considered and agreed
concern status the viability statement and the various scenarios modelled within it as part of
the assessment.

The Company’s adoption of a going concern basis for accounts preparation was

reviewed at the mid-year, as well as during the consideration of the annual report.

Internal audit
function

The Committee has reviewed the work and output of the internal audit function,
and concluded as to its effectiveness throughout the year.
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Internal audit

The work of the internal audit function is set out in more detail within the risk management
section on pages 46 to 52 of this annual report. The team is led by the Head of Business
Assurance, supported by 26 auditors, along with the Data Protection Analyst. The majority of
the audit resource is dedicated to the retail estate, including our franchise shops, providing
the Audit Committee with assurance that the required controls for safe operation within the
shops are in place and operating effectively.

The Business Assurance team presents an annual plan to the Audit Committee for approval,
setting out how the resource will be allocated across the business. Progress against this
planis monitored at subsequent meetings throughout the year. The effectiveness of the
team and its level of resource are reviewed by the Committee on an annual basis, including
aconsideration of outputs and customer feedback received.

Committee effectiveness .

As noted in the governance report on page 68 there was an externally facilitated evaluation of
the Board and its Committees during 2021. The evaluation for 2022 was therefore conducted
internally using an online tool, which generated areport specifically relating to the Audit
Committee. The Committee has considered the results of this evaluation and is satisfied that
it is operating effectively.

Kate Ferry
Chair of the Audit Committee
7March 2023
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee (the ‘Committee’),
|am pleased to present our Directors’ remuneration report
for2022. 1 have taken over the role of Remuneration
Committee Chair as of 1 September 2022 and would like to
take this opportunity to thank the former Chair, Helena
Ganczakowski, for all her contributions whilst in the role.
Iwould also like to thank my colleagues for their
engagement and support throughout the year.

The Committee will continue to have a transparent approach
toremuneration at Greggs. A key focus continuesto be
workforce fairness and the pay arrangements and support
provided to our colleagues across the business. Qur people
are what makes our business successful and protecting our
culture alongside our shareholders’and wider stakeholders’
interests remains our priority. Our report aims to be clear,
simple and easy toread, providing explanations and rationale
for our decision-makingin the context of Company
performance, the longer-term Company strategy (including
environmental, social and governance (ESG) priorities)and pay
arrangements for the wider workforce.

Thereport is made up of three key sections:

- Myannual Chair’s letter.

- Ournew Directors’remuneration policy, which will
operate for the three years commencing with the 2023
financial year. This new policy will be tabled at our AGM on
17 May 2023 to be formally agreed by shareholders by way
of abinding vote.

- Ourannualremuneration report, split into sections that
setout:

A. How our policy links to Company strategy and
reward across the wider workforce;

B. Remuneration Committee activity for the 52 weeks
ended 31 December 2022;

C. How Directors’ remuneration will be implemented
in2023in line with our new proposed three-year
policy; and

D. How our remuneration policy was implemented
in2022. Thisis an audited section of the report
outlining the remuneration of the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors during the 52 weeks
ended 31December 2022.

The annual remuneration report, together with this Chair’s
statement, will be subject to an advisory shareholder vote
atthe 2023 AGM.

Remuneration policy

Our remuneration policy consists of the following elements:

- Fixed pay - base salary, pension and benefits; and

- Variable pay - annual bonus{paid in both cash and deferred
shares)and performance share plan(PSP)measuring long-
term performance and delivered in shares.

New three-year remuneration policy

During 2022, the Committee undertook an extensive review
of our current palicy, taking into account the remuneration for
the wider workforce, the views of our shareholders as well as

the fact that executive remuneration continues to be debated -

inthe public domain. The Committee also assessed the
effectiveness of overall levels of remuneration in light of a
recent period of change in the Board and was keen to ensure
there continued to be a focus on alignment to the long-term
business strategy. The Committee fully reviewed emerging
market practice, the UK Corporate Governance Code and the
best practice expectations of investors and others.

Indeveloping the new policy, the Committee wanted to
ensure we continued with a policy that was simple and
consistent, with pay outcomes dependent upon
performance clearly linked to our business strategy and
growth plans. Another key focus for the Committee was the
unique Greggs culture and the importance Greggs places on
thisin respect of wider workforce remuneration. We were
also keen to avoid making unnecessary changes to a policy
which has generally served us well.

The new policy continues to ensure a significant proportion
of pay is delivered in shares to ensure a shared ownership
culture is created with the Executive team as well as to
provide alignment with investors. Our new policy is now fully
inline with the UK Corporate Governance Code with regards
to pensions alignment to the wider workforce and post-
employment shareholding requirements. We are very
comfortable that the new policy continues to ensure that the
team running the business isincentivised appropriately
whilst allowing a level of flexibility over the coming three
years. Accordingly, there are minimal formal changes to our
proposed policy for the three years commencing 2023.

The main changes to the policy are outlined below:

Pensions

As noted above, we are bringing the policy fully into line with
the UK Corporate Governance Code. In practice, this has
already happened as we have agreed that all Executive
Directors will have their pension contributions aligned

to the majority of the workforce {currently 4% of salary)

by 1January 2023.



Post-employment shareholding requirement

We are extending the post-employment shareholding
requirement to all existing Executive Directors, thus
including the Chief Financial Officer within this arrangement.
The requirement will not apply to any earlier PSP/deferred
bonus shares nor to shares purchased by the Executive
Directors from their own resources.

Increase to annual bonus and PSP policy limit
Having reviewed the competitiveness of the current policy
and to ensure sufficient fiexibility should it be required, we
wish toincrease the maximum policy limits for the annual
bonus and the PSP.

For the annual bonus, we propose extending the policy limit
to 150% of salary for all Executive Directors, however for
FY2023 the opportunity will remain unchanged from the
prior year(125% of salary).

Forthe PSP, we propose increasing the policy limit from
150% to 200% of salary for the Chief Executive and from
125% to 175% of salary for other Executive Directors. The
FY2023 grant will remain unchanged at 150% of salary for the
Chief Executive, and for the Chief Financial Officer we wish
to preserve the increase from 125% to 150% of salary that
was exceptionally awarded in FY2022. The rationale for this
is explained further in my letter in the section covering our
approach for FY2023.

We are conscious that we are currently below market in terms
of theincentive opportunities offered to the Executive
Directors and we are keen that the new policy includes
suitable flexibility to enable us to increase incentive levels if
considered necessary during the policy period, without the
need to seek approval for anew policy at the time. We have no
current intention toincrease award levels above those agreed
for FY2023, and in particular we recognise the potential
concerns about making such a change against the current
economic backdrop. If, over the policy period, we decided to

increase the quantumabove FY2023 levels then we would fully
consult with investors to provide the specific rationale for our
approach and would only proceed if we were comfortable that
shareholders were supportive of the approach taken.

Inthe new policy, PSP performance will continue to be based
onlong-term KPls, with a majority weighting on financial
measures. This will be sufficiently flexible to allow us to add
in additional ESG metrics which are aligned to our strategic
planand The Greggs Pledge. If we were to seek to use the
flexibility within the new policy to make higher awards than
planned for FY2023, we would of course ensure that the
related performance targets were appropriately stretching.

Business performance in 2022

andincentive outcomes

As outlined in the Chair’s statement and Chief Executive's
review, despite the challenging economy, which has
impacted the business and resulted in many of our
customers and colleagues being confronted with a cost of
living crisis, 2022 has been a year of growth for Greggs. One
year into our ambitious five-year plan to double sales, our
sales were up 23% on 2021. Despite rising energy costs and
food price inflation that has impacted every individual,
household and business, we have worked hard to mitigate
the impact of external cost pressures and protect our
reputation for exceptional value and great quality.

Consideration of the wider workforce

Our continued financia! successis thanks to our amazing
colleagues. With this in mind, the Committee monitors and
reviews the effectiveness of the Directors’ remuneration
policy and its impact on and alignment with the remuneration
policiesin the wider workforce. To support decisions on
Executive Directors’ pay, the Committee is provided with
information detailing the pay and benefits of the wider
workforce which gives additional cantext for the Committee
to make informed decisions. As well as this, the Committee
has engaged with colleagues to explain how remuneration
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for Directors aligns with the wider Company pay policy and
more recently has outlined the new proposed remuneration
policy to a group of colleagues. In November 2022 | met with
agroup of retail colleagues to introduce myself and the role
of the Committee. Separately, in February 2023 | met with
agroup of colleagues to discuss the new policy and the work
of the Committee. Key topics discussed with colleagues
included how reward is structured across the business,

the link to reward and Greggs sustainability journey, and
ensuring reward across our wider workforce continues to
support and complement the Greggs culture.

One of the unique aspects of Greggs'remuneration approach
is that of profit share - with 10% of all our profits being
shared with eligible colleagues. The profit share payment
this year will see over 21,800 colleagues benefitting from this
additional payment that will be made in March 2023.

Bonus 2022

As disclosed last year, the annual bonus scheme for 2022
was set up with performance targets based on profit{50%),
sales(20%)and strategic objectives(30%). We set target
ranges which were designed to ensure that bonus payments
would only be made for appropriately stretching levels of
performance. This included profit targets designed to
incentivise growth, sales targets aimed at like-for-like
growth as well as driving forward our strategic plansin the
areas of evening growth, and a continued focus on ESG with
targets based around food waste and food redistribution.

As noted above, despite continued disruption to trading,
Greggs performed weliin 2022. Significant market
disruption in our supply chain, cost pressures and the
employment market with significant skill shortages
contributed to the broader challenges we experienced both
in our own estate and in our supply chain. Despite this the
team continued to deliver positive like-for-like sales growth
and, as a consequence of this financial performance over the

Greggs plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

79



80

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

year, the profit(50%)element of the bonus reached 33.2%
payout and sales(20%)reached the maximum 20% payout.

The strategic objectives comprised three separate
elements, with 10% based on business efficiency/cost
savings, 10% on food waste targets and 10% on evening
sales past 4pm.

There was a continued focus on cost control during the year
resulting in the business efficiency/cost saving element of
the bonus paying 7.8%.

The 10% food waste element was split equally between
reducing food waste and increasing food redistribution.
These were challenging targets and our teams across the
business worked hard to meet them. For our food waste
reduction target, our teams achieved the full 17% reduction,
resultingin a’5.0% pay out of this element. For food
redistribution, again the team achieved the stretch target of
38.3%, resulting in 5.0% of this element of the bonus paying
out. These were both tough targets on top of a great result in
the previous years and the teams did a tremendous job in
hitting both targets in full.

The final 10% of the bonus was based onincreasing evening
sales with the target to achieve average weekly sales of
£2.1million in the second half of the year. This is a continued
area of growth, and the teams across the business worked
incredibly hard to maintain focus in this arearesulting in 4.4%
of this element of the bonus paying out.

The Committee is satisfied that the overall bonus outcome
aligns well with the business performance in what were
tough trading conditions in 2022. The Committee carefully
reviewed management’s performance against these targets,
taking the full business context and stakeholder experience
into account and determined that this level of payout was
appropriate with no need to apply discretion. Overall, annual
bonus=s were paid at a level of 75.4% of the maximum.

For the Chief Executive, this equated to a payment of 88%

of her total salary for the year, reflecting a higher bonus
opportunity following her appointment to the Chief
Executive role in May 2022. For the Chief Financial Officer,
his bonus payment was equivalent to 94% of his salary (out
of amaximum of 125%). The former Chief Executive was also
entitled to abonus payment relating to the period of the year
prior to hisretirement at the AGM.

The element of the bonus earned above 50% of the
maximum will be paid in shares and will be subject
to atwo-year holding period.

PSP vestingin 2023

Due to the impact of Covid-19 the PSP awards in 2020 were
granted in October of that year. This delay in the normal grant
schedule reflected the considerable uncertainty at the time
regarding the long-term performance of the businessin the
context of the unprecedented set of circumstances arising
from the pandemic. After extensive consideration, the
Committee selected a robust set of performance measures
and target ranges designed to complement the recovery
strategy and link to the performance outlook for the business
as assessed at the time. The three-year performance period
for these awards ended on 31 December 2022, although the
awards will not vest until October 2023.

The normal financial metrics of earnings per share (EPS)and
return on capital employed (ROCE) were retained with an
allocation of 25% of the PSP grant attributed to each of these
metrics. Targets were set with an intentionally wider range
than prior awards recognising the significant variance in
likely performance outcomes over the performance period.
The remaining 50% of the award was equally split between
two strategic initiatives considered essential to help shape
the business for the post-pandemic market. The first was
related to the implementation of a centralised digital app,
with targets based on a significant increase in active user
numbers. The second was based on growth of our new

delivery model, with targets set on a sliding scale focused on
sales growth.

The threshold and maximum targets were as follows:

Threshold Maximum
Metric Weighting How assessed target target
EPS EPSachievedin
25% FY2022 18.3p 69.3p
ROCE ROCE achieved
25% inFY2022 3.4% 12.5%
Digital app No. of active
25% users 550,000 650,000
New Delivery sales as
delivery % of company-
model managed shop
25% salesbyFY2022 6% 9%

Inthe event, FY2022 EPS was at 118.5p, FY2022 ROCE was

at 21.0%, Active App digital users in 12 weeks (based on Q4
usage)were at 1.1million and delivery sales as a percentage
of company-managed sales was at 5.5%. This meant that the
portion of the awards based on the EPS, ROCE and digital app
performance conditions vested in full but the delivery sales
target was not met, therefore delivering a 75% total vesting
level! for this award.

The Committee has reviewed this outcome in the context of
wider business performance, the quality of the results and
the stakeholder experience, and is very comfortable that
vesting is justified at this level with no need to apply
discretion to adjust the outcome. The Committee recognises
that actual performance exceeded the target ranges very
significantly in relation to EPS and ROCE. As noted above
these ranges were considered appropriately stretching at
the time they were set, when there was considerable
uncertainty about the future. Notwithstanding this the
actual result represents all-time-high performance and the
Committee considers that there would likely have been a full



vesting outcome for these metrics evenif significantly
greater stretch had been builtin to the targets.

Inrecognition of the expectation of investorsin relation to
PSP awards granted in 2020, the Committee also considered
whether the vesting outcome reflected a “windfall gain“ for
participants. The award was granted at atime when the
share price was £14.07. Immediately prior to finalising this
report, the share price was in the region of £27,and
therefore notably higher than the price at the time of grant.

The Committee has considered this matter in detail, taking
into account the 75% vesting outcome noted above, and is
satisfied that at this stage a windfall gain has not been
realised. Among other things, this reflects the fact that the
size of the award was scaled back at the time of grant as well
as Greggs'significant outperformance of the market. The
full rationale for our position is set out on page 95. We will
take a final definitive position on thisimmediately prior to
the vesting of the award in October 2023, and confirm the
decisionin next year's report.

Appointment of new Chair in 2022

Matt Davies was appointed as the new Board Chair during
2022, joining the Board as a Non-Executive Director on

2 August 2022 and stepping up to the Board Chair role on
1November 2022 upon the retirement of lan Durant. The
Remuneration Committee considered the appropriate Chair
fee for Matt Davies, taking into account factors such as his
role and responsibilities, the expected time commitment,

his extensive experience and also the level of fees payable
for Board Chairs of similarly-sized companies. The Committee
concluded that a fee of £250,000 was appropriate, applicable
from his appointment as Chair on 1 November. This fee wilt

not change for 2023 and will next be reviewed in January 2024.

Approach for 2023

As we move ahead with our strong growth plans we continue
to focus on the fundamental strategic pillars of our business
model and the four key growth drivers of our plan toreach
our potential in the years ahead. In delivering the strategic
pillars, the four key growth drivers and The Greggs Pledge,
itis vital that there continues ta be alignment with our
remuneration policy and approach. While continuing to act
with restraint in remuneration matters, we believe we have
apolicy and incentive plans that strike the right balance
between achievability and stretch, driving the right decisions
for the business, supporting the wider workforce and
shareholders, and at the same time motivating and enabling
the retention and recruitment of senior talent.

Salaries and fees

The Committee acknowledges that 2022 was a challenging
year for both the business and our colleagues due to the
continued uncertainty and significant cost pressures being
facedin the second half of the year. We have reviewed
carefully the approach taken with the wider workforce when
considering the approach to salary for the Executive
Directors for the year ahead. The 2023 pay award agreed for
our wider workforce consisted of a base pay award of 7%,
with an additional 3% {10% in total) for a number of our roles
and an additional 3.2%(10.2% in total) for our retail team
members. On this basis, over 76% of our workforce received
apay increase of 10% or more. For our operational retail
colleagues(over 21,500 colleagues)this pay increase

was brought forward by three months and therefore
implemented from January 2023 (rather than April 2023).

For our graded management population, we implemented
atiered pay award this year. Our management colleagues
received the base increase of 7% with our senior managers’
pay awards ranging between 5% and 6%.
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Subsequently the Committee reviewed the pay award of both
the Executive Directors and Operating Board and agreed that
the awards should be proportionally lower than the general
increases across the wider workforce.

With effect from 1January 2023, the Committee agreed a
salary increase of 4% for the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer, with the same increase being agreed
forthe Operating Board. A consistent approach was also
taken by the Board in relation to the Non-Executive Directors’
fees. With regards to the Chair fee this is next due to be
reviewed in January 2024.

Annual bonus

The maximum bonus opportunity for Roisin Currie, Chief
Executive, and Richard Hutton, Chief Financial Officer, will
remain at 125% of salary.

The Committee believes that the current performance
measures - profit(50%), sales{20%) and strategic objectives
(30%}remain appropriate and no changes are proposed to
these weightings. Profit and sales are critically important to
Greggs, and are measures which are closely followed by the
market as indicators of the financial heaith of the business.
The strategic objectives will continue to comprise three
separate elements with 10% based on business efficiency/
cost savings, 5% based on evening sales, 5% based on our
digital strategy, 5% based on increasing recycled waste and
5% based on food redistribution targets. The use of these
measures reflects our desire to incentivise and reward
progress on achieving our strategic goals and meeting the
commitments set out in The Greggs Pledge.

Targets for these measures have been set in line with the
financial plan for the business for the year and the rolling
strategic plan and are considered to be stretching. Due
to commercial sensitivities they are not disclosed within
thisreport, but will be disclosed retrospectively in next
year's report. ’
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PSP

For the FY2023 PSP award, the Chief Executive will receive
an award at a level of 150% of salary. For the Chief Financial
Officer we will preserve the increase from 125% to 150% of
salary that was awarded in FY2022.

The award granted in FY2022 recognised Richard's
exceptional contribution, leadership and commitment as
Greggs transitioned to a new Chief Executive. Since then,
Richard has continued to play a critical role in driving the
performance of the business by successfully supporting
the Chief Executive and the wider Operating Board. We have
concluded that this should be recognised by making 150%
of salary his ongoing grant level, which would agzin align
the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive fcr FY2023.

Anaward at this level is also important for the purposes of
retention, as it is consistent with PSP grants at comparable
companies and ensures that Richard's long-termincentive
is aligned with competitors whilst his salary and bonus
potential remain below market. We strongly believe that
focusing increased reward on long-term performanceisin
the interests of Greggs’ shareholders, and will mean that
Richard only benefits from this change in the event of future
multi-year outperformance, building on the strong
achievements to date. For any further increases within the
new policy limits we would first consult with shareholders.

For the awards in FY2023 the Committee has considered the
performance conditions and has agreed three performance
measures. We will keep both EPS and ROCE, equally split at
45% of the award. These measures have been used fora
number of years and are well understood by participants,

by investors and by the wider market as good indicators of
long-term financial performance. For FY2023, we will also
be introducing an ESG metric with a weighting of 10% of the
award. This will be a carbon metric based on the absolute

reduction of our Scope 1and 2 emissions over the three-year
period, reflecting the importance Greggs is placing on the
journey to carbon neutrality.

We have set appropriately stretching performance targets
for each measure reflecting the strategic plan and business
outlook over the performance period. Full details of the
targets are set out laterin thisreport.

Pensions .

As already outlined, we are bringing the remuneration policy
fully into line with the UK Corporate Governance Code. All
Executive Directors have had their pension contributions
aligned to the majority of the workforce (currently 4% of
salary)since 1January 2023. The Chief Executive’s pension
was aligned with the workforce on her appointment to the
Board in 2022. By moving the Chief Financial Officer on to the
wider workforce rate from January 2023, we have effectively
accelerated the five-year glidepath to the workforce rate
which had previously been agreed.

Shareholder engagement

We continue to welcome feedback from our shareholders
as their views inform our thinking on remuneration matters,
in particular when evaluating and setting the remuneration
policy and its implementation. The Committee is committed
to continue consulting with key shareholders and would like
to take the opportunity to thank those shareholders with
whom we consulted through the year on the development
of our new policy for their feedback and guidance.

AGM

We trust that you will find this report transparent, clear and
informative. The Committee has remained focused on
ensuring that executive remuneration is closely aligned to
the delivery of Greggs’business strategy whilst continuing to
take account of stakeholder experience, best practice and
the wider workforce. :

ook forward to receiving your support at this year’s AGM
with regards to the new remuneration policy and the annual
report on remuneration. There will also be a separate AGM
resolution amending the PSP rules to provide for the higher
individual award limits. If you would like to contact me
directly to discuss any aspect of thisreport then please
email me atinvestorrelations@greggs.co.uk.

Lynne Weedall
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
7March 2023



Directors’ remuneration policy

This section of our report describes our new Directors’ remuneration policy, which applies to
all Executive and Non-Executive Directors. It explains the purpose and the operation of each
element of the remuneration package and explains how Executive Directors are incentivised
to achieve sustainable long-term growth and value to best serve the interests of the Company,
its shareholders, its colleagues and other stakeholders. Payments to Directors(including
payments for loss of office) can only be made if they are consistent with the terms of the
approved policy.

The policy has been prepared in line with the relevant legislation for UK companies. It will be
presented to shareholders for approval by way of a binding vote at the AGM on 17 May 2023.
Subject to shareholder approval, the policy will formally apply from the date of the AGM. Our
currentintention is that the policy will remain in place for three years. The policy replaces that
approved at the AGM in May 2020.
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The new policy was developed by the Remuneration Committee with input fromits
independent external advisers. A full consultation exercise with major shareholders and the
leading proxy agencies was also undertaken, and their views were taken into account before
final decisions on the policy were taken. The Committee managed potential conflicts of
interest through its normal operating procedures, including ensuring that no individual was
present at Committee meetings when his or her specific remuneration was discussed. The
Committee’s members are allindependent Non-Executive Directors(with lan Durant being
in attendance during his period as Board Chair as will be the case with Matt Davies).

The policy for the remuneration of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors is set out
in the tables below, with notes explaining the changes from the policy approved in 2020:

Executive Directors
Element Purpt d gy peration Maximum opportunity
Base salary Toattract and retain Normally reviewed and set annuaily in January. No maximum limit is prescribed. Key reference points for salary

high-calibre individualsin

Benchmarked periodically by the Committee against the remuneration levels for executives in similar roles in

increases are market and economic conditions and, inline with our

order to promote the long-term ¢y mpanies of a comparable size. Individual performance and contribution are recognised in setting salary levels,  values. the approach to pay throughout the or
success of the business.
Salaries are paid monthly in cash.
Changeto pollcy ~We have made aminor amendment to yeflecnha(salanesarenormallyrewewedandselannually mJanuary In for example il { hange inrole, we may need to apply a salary change
at time in the year. Th for any change of thi: fully g year" report.
Benefits To support a competitive Benefitsinclude provision of a company car(orcashmlleu).prlvate medical health care, life assurance and No maximum limit is prescribed, particularly as the cost of providing

remuneration package in
the marketplace.

permanent health insurance.

insured benefits fluctuates over time. However, the Committee monitors
on an annual basis the overall cost of the benefit provision.

No change to policy

Pension To ensure that pension Executive Directors can elect to either: The pension contributions rate of all Executive Directors is aligned to the
conr:rlbutlons?r_e a[lqnt;d - participate in the Company defined contribution pension scheme (up to a cap). Above the cap Executive rate applying to the majority of the workforce.
to the rate applying to the Directors receive a salary supplement; or
majority of the workforce o 3 e R . 5
overtime. - take cash in lieu of this contribution paid as a supplement to their salary on a monthly basis.
The Executive Directors are able to make this choice on an annual basis.
Change to policy - All Executive Directors will have their pensl toth pplying to the majority of the workforce (currently 4%). Previously, this provision only applled tonew Executlve Directors, with the

contribution rate for the former Chlef E. d the Chief F ficer L]
reducedas of 1 January 2023 to the rate applying to the majority of the workforce.

tothe wor

rate over

of years. For the Chief Financial Officer, this policy chang, has
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Element Purpose and strategy Operation Maximum opportunity

Annualbonus Toincentivise achievement The bonus will be based on a mix of business key performance indicators {KPIs), with a majority based Capped at 150% of base salary for all Executive Directors.
{including of annualtargetsand on financial measures. On target performance delivers no mare than 50% of the maximum.
profitshare) ~ Objectivesconsistent with Targets for each metric are set in advance and in line with business planning objectives set by the Committee. No more than 25% of the bonus opportunity is payable under each

the short to medium-term
strategic needs of the
business, so as to encourage
sustainable growthinthe
Company’s operating profits.

element for threshold performance.

Each Executive Director is entitled to participate in the Company’s profit-sharing scheme available te all
colleagues. The value of this is then deducted from their annual bonus and is subject to the individual cap.

The Committee will use appropriate underpins for any non-profit based element of the annual bonus such that
payment under these elements may be scaled back (potentially to zero), at the discretion of the Committee, if the
operating profit performance for the year is judged to be running significantly below that required for the
achievement of the long-term strategy.

The Committee will be able to adjust the formula-driven outcome from any bonus plan if, in the judgement of the
Comnmittee, this does not reflect broader Company performance or the shareholder experience, or the payment
levelis otherwise inappropriate.

Any bonus paid in excess of 50% of the maximum will be payable in shares, which(after any sales to pay tax and ather
statutory deductions)must be held in the Employee Benefit Trust for two years after receipt.

The dividends payable on deferred bonus shares are paid to the individual as they fall due.

Recovery and withholding provisions allow the Company to recoup annual bonus payments within three years in
the event of misstatement of performance, error, misconduct, reputational damage or corporate failure where
this hasled to an overpayment in the view of the Committee. There is a flexible mechanism which allows the
Company tc withhold outstanding deferred or future remuneration or recover the averpayment direct from the
individual concerned.

Change to policy - The ( P! for b of125% of salary for €. ive Di than the Chief ive (whose limit was 150%). The revised policy increases this policy limit so that 150%
of salary now applies to all Executive Directors. This provides for amodest amount of additi i that the by h ins appropriately iti theC i has agreed that for FY2023 it will
operate the annual bonus with the same maximum limits as appfied in FY2022, namely 125% of salary for both the Chief ive and the Chief Fi it icer.
We have clarified in the policy that the bonus will be based on amix of business KPls, with a majority based on financial measures. For FY2023 there will b hange from the mix of used pi y(! operating profit, 20%

I 430% gic objectives)
The hanges will ensure we h; itable level ibility to operate thi the nextthreey as th ion for FY2023 will be broadly unchanged. If we do decide toincrease the maximum
potential bonus from that applied in FY2023 we will consult with to explain for making the change.
Performance Toincentivise long-termvalue Awards are normally granted under the PSP annually at the discretion of the Committee. 200% of base salary for the Chief Executive and 175% of base salary for
Share Plan creation, retention l?’ our Performance i will be based on fong-t KPls, with a majority weighting on financial measures with o_therExecutlve‘ Directors(200% of base salary in exceptional
(PSP) talentand ensure afignment of ;1 gets peing set for each metric which reflect the strategic plan and business outlook over the respecti cir

Executive Directors’and performance period. Threshold vesting at 25% of the maximum.

shareholders’interests. N N . . N B
Performance will be measured over a three-year period with an additional mandatory holding period of two years

for the vested shares (net of tax and other deductions).

A PSP award holder may be entitled to a dividend equivalent payment in respect of any vested shares.

The Committee will be able to adjust the formula-driven outcome from the PSP if, in the judgement of the
Committee, this does not reflect broader Company performance or the shareholder experience, or the vesting
levelis otherwise inappropriate.

Recoveryand wif ing provi: allow the Company to recoup vested PSP awards within three years in the event of
i of per error, mi: T i damage or corporate failure where thishasledtoan
overpayment in the view of the Committee. There s a flexible ismwhich aflows the C towithhold

outstandingdeferred or future remuneration, or recover the overpayment directly from the individual concerned.
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Element Purpose and strategy Operation Maximum opportunity
changes to policy - The new policy incorporates anincrease in award limits from the current 150% and 125% of salary for the Chief Executive and ive Dil ively to 200% and 175% of salary respectively. The award
limiti willi from 150% of salary to 200% of salary for thanthe ChiefE ive (wh imi |snow200/.)
Performance conditions will be based on long-term KPls, wil with targets being set for each metric whichreflect ic plan and busi tlook over pective p
period. The current (2020} policy was more prescriptive in stating only flnanclal measures.
The new pelicy willbe su"lclemlyﬂexlble toallow us toadd in ESG or other ics which gned to our ptanand The Greggs Pledge.There Id always b jori ighting towards fi i ics for PSP
awards. We have al: d tostate th ds are normally granted annually. This gives a i} of market ki awardil d ide of the normal annual cycle,
for example inrespect of aninternal promotion.
Allemployee  Toencourage colleagues at No performance conditions have been attached to awards granted pursuant to the Company’s SAYE and SIP Executive Directors may participate alongside eligible employees to the
Share alllevels withinthe Company  schemes, which are available for all eligible colleagues. extent permitted by HMRC limits.
Schemes tounderstand better and
{SAYE and 3IP) so participate inthe growth
in value of the Company.
No change to policy
Share Tofurtheraligntheinterests  Executive Directorsare required to build up a shareholding of 200% of base salary. Where an Executive Director  n/a
retention of Executive Directors to has not reached the required level, 50% of the shares vesting from incentive schemes must be held until this
qguidelines those of shareholders. requirement has been met.

Thisis achizved through vested awards granted viathe PSP and deferred bonus shares.

Forall Executive Directors there is a two-year post-employment holding requirement at the lower of the level
of the shareholding quideline immediately prior to departure or the actual shareholding at departure.

Chanqem policy - The p i applytoall Directors at the level of the shareholding guideline prior to departure or the actual shareholding on departure if lower. The previous approach was that
holding i apply only for new Executive Directors.
Th holdingreqy willnotapply toany sh with th S , or to shares vesting ds granted prior to to the Board (in the case of the Chief Executive) orto

approval of the new policy{in the case of the Chief Financial Officer).

Non-Executive Directors

Element Purpose and strategy Operation Maximum opportunity
Non- To attract and retain The Chair is paid an all-encompassing fee. Thereis no prescribed maximum.
g:e?“"‘: "'gh"_‘”a'"fN"d e X Non-Executive Directors are paid a basic fee and the Chairs of the Main Board Committees and the Senior
hair an . experienced Non-| xecutive Independent Director are paid an additional fee to reflect their additional responsibilities.
Directors’ Chair and Directors. ! . N . . .
fees These fees are usually reviewed and set annually. Additiona! fees may be paid where there is a material increase in
the time commitments, responsibilities required of Non-Executive Directors or following a review of market rates.
Non-Executive Directors are not eligible for pension scheme ip, bonus or i ivearr
They are entitled to reimbursement of reasonable business expenses and tax thereon. They may also receive
limited travel or ion-related benefits in ion with their role as a Director.
Change to policy - We h: ified that i ing areview of market rates, in line with standard market practice.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Choice of performance measures and policy discretion

The remuneration policy provides the Remuneration Committee with the flexibility to choose
appropriate performance conditions for the annual bonus scheme and for PSP awards,
subject to the constraints set out in the table above. The choice of metrics will depend upon
the strategic focus for the Company at the time decisions around the awards are taken. The
specific measures and the targets used to assess performance will be disclosed in the
Directors’remuneration report on an annual basis. For further information, please see the
section 'How our remuneration links to strategy and reward across the wider workforce’ on
page 89.

The Committee will operate incentive plansin accordance with their respective rules, the

Listing Rules and HMRC limits where relevant. The Committee, consistent with market

practice, retains discretion over a number of areas relating to the operation and

administration of certain plan rules. These include{but are not limited to) the following:

- Who participates;

- Thetiming of the grant of award and/or payment;

- Thesize of an award (up to plan/policy limits) and/or a payment;

- Discretion relating to the measurement of performance in the event of a change of control
orreconstruction;

- Determination of a good leaver (in addition to any specified categories) for incentive plan
purposes and the treatment of leavers; and

- Adjustments required in certain circumstances(e.qg. rights issues, corporate restructuring
and special dividends), and the ability to adjust, but not waive, existing performance
conditions for exceptional events so that they can still fulfil their original purpose.

Difference in remuneration policy across the Group and consideration of
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors is designed having regard to the policy
for employees across the Group as a whole and wider workforce remuneration and related
policies. Further information is provided in the section “How our remuneration links to strategy
and reward across the wider workforce” on page 89.

Employees were not directly consulted on the terms of the new remuneration policy but the
policy was discussed with a representative cross section of colleagues in a session led by the
Chair of the Remuneration Committee.

St t of ation of shareholder views

When setting the remuneration policy and determining its implementation, the Committee
takes into account the-views of shareholders, their representative bodies and other interested
parties such as proxy advisers. The Committee regularly consults major shareholders on
proposed changes to the policy, and did so during 2022 in respect of the new policy. The
Committee considered comments received from shareholders before finalising the terms

of the policy.

Legacy arrangements

For the avoidance of doubt, in approving this policy, authority is given to the Company to
honour any commitments entered into with current or former Directors(such as the payment
of a pension or the unwinding of legacy share schemes}that have been disclosed to
shareholders in previous remuneration reports. Details of any of these payments to former
Directors will be set out in the annual report on remuneration as they arise.

Policy on recruitment remuneration

The Committee will set a new Executive Director’s remuneration package in line with the
Company’s approved policy at the time of appointment. In arriving at a total package and in
considering the quantum for each element of that package, the Committee will take into
account the skills and experience of the candidate, the market rate for a candidate of that
experience as well as theimportance of securing the best available candidate.

Annual bonus and PSP awards will not exceed the policy maxima(not including any
arrangements to replace forfeited pay). Participation in the annual bonus plan will normally
be pro-rated for the year of joining. The Committee may make one-off additional cash and/or
share-based awards as it deems appropriate, and if the circumstances so demand, to take
account of pay forfeited by an Executive Director on leaving a previous employer. Awards to
replace pay forfeited would, where possible, reflect the nature of awards forfeited in terms
of delivery mechanism{cash or shares), time horizons, attributed expected value and
performance conditions. Other payments may be made inrelation to relocation expenses and
other incidental expenses as appropriate. Any buyout awards would be made under existing
arrangements where possible or as permitted under the Listing Rules.

Inthe case of an internal appointment, any variable pay element awarded in respect of the
prior role would be allowed to pay out according to its terms and any other ongoing
remuneration obligations existing prior to appointment would continue.

Inline with our remuneration policy, all new Executive Directors will have their pension
contribution aligned to the rate applying to the majority of the workforce.



For the appointment of a new Chair or Non-Executive Director, the fee arrangement would be
setin accordance with the approved remuneration policy at that time.

Service contracts and policy on cessation
Executive Directors’ service contracts contain the following remuneration-related aspects:

Provision Detailed terms.

Remuneration - Salary, pension and benefits;
- Company car or cash allowance;
- Private medical health care “or the Director:
- Permanent health insurance;
- Participation in annual bonus and profit share {subject to scheme rules);
- Participationinlong-termi h
scheme rules); and
- Lifeassurance.

or similar arr ject to

Motice period - The Chief Executive’s service contract is terminable on 12 menths’ notice served
by either the Company or the Director;
- The Chief Financial Officer's service contract is terminable on 12 months’ notice
served by the Company or by six months’ notice served by the Director; and
- Any future Executive Directars’ service contracts will be terminable onup to
12 months’ notice served by either party.

Termination payment - Payment inlieu of notice equal to any unexpired notice of termination given by
either party; and

- Paymentintieu shall notinciude:
- Anybonus payment;
- Any payment inrespect of benefits which the Director would have been entitied
toreceive; and
- Any payment in respect of any holiday entitlement that would have accrued
during the period for which the payment in lieu is made.
Details of the circumstances in which the Committee has the ability to exercise
discretion with regards to termination payments are set out below.

Under their service contracts, if notice is served the Executive Directors are entitled to salary,
pension contributions and benefits for their notice period save where a payment in lieuis to be
made. The Company would seek to ensure that any payment is mitigated by use of phased
payments and offset against earnings elsewhere in the event that an Executive Director finds
alternative employment during their notice period. There are no contractual provisions in
force other than those set out above that impact any termination payment.
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Areas where the Committee can exercise discretion with regards ta termination payments are

set out below:

- Anyright to annual bonus in the year of departure would IapseAunIess the individualis
leaving in good leaver circumstances, in which case a bonus may be payable pro-rated for

that part of the year worked;

- Deferred bonus shares must normally be retained in trust until the end of their two-year
holding period, but may be released early in exceptional circumstances, such as ill-health;

- Anyunvested awards held under the PSP will lapse at cessation, unless the individual is
leaving in good leaver circumstances{defined under the plan as death, injury, ill-health,
disability, redundancy, retirement, their office or employment being with either acompany
which ceases to be a Group member or relating to a business or part of a business which is
transferred to a person who is not a Group member, a change of control or any other reason
the Committee so decides). In these circumstances, unvested awards will normally vest at
the normal vesting date (other than on death or where the Committee decides they should
vest at cessation) subject to performance conditions being met and scaling back in respect
of actual service as a proportion of the total vesting period{unless the Committee decides
that scaling back is inappropriate). Vested awards will normally be subject to the mandatory
two-year holding period although the Committee will have discretion to waive thisin

exceptional circumstances; and

- The Committee may agree to payment of disbursements such as legal costs and
outplacement services if appropriate and depending on the circumstances of cessation.

The table below sets out the details of the Executive Directors’service contracts:

Director Date of contract
Roisin Currie 1February 2022
Richard Hutton 7 April 2008

The service contracts are available for inspection during normal business hours at the
Company's registered office, and are available for inspection at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Expected value of the proposed annual remuneration package Chief Financial Officer - Richard Hutton
for Executive Directors

The following charts indicate the level of remuneration payable to Executive Directors in 2023

based on policy at minimum remuneration, remuneration in line with ‘on target' Company

performance, and the maximum remuneration available.

Chief Executive - Roisin Currie

50% share price

Minimum Ontarget Stretch appreciation
Fixed remuneration:
-Salary £409,032 £408,032 £409,032 £408,032
-Pension £16,361 £16,361 £16,361 £16,361
- Benefits £12,312 £12,312 £12,312 £12,312
Bonus - £255,645 £511,280 £511,290
Performance Share Plan - £306,774 £613,548 £620,322
50% share price
Minimum Ontarget Streteh . Total £437.705 £1,000,124 £1,562,543 £1,868,317
Fixed remuneration:
usedinthecharts:
-Salary £624,000 £624,000 £624,000 £624,000 Base salary levels as at | January 2023.
- Pension £24,960 £24,960 £24,980 £24,960 Pension at the wider workforce rate(currently 4%)
- Benefits £20,910 £20,910 £20,910 £20,910 The value of taxable benefits is based on the cost of supplying the benefits at the agreed level.
Bonus - £390.000 £780,000 £780,000
Bonus
Performance Share Plan - £468,000 £936,000 £1,404,000 Minimum remuneration - assumes no award is earned under the annual bonus plan.
ion-~ i hof the et its, itingi
Total £669.870 £1.527.870 £2.385,870 £2.853.870 Ontarget remuneration - the annual bonus plan assumes the target level isreached for each of the elements, resultingina

payout of 50% of the maximum.
Stretch i i ion of all per itions for afl elements under the annual bonus plan and
therefore full payout.

PSP element i asaward pi ge of b y i bythe relevant vesting percentage. Share price
movement and dividend accrual have been excluded, other thanin the 50% share price appreciation model.
Minimum ion - assumes no vestingi i the PSP.

Ontarget remuneration - assumes 560% vestingis achieved.
Stretch remuneration - assumes 100% vesting is achieved.

88



Terms of appointment of Non-Executive Directors
Non-Exzcutive Directors are appointed subject to the Company’s articles of association,
retiring and seeking election at the first AGM after appointment.

Thereafter, every Director will be subject to annual re-election by shareholders. The
Nominations Committee advises the Board as to whether Directors should be nominated
for re-election. Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to compensation for early
termination of their appointments prior to the date on which they would next be due

to offer themselves for election or re-election, or if not re-appointed at such time.

The letters of appointment for the Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection during

normal business hours at the Company’s registered office, and are available forinspectionat

the AGM.

The following table shows the effective date of appointment for each Non-Executive Director:

Non-Executive Birector QOriginal date of appointment

Matt Davies 2 August 2022
Helena Ganczakowski 2January 2014
Sandra Turner 1May 2014
Kate Ferry 1June 2019
Mohamed Elsarky 21June 2021
Lynne Weedall 17 May 2022

Current Non-Executive Directors are appointed on an understanding that the appointment will
last for at least six years, but without any commitment by either party.

Allnew Non-Executive Directors, from June 2013, are appointed for an initial term of three years
unless terminated earlier by either party giving to the other party three months’ written notice.

STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS’REPORT ACCOUNTS

A. How our remuneration links to strategy and reward across the wider workforce
Link to strategy

Remuneration at Greggsis
intended to incentivise
sustainable and profitable
business growth. This is reflected
inkey metrics in the variable pay
incentive plansincluding

Our commitment to deliver these
goalsis supported withthe
inclusion of ESGtargetsinthe
incentive schemes, suchas food
redistribution, recycling and Scope
1and 2 carbon reduction targets.

Delivery against the four strategic
pillars - ‘Great tasting, freshly
prepared food’, ‘Best customer
experience’, Competitive supply
chain’ and 'First-class support
teams’-isincentivised as
operating profit, like-for-like appropriate by strategic metrics
sales, cost savings, EPS and inthe annual bonus scheme, for
ROCE. example, evening sales and
digital targets.

Reward across the wider workforce

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors is designed having regard to the policy for colleagues
across the Group as awhole and wider workforce remuneration and related policies. There are differences in
salary levels and in the levels of potential reward depending upon seniority and responsibility, although a key
reference point for Executive Director salary increases s the average base pay increase across the general
workforce. For FY2023, we have implemented a tiered pay award such that smaller salary increases have been
agreed for the more senior people within the organisation.

We share 10% of our profits annually with our colleagues across the business, and everyone is eligible to
participate in this profit-sharing scheme after six months’service.

Shareincentive schemes and bonus participation extends below Board level, with a separate share option
scheme in place for senior management colleagues and a bonus scheme for graded management. Both the
share option and management bonus schemes are aligned to those of the Executive Directors and are subject
tothe same performance targets and measures. A higher proportion of the Executive Directors’ remuneration
package is delivered through performance-related incentive schemes, much of which is in share-based form,
which provides a good link to long-term Company performance and the shareholder experience.

All colleagues with one year’s service or more may participate in the Sharesave scheme(where colleagues can
save to purchase shares at the end of a three-year period at a 20% discount to the price at the date of grant}and
in the Share Incentive Plan (SIP){where colleagues can purchase shares from pre-tax salary subject to HMRC
limits). These schemes are generally offered annually.

The pension contributions for our Executive Directors are aligned to the contribution for the majority of our
workforce (currently at 4%).
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Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Directors’remuneration policy is fully compliant with the relevant factors set out in the UK Corporate
Governance Code:

Clarity We are open and transparent in our approach to remuneration taking into account the
experience of our hareholders and st . We regularly engage with
stakeholders on remuneration matters.

Simplicity Qur remuneration policy is simpie and consistent in its approach. Senior management

share option and management bonus schemes are aligned to those of the Executive
Directors and are subject to the same performance criteria.

Predictability Our remuneration policy clearly outiines the details of maximum opportunity levels for
each component of pay. Incentive levels vary depending on the level of performance
against specific metrics. The typical award levels and potential pay-outs are disclosed
inthe remuneration policy and it is atedineachyear'sr ionreport

how outcomes are aligned with performance and strategy.

Proportionality,
riskand alignment
Toculture

Pay outcomes are dependent upon performance linked to our business strategy and
growth plans as well as taking into account our wider workforce remuneration and
specific Greggs culture. This ensures a significant proportion of pay is delivered in
shares to provide alignment with investors and incorporates other best practice
featuresin line with the UK Corporaie Governance Code and investor guidelines.

The use of annual bonus deferral an3 PSP holding periods provides a clear link to the
ongoing performance of the business and therefore alignment with shareholders.

The Committee has the discretion to apply malus and clawback in both anaual bonus
and PSP.

B. Remuneration Committee activity for the 52 ks ended 31D b
Meetings during the year
The Remuneration Committee met four times during the year. Details of the Committee

members’ attendance are given on page 67.

2022

Allmembers are considered to be independent for the purpose of the UK Corporate
Governance Code. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

Role and responsibilities

Responsibility is delegated to the Remuneration Committee to ensure that an effective
remuneration policy is in place for the Chief Executive, other Executive Directors, the
Chairand senior management whilst reviewing and taking into account wider workforce
remuneration and the Company values and cuiture. It is the Committee’s role to establish
aremuneration policy that promotes both long-term shareholdings by Executive Directors
and ensures alignment of policies and practices to support business strategy, promote the
long-term sustainable success of the business and meet shareholder expectations.

Summary of Committee activity during 2022

Details of some of the activities the Committee has undertaken have been outlined in the

Chair’s letter as well as being summarised below:

- Developed the new proposed three-year remuneration policy;

- Consulted with shareholders on the new remuneration policy:

- " Discussed and agreed the fees for the new Chair;

- Reviewed all colleague remuneration and the 2023 pay award for colleagues;

- Discussed and agreed Directors’and Operating Board salaries for 2023;

- Agreed the challenging targets for the 2022 bonus and PSP and the new ESG metrics
to apply to the PSP in 2023;

- Discussed the 2022 bonus outturn and 2020 PSP award vestingin the context of the
original performance targets set as well as the wider socio-economic environment
and the experience of the wider workforce;

- Approved grants under the PSP to Executive Directors and Operating Board and
under the share option scheme to senior managers below Executive Director and
Operating Board level;

- Approved the all-colleague SAYE and SIP schemes;

- Reviewed Executive Directors’and Operating Board shareholdings in the Company,
in the context of shareholding guidelines; and

- Held alistening group with colleagues to help encourage understanding of the work of the
Remuneration Committee and the new remuneration policy.

Structure and content of the remuneration report

The remuneration report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’)and The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports){Amendment)Regulations 2013 (the ‘Regulations’). It also meets the
requirements of the UK Listing Authority’s Listing Rules.

The Regulations also require our auditor to report to shareholders on the audited information
within this remuneration report and to state whether, in their opinion, the relevant sections
have been prepared in accordance with the Act and the Regulations. The auditor’s opinion

is set out on pages 102 to 107 and we have indicated appropriately the audited sections of this
remuneration report.

Remuneration advice

The Chief Executive along with Jonathan Jowett (Company Secretary and General Counsel}
and Emma Walton(People Director)are normally invited to attend Committee meetingsin order
to provide advice and support to the Committee. The Chief Financial Officer attends where
required. During the year Korn Ferry(who have no connection to the Company or any individual



Director) provided remuneration advice to the Committee. Korn Ferry were appointed
as advisers by the Committee in December 2017 following an informal tender process.

Korn Ferry is a signatory to the Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct in relation
to executive remuneration consultingin the UK.

The Committee reviewed the operating processes in place at Korn Ferry and is satisfied that
the advice it receives is objective and independent. Fees paid to Korn Ferry during the year
were £64,555. Korn Ferry did not provide any other services to the Company during 2022.

AGM voting outcomes
The Directors’ remuneration report was the subject of an advisory vote at the 2022 AGM and
the results are outlined below.

Approve the remuneration report

Total number % of

of votes votes cast

For 62,513,876 85.65%

Against 10,474,846 14.35%

Total votes cast (excluding votes withheld) 72,988,722 100.00%
Votes withheld 52,038
Total votes cast{including votes withheld) 73,040,760

Shareholders were asked to approve the remuneration policy at the 2020 AGM and the results
are outlined below:
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C. How our remuneration policy will be implemented in 2023 - Executive Directors
The section below summarises the implementation of our remuneration policy for 2023.

Base salary 2023
The annual base salaries for the Executive Directors were reviewed with effect from 1January
2023; increases and current salaries are outlined below:

Salary Salary
Director 1January 2022 1January 2023 % increase
Roisin Currie{Chief Executive) £600,000" £624,000 4.0%
Richard Hutton (Chief Financial Officer) £393,300 £409,032 4.0%

*  Salaryat date of appointment as Chief Executive

With over 76% of the workforce receiving a pay increase of 10% or more for 2023, and a further
23% receiving 7%, the Committee is comfortable the increase for the Executive Directorsis
appropriate, being proportionally lower than the wider workforce while ensuring that pay for
the Executive Directors does not fall materially behind mid-market levels.

Pension contribution 2023

As per our new proposed remuneration policy, contributions for both Executive Directors will
be aligned to the pension contribution for the majority of the warkforce (currently 4%)as of
1January 2023.

The pension contribution rates for 2023(all of which are cash in lieu) are:

Approve the i

Total number % of

of votes votes cast

For 66,782,219 95.711%

Ajainst 2,990,047 4.29%

Total votes cast (excluding vates withheld) 69,772,266 100.00%
Votes withheld 4777374
Total votes cast (including votes withheld) 74,549,640

Roisin Currie . 4.0%
Richard Hutton 4.0%
Annual bonus 2023

The annual bonus opportunity for 2023 is outlined below:

Chief Executive Maximum opportunity of 125% of base salary. Bonus in excess of 50% of maximum will

be payablein shares deferred for two years.

Chief Financial Officer Maximum opportunity of 125% of base salary. Bonus in excess of 50% of maximum will

be payable in shares deferred for two years.

The annual bonus is based on performance against arange of financial and strategic
performance measures. This range of metrics measures achievement of the Company’s
key operational objectives. The Committee reviews the KPIs each year and varies themas
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appropriate to reflect the priorities for the business in the year ahead. Where appropriate a
sliding scale of targets is set for each KPI to encourage continuous improvement or sustained
high performance, with a maximum of 10% bonus paid out for threshold performance for the
profit and sales elements.

Targets are normally set at the start of the year by the Committee using the outturn and
performance in the previous year, as well as the business plan, to determine appropriately
stretching sliding scales. Bonus targets for the forthcoming year are considered to be
commercially sensitive. Retrospective disclosure of the targets and performance against
them will be made in next year’s annual report on remuneration.

The bonus metrics are:

Measure Profit Sates Strategic objectivas

Weighting 50% of total 20% of total 30% of total

Detailand link to strategy  Reflects the profit of the Outlined below.
Group(excluding
exceptionalitems)before
tax. This will be based on
meeting and exceeding

budget for the year.

Based on company-
managed shop like-for-like
sales excluding any
additional shops opened
during the bonus year.

The strategic objectives for each bonus cycle are based on measures which will provide a
strong link to strategy and our four key growth drivers as well as recognising our responsibility
and commitmentsin The Greggs Pledge.

For the 2023 bonus there will be four strategic objectives. They are:

- 10% based on business efficiency/cost savings:

- 5% based on growthin evening sales;

-- 10% based on an element of The Greggs Pledge and sustainability:
- 5% Increase in food redistribution; and
- 5% increase inwaste recycled;

- 5% based ondigital metrics linked to the Greggs app.

Following areview of performance by the Committee, any payment under the non-profit-
based element of the bonus may be scaled back (potentially to zero}at the discretion of the
Committee, in the event that the profit performance for the year is judged to be running
significantly below that required for the achievement of the long-term strategy.

PSP award 2023
PSP awards will be granted as follows:

Chief Executive 150% of base satary

Chief Financial Officer 150% of base salary

For the Chief Financial Officer, we will preserve the increase from 125% to 150% of salary that
was awarded exceptionally in FY2022. The award granted in FY2022 recognised Richard's
exceptional contribution, leadership and commitment as Greggs transitioned to a new Chief
Executive. Since then, Richard has continued to play a criticai role in driving the performance
of the business by successfully supporting the Chief Executive and the wider Operating Board.
We have concluded that this should be recognised by making 150% of salary his ongoing grant
level, which would again align the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive for FY2023.

The PSP awards for the Executive Directors are normally granted in the period following the
announcement of the financial results for the prior year. However, as we are in a new policy
year, this year the awards will be granted on the day after the AGM, subject to the remuneration
policy being approved.

For the awards in FY2023 we will have three performance measures. We will keep both EPS
and ROCE, equally split at 45% of the award, and we will be introducing an ESG metric with a
weighting of 10% of the award. This will be a carbon metric based on the reduction of our
Scope 1and 2 emissions over the three-year period.

These measures provide arounded assessment of our overall profitability against stretching
targets setin line with the strategic plan and business outlook over the performance period as
well as a strategic link to our Greggs Pledge targets. ’

For the 2023 awards the target ranges will be as follows:
- The EPS performance condition will require average annual growth in EPS over the
performance period to be between 4% and 9%:
- The ROCE condition will require average ROCE over the performance period to be between
18.7% t021.2%; and
- Thecarbon metric will require areductionin absotute CO, emissions{on a 2022 end of year
baseline) over the performance period in line with our Net Zero target:
- 25%of this part of the award will vest if absolute CO,e emissions are maintained at 2022
levels despite business growth; and
- 100% of this part of the award will vest if absolute emissions are reduced in line with our
2035 Net Zero target for Scope 1and 2(35,371tCO,e).



Our EPS growth range has been set froma high 2022 EPS base and, in the context of
continued market uncertainty, the stretch element of this range would represent outstanding
performance. The business continues to deliver very strong ROCE performance within the
retail sector and with ambitious plans to grow the business this range targets continued
strong returns on capital employed.

For allthrze performance measures, 25% of an award will vest on achieving threshold performance
and thereafter straight-line sliding scales will apply until stretch performance is achieved.

Aholding period is attached to vested PSP awards, requiring the vested shares to be held
(net of tax and other deductions)for afurther two years.

How our remuneration policy will be implemented in 2023 - Non-Executive Directors
In order to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding their own remuneration, the fees
payable to Non-Executive Directors are set, after consultation with the Chair, by a Committee
of the Board consisting only of the Executive Directors. The fees payable to the Chair are set
by the Remuneration Committee.

The Non-Executive Directors are paid an annual base fee and additional responsibility fees
for the role of Senior Independent Director (SID)cr for chairing a Board Committee.

These fees are usually reviewed and set annually. The fees were increased by 4% on 1January
2023 inline with the base salary increase agreed for Executive Directors.

The fee for the Chair was agreed at the time of his appointment in 2022 and is next due to be
reviewed on 1January 2024.

Details of the fees being paid to Non-Executive Directors in 2023 are set out below:

Annual additional

Basefeefrom fee from1January Totalfee
Name Position 1January 2023 2023 2023
Matt Davies Board Chair 250,000 - £250,000
Kate Ferry Chair of the Audit Committee £54,735 £12,480 £67.215
Helena

Ganczakowski  Non-Executive Director £54,735 - £54,735
SandraTurner  Non-Executive Director & SID £54,736 £12,480 £67215
Mohamed Zlsarky Non-Executive Director £54,735 - £54,735
Lynne Weedall  Chair of the Remuneration Committee £54,735 £12,480 £67.215
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These fees may be subject to change during the year based on any change in responsibility
or time commitment or to ensure they remain in line with the current market rates.

D. How our remuneration policy was implemented in 2022

Total Executive Director remuneration payable for 2022 (audited)

The following table presents the remuneration payable for 2022 (showing the equivalent
figures for 2021)for the Executive Directors.
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Roisin Currie
2022 490,809 18,453 17,902 527.264 440,832 247,206 688,038 1,215,302
Roger Whiteside
2022° 215,900 32,601 4,621 253122 203,486  556,057° 759,543 1,012,865
2021 575,208 108,139 12,644 695,892 716,854 426,833 1,143,687 1,839,679
Richard Hutton
2022 393,300 38,046 12,105 443,451 370,885 370,744 741,429 1,184,880
2021 380,000 44,387 9,500 433,887 378.860  201,4322 580,282 1,014,179

1 Thevalue of the PSP award for 2022, due to vest on 9 October 2023, is based onthe level of vesting(75.0%}and the average
share price over the final three months of the financial year of £21.47. The amount attributabte to share price appreciationis
£85,204 for Roisin Currie, £191,654 for Roger Whiteside and £127.783 for Richard Hutton. This figure will be trued upin the
2023 reporttoreflect the share price at the vesting date. Roisin Currie’s award was granted prior to her appointment asa
Director and for the majority of the performance period she did not serve on the Board

2 Forthe 2021 PSP award the value last year was based on the average share price over the three months prior to the year

end of £30.78. The value has now been updated for the actual price on vesting on 11 April 2022 of £24.02, together with

the updated total remuneration figures. The values were reduced by £120,189 for Roger Whiteside and £56,689 for

Richard Hutton

Taxable benefits relate to cash-in-lieu of a company car, private medical health care and travel expenses paid

Roisin Currie was appointed to the Board on 1 February 2022

Roger Whiteside retired from the Board on 17 May 2022 and his remunerationisincluded up to that date

Vesting pro-rated toreflect the propertion of the vesting period Roger Whiteside was employed

LI
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Fees for Non-Executive Directors (audited)

The fees for Non-Executive Directors were as follows:

Reduction in food waste from manufacture (5%)

1 Furtherdetails on these strategic targets are set out below

Metric Maximum 5%
2022 2021 Decrease food waste by 10% decrease in food slidingscale to... 17% decrease in food waste
— percentage of total sales  waste as apercentage as apercentage of total
Matt Davies' £41,667 - ahead of the 2021yearend  of total sales(decrease sales(decrease t0 0.23%)
lan Durant? £171,046 £198,315 actual(0.28% total sales)  t00.25%)
Helena Ganczakowski® £60,261 £61,020
Sandra Turner £63.603 £58.478 Increase food redistribution (5%)
Kate Ferry £64,261 £61.020 Metric Maximum5%
Mohamed Elsarky® £52,630 £26,966 Distribute anincreased 10% increaseinamountof  slidingscale to... 33% increase in amount of
percentage of unsold food unsold food redistributed unsold food redistributed
Lynne Weedall* £36,823 - aheadof the 2021endof  year-on-year(increase year-on-year{increase to
year actual of 28.5% 1031.5%) 38.0%)
1 Matt Davies joined the Board on 2 August 2022
2 lanDuraritretired from the Board on 30 November 2022 .
3 Mohamed Elsarky joined the Board on 1June 2021 Bonus achieved for 2022
4  Lynne Weedalljoined the Board on 17 May 2022 and took on the role of Ci Chairasof 1 2022
S HelenaGanczakowski stepped down as Chair of the Remuneration Committee as of 31 August 2022 As % of maximum
Roisin Currie 75.4%
Annual bonus 2022 (audited) Roger Whiteside' 75.4%
The table below outlines the bonus performance conditions in respect of the 2022 bonus Richard Hutton 75.4%
scheme.
o L 1 Roger Whiteside's bonus was pro-rated for the period of active service up to 17 May 2022
Measure Strategic objective Weighting Entry Target Stretch Actual % .
Frotit(£) To deliver target profit . . " : : . )
- Defo,etax(eﬁ:,uging Inline with the remuneration policy, the proportion of the bonus in excess of 50% of the
exceptionalitems and maximum (pro rata)will be payable in shares, deferred for two years.
property profits) 50% £139.0m £146.0m  £153.0m £148.3m 33.2%
Sales{%) Z:jz;y::{fg';:;ﬂzgke 20% 12.9% 2% 16.2% ve%  200% Details of the shares awarded in 2022 for the 2021 bonus year are outlined below. These were
Strategicl] Costsavings 0% £3.0m £5.0m 7om To1zm 6% awarded on 25 March 2022 and will be released on 25 March 2024.
Strategic  Eveningsales Number of shares
(Em/week) 10% £1.9m £21m £2.3m 2.07% 4.4% awarded
Strategic  Reduce food waste' 5% 0.25% 0.23% 0.23% 5.0% Roger Whiteside 7.823
Strategic Increase unsold food Richard Hutton 4134
redistribution* 5% 31.5% 34.8% 38.0% 38.3% 5.0%
Total weighting based on
balanced scorecard 100% 75.4%



Performance Share Plan award for performance in 2020 to 2022 (audited)

The PSP award granted in 2020 measured four performance targets to be delivered by the end
of 2022. The performance targets that were set, together with the performance delivered, are
set outin the table below.

Metric Conditlon Threshold target Stretchtarget Actual % vesting
EPS(25%) Absolute EPSachieved 18.3p 69.3p 118.5p 25.0%
in2022 (6.25% vesting) (25% vesting)
ROCE(50%) Absolute ROCE achieved 3.4% 12.5% 21.0% 25.0%
in2022 (6.25% vesting) (25% vesting)
Active Number of active users 550,000 650,000 1) million 25.0%
Digital App at the end of 2022 (6.25% vesting) (25%)
users
Delivery Deliverysalesasa 6% 9% 5.5% 0%
sales percentage of company- (6.25% vesting) {25% vesting)
managed shop sales
by end 2022
Total vesting 75.0%

The Committee considered the vesting outcome in the context of overall Company performance,
the shareholder experience and the wider stakeholder experience over the performance period.
The Committee was satisfied that the vesting outcome was an appropriate reflection of wider
business performance and the experience of all stakeholders(including shareholders).
Accordingly, the Committee did not exercise any discretion to reduce the level of vesting.

The Committee also considered whether the value received from the PSP award represented

awindfall gain for the Executive Directors. At the time of writing, the Committee has

concludad that no windfall gain is expected to be realised, for the following reasons:

- The Committee made the prudent decision tc delay the grant of the 2020 award, taking
into account the majorimpact on the business of the Covid-19 outbreak and subsequent
lockdown. There was no view that the Committee should ‘push ahead’ with normal awards.
The Committee’s decision to postpone the grant was communicated to major shareholders
inaletterin April 2020, and investor support was received for this decision. No investor
raised concerns with this approach ahead of the AGM in May 2020.

- Laterin2020, the Committee decided to proceed with the award, with performance
metrics (outlined above)linked to the recovery strategy that had been agreed for the
business. While there remained significant uncertainty about the precise shape of the
post-pandemic recovery, it was viewed as critical to put in place an incentive which would
help drive performance after a very difficult period. The Committee wrote to major
shareholders in September 2020 explaining the terms of the proposal, and once again
the investor response was broadly positive.
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- The Committee recognised that at the time of grant there was still weakness in the share
price. Asaresult, for the Executive Directors the award size was set at 115% of salary for the
then Chief Executive and 95% of salary for the Chief Financial Officer, representing a scale
back from the original intention (previously communicated to shareholders)to grant at
150% of salary and 110% of salary respectively. The reduction of the award size at grant was
viewed as a proportionate response to the share price situation at the time, thus resulting
ina smaller number of shares being granted than if the originally signalled grant levels had
been maintained.

- Itistrue that Greggs benefited from post-grant positive market sentiment linked to the
development of Covid-19 vaccines; however, it took some months for the price to recover to
the level seen before the initial impact of Covid-19. The highin February 2020 of £24.42 was
not achieved again until May 2021, illustrating the lack of animmediate post-grant rebound.

- The Committee believes that the very strong level of share price growth throughout 2021
can be more fairly attributed to Company outperformance than simply arise in line with the
market. Share price growth from the grant date in October 2020 to the end of December
2021was an impressive 137%, which compares with 30% for the FTSE 250 and 44% for the
Food Retailers and Wholesalers Sector average.

- 2022 saw the share price fall from the record highs recorded in Becember 2021 given the
impact of inflation and cost pressures. Although there has been some recent recovery,
the current price of c. £27is still well below the end-2021high of £34.

- The Committee concluded that share price progression since the October 2020 PSP grant
date is not one of simple market-driven growth but reflects a strong level of performance
by Greggs, the impact of wider challenges and then a partial recovery.

In addition to the points above, the Committee reflected on matters such as the size of the
reduced 2020 grants relative to market practice at the time for FTSE 250 companies, the
current value of the vested awards (which, although significant, are not considered excessive
given what has been achieved over the performance period), the responsible approach taken
by Greggs in the immediate aftermath of the pandemic outbreak and the continued and
ongoing support provided by the business to its wider employee base (bothin terms of the help
provided during the pandemic and more recently in the light of cost-of-living challenges).

These awards will vest on 9 October 2023, prior to which the Committee will reassess whether
there has been any windfall gain.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

The table below sets out the number of shares, which will vest for each Executive Director
under the 2020 PSP award. All awards were granted as nil-cost options.

Number of Numberof  Expected
shares shares total
Executive Director Dateofgrant  Date of vesting awarded Vesting % vesting vesting'
Roisin Currie 8 October 90ctober
2020 2023 15,352 5% NS4 £247,208
Roger Whiteside 90ctober 90ctober
2020 2023 46,228 75% 25,8997  £556,057
Richard Hutton 9 0ctober 8 October
2020 2023 23,024 75% 17,268 £370,744
1 Cateulated using average share price over the final three months of the financial year of £21.47
2 Vestingpro-rated to reflect the proportion of the vesting pericd Roger Whiteside was employed
Performance Share Plan awards granted in 2022 (audited)
Performance Share Plan awards granted during 2022 are as follows:
Percentage of
face value
Number of thatwould  Vesting
Basisof Share price  shares over vestat performance
Typeof award anddateat whichaward Facevalue threshold  measurement
Executive award granted grant wasgranted of award performance period
£21.68
150% of (18 May
Roisin Currie' Nil-cost salary 2022) 36,014 £780.784 o Financial
options £24.99 25% year 2024
. 150% of {28 March
Richard Hutton salary 2022) 23,607 £589,939
1 RoisinCurrie's [*] d on 18 May 2022 following postthe AGMinto the role of Chief Executive.

Herawzrdwas scaled back by 13.25% to take into account the reductionin share price since 28 March 2022, the date of
grant of the award to the Chief Financial Officer

For the 2022 grant there are two independent performance targets applying to the awards.

Each performance target accounts for 50% of the award:

- 50% is subject to a performance target based on the Company’s average annual growth
in EPS over a performance period of three financial years commencing with the financial
year 2022 being between 3.0% and 8.0%.

- 50% is subject to a performance target based on the Company’s average ROCE over
aperformance period of three financial years commencing with the financial year 2022
tobeintherange 19.6% t0 22.6%.

For each metric, 25% of the award will vest on achieving threshold performance and
thereafter straight-line sliding scales will apply until stretch performance is achieved.

A holding period will apply to vested PSP awards requiring the vested shares to be held (net of
tax)for afurther two years.

Outstanding share awards (audited)
The following table sets out details of the PSP and savings-related share options held by,
or granted to, the Executive Directors who served during the year:

25z £, 3 : Su:
ze E g £ @
588 _ . 3 3t 5 5 iz g : .
55 35 £33 gy &2 2 g 822 s 3 3 H
Jas E2 sa 28  2q g s £:5 w58 & H
o888 SE st 8t BY s 5 53% 3%z % 5
288 o2 a2 32 b3 o a £38 8%3 o a
11,803 - - 5901 5902 Enil  Apr19 £18.30 Apr22 Apr29 PSP
15,352 - - - 15,352 €nil  0ct20 £14.07 Oct23 Oct30 PSP
Restricted
5,687 - - - 5687 £nil  Apr21 £2272 Apr24  Apr3l stock
option*
Roisin
Currie 9,668 - - - 9868 €nil  Apr21 £22.72 Apr24 Apr3l PSP
- 36,014 - - 36014 £nil May22 £21.68 May25 May32 psp
84 - 84 - - £14.84 Aprig Jun22 Nov22 SAYE
88 - - - 88 £14.24 Apr20 Jun23 Nov23 SAYE
75 - - - 75 £14.24  Apr21 Jun24  Nov24 SAYE
- 9 - - 91 £19.68 Apr22 Jun25 Nov25 SAYE
42,757 36,105 84 5,801 72,877
16,772 - 83867 8,386 - Enil  Apr19 £18.30 Apr22 Apr28 PSP
23,024 - - - 23,024 £nil  Oct20 £14.07 Oct23 Oct30 PSP
20,908 - - - 20,906 Enil  Apr21 £2272 Apr24 Apr3i PSP
Richard - 23,607 - - 23607 £nil May22 £21.68 May25 May32 PSP
Hutton 84 - 843 - - £14.84 Aprig Jun22 Nov22 SAYE
88 - - - 88 £14.24 Apr20 Jun23 Nov23 SAYE
75 - - - 75 £1872 Apr2) Jun24 Nov24 SAYE
- 81 - - 81 £19.68 Apr22 Jun25 Nov25 SAYE
60,949 23698 8470 8386 67791
Notes:

1 Themarket value on the date of exercise was £13.09 and the resultant gain on exercise was £357

2 Themarket value on the date of exercise was £21.52 and the resultant gain on exercise was £180,466

3 Themarket value onthe date of exercise was £22.38 and the resultant gain on exercise was £633

4 Therestricted stock option was granted in April 2021 pnor to Roisin Currie's appointment as (o lhe Boardand as CEQ
Designate. The award vests in April 2024 subject
members of the Operating Board at the time

andisinline with toother

During the year Roger Whiteside exercised 17,772 PSP options and 84 SAYE options. The share
price on the dates of exercise was £22.65 and £21.14 respectively resulting in gains of
£402,536 and £529 respectively. He remains entitled to a proportion of his outstanding PSP
awards as detailed on page 98.



Options granted under the all-colleague SAYE scheme are not subject to performance conditions.
All PSP options are subject to performance conditions as detailed elsewhere in this report.

The mid-market price of ordinary shares in the Company as at 31 December 2022 was £23.46.
The highest and lowest mid-market prices of ordinary shares during the financial year were
£33.72 and £16.73, respectively.

Legacy defined benefit pension scheme (audited)

The following table sets out the change in each Director’s accrued pension in the Company’s
defined benefit pension scheme during the year and their accrued benefits in the scheme at
the year end:

Increasein

Accrued Accrued accrued Transter
annual annual pension value of
pension pension  Increasein entitlement increasein
entitlement  entittement accrued  fortheyear accrued
asat asat3l pension netof pension
2 January inflati f i
Date service 2022 2022 fortheyear 1.338% fortheyear
Executive Director Dateof birth commenced £ £ £ £ £
Richard Hutton 3/6/68 1/1/98 18,522 24,782 - - -

Notes:

1 Thepensionentitlement shown is that which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to the end of the year,
butexcluding any statutoryincreases which would be due after the year end

2 Theinfiationrate of 1.338% shown in the table above is that published by the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions in
accordanze with Schedule 3 of the Pensions Schemes Act 1993

Increasein

Cash Cash thecash

transfer transfer transfer

valueasat  valueasat valuesince

2January  1January  3dJanuary

2021 .« 2022 2021

£ £ £

Richard Hutton 443,334 392,930 -

Note:

Cash equi transfer by Actuaries Guidance Note GNl1and theincrease s

stated net of contributions made by the Director. The transfer values disclosed above do not represent a sum paid or payable to
the individual Jirector. Instead they represent a potential liability of the pension scheme.

The main features of the defined benefit pensionscheme are:

- Pensionainormal retirement age of 1/60th of member’s final pensionable salary for each complete year and a proportionate
amount fer each additional complete month of service from the date of joining the scheme until 5 April 2008 when the
scheme was closed to future accruat:

Choice of givingup part of the ion i h fora f1
member'sbenefitsunder the scheme;

Pension payable in the event of ill health;

Spouse’s pension on death; and

- Normalretirement atage 65.

h sum subject to alimit of 25% of the total value of the
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Chief Executive pay compared to performance

The graph below shows a comparison of the total shareholder return for the Company’s shares
for each of the last ten financial years against the total shareholder return for the companies
comprised in the FTSE 250 Index (excluding Investment Trusts).

Thisindex has been chosen for this comparison because it includes companies of broadly
similar size to the Company.

Total Shareholder Return (£)
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3 lanDurantretired from the Board on 30

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

tcomes for Chief E

Remuneration tive over last ten years

The table below shows the total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive over the same ten-year period as the graph above. The total remuneration figure includes the annual bonus, pension

and PSP/option awards which vested based on performancein those years.

2022 2022

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 2021 Roger Whiteside Roisin Currie*

Total remuneration £1,011,381 £1,238,248 £2,473,695 £2,147,229 £1,689,265 £1,737,853 £2,540,966 £649,319 £€1,839,679 £1,012,665 £1,002,242
Bonus{% of max potential) 20.0% 100.0% 93.7% 86.7% §4.3% 59.2% 97.7% 0.0% 99.7% 75.4% 75.4%
PSP/options (% max potential) n/a nfa 100% 100% 100% 80.2% 100% 0.0% 50% 75% 75%

= Reflects payin the Chief Executive role during 2022

Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)
Details of the shareholdings of each Executive Cirector and their connected persons

as at 31December 2022 and their interests in shares are detailed below with the percentage
holding calculated using the share price at that date. As stated in the Directors’
remuneration policy, Executive Directors are required to build a shareholding equivalent
invalue to 200% of basic salary.

%
shareholding
hievedat

ownedat PSPawards

ownedat e

31December 1January (nitcost stock  awardsnot SAYE  31December
Director 2022 2022 options} options exercised awards 2022
Roger Whiteside 96,5002 88,661 84,203 - - 83 n/a
Roisin Currie 3,431 3,188 61,024 5,687° 5,802 254 25.6%"
Richard Hutton 106,934 98,391 67,547 - - 254 637.9%
lan Durant 1,700° 11,700 - - - - nla
Helena Ganczakowski 1,100 1,100 - - - - nla
Sandra Turner 1,000 1,000 - - - - n/a
Kate Ferry 562 562 - - - - nla
Mohamed Elsarky - - - - - - nla
Lynne Weedali 1,000 1,000¢ - - - - nla
Matt Davies 2,000 2,000° - - - - n/a

1 Asatdate of appointment(1February 2022)
2 RogerWhiteside retired from the Beard on 17 May 2022 and the sharehotdings in the table above reflect
the position on that date

2022 andthe ingsinthe table above reflect
the position onthat date
At date of appointment {17 May 2022)

5 Atdate of appointment{2 August 2022)

IS

B Therestricted stock options were granted in April 2021 prior to Roisin Currie’s appointment to the Board and as CEQ
Designate. The award vestsin April 2024 subject to i andisin line with simil d ted to other
members of the Operating Board at the time

7 Percentage ing i taking ints tthe value of owned shares and the net of taxvalue of

vested PSP awards not exercised

There have been no changes since 31 December 2022 in the Directors’interests noted above.
Further details of outstanding share awards are given on page 96.

Payments for loss of office or payments to past Directors (audited)

Roger Whiteside stepped down as Chief Executive and from the Board on 17 May 2022. Prior

to this date, he received his salary, pension and benefits as normal, as disclosed in the single
total figure table on page 93. During the balance of his notice period {which ended on 5 January
2023), he received monthly payments of his salary, pension and benefits, totalling £360,295,
£54,405 and £7,712 respectively. During this period he was also available to the new Chief
Executive to support her transitioninto role.

The Remuneration Committee and the Board agreed to treat Roger as agood leaver. He was
entitled to receive an annual bonus for 2022 for the period worked up to 17 May, with his bonus
payment pro-rated to cover this period only. The banus payment received in respect of this
period is disclosed on page 83.

His outstanding PSP awards will continue to vest at the normal time and be subject to the
satisfaction of the agreed performance targets. The awards granted in 2020 and 2021 will be
pro-rated to reflect the proportion of the vesting period completed at the time employment
ceased at the end of the notice period. The vesting outcome of the award granted in 2020 is
shown on page 95.

External directorships

Executive Directors may take up one Non-Executive Directorship outside of the Company
subject to the Board's approval and provided that such an appointment is not likely to lead
toaconflict of interest. It is recognised that this can support a Director’s development and
enhance experience as well as benefit the Company. Executive Directors will be entitled to
retain the fees of such an appointment.
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The Committee is aware of the importance of pay across the business and the table below
shows the expenditure and percentage change in the overall spend on all colleague costs
compared to other key financial indicators.

2022 2021 % increase/

£m £m (decrease)

All colleague costs 502.7 428.3 7%
Dividends 98.5 15.3 544%

Percentage change in remuneration of all Directors
The table below sets out the percentage change in remuneration for all Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) compared to the wider workforce.

2022 2021 2020
Salary Benefits Bonus Salary Benefits Bonus Salary' Benetits Bonus
% change %change % change % change % change % change % change % change % change
Roisin Currie n/a? n/a nfa n/a nla nla n/a nfa n/a
Roger Whiteside 0.0%* (2.6%) {24.4%) 10.9% (11.0%) 100.0% (8.3%) (39.2%) (100.0%)
Richard Hutton 3.5% 27.4% (2.2%} 21.6% (8.0%) 100.0% (3.3%) (13.6%) (100.0%)
Jan Durant 3.5% n/a n/a 10.9% n/a nfa {2.8%) nla nfa
Matt Davies - n/a? n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a nla n/a
Hzlena Ganczakowski 1.25%P n/a nla 18.3%3 n/a nla 7.5% nla n/a
Sandra Turner 8.8% n/a nfa 9.2% n/a nl/a (5.0%) n/a nfa
Kate Ferry 5.3% n/a nla 10.8% nla n/a {8.3%) n/a nla
Lynne Weedall n/a? n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a nla
Mohamed Elsarky 3.5% n/a n/a n/a® nfa nl/a nfa n/a nl/a
Allcolleagues 5.8%° (15.8%) (24.3%) 1.9% (1.2%) 100% 4% 3.2% (100%)
Forthe period of 1 Aprit 2020 to 31 August 2020 the salaries of the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors were voluntarily reduced by 20%
Roisin Currie, Matt Davies and Lynne Weedall i during 2022 and theref | change is shown
; i i Chair of the ionCommittee during 2020 and stepped down during 2022. Therefore she received an additional payment for this role for part of these years
Inorder to provide a i | pari: here aDirector i retired during the year, the percentage change figures have been ona full-year equi value

Mohamed Elsarky was appointed during 2021 and therefore no annual change is shown
For the purpose of salary the wider workforce is defined as all cclleagues
For the purpose of bonus the wider workforce is defined as management colleagues who are entitled to receive abonus

B N
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Chief Executive pay ratio reporting
Outlined below is the ratio of the Chief Executive’s single figure of total remuneration for 2022
expressed as a multiple of total remuneration for UK colleagues.

The three ratios referenced below are calculated by reference to the colleagues at the 25th,
50th and 75th percentile. We additionally disclose the total pay and benefits and base salary
of the colleagues used to calculate the ratios.

In time, the table below will build to represent ten vears of data:

Median
pay ratio

25th percentile
pay ratio

75th percentile

Financial year Method payratio

2022 Option B 90 84:1 80:1
2021 Option B 99:1 98:1 68:1
2020 OptionB 3011 30:1 28:1
2019 Option B 132:1 126:1 108:1

The 25th, median and 75th percentile data were calculated as at 13 January 2023. Full year pay
data for the 2022 financial year has been used to calculate the ratios.

lleague dataused late the ratios. 25th percentile Median 75th percentile
Total pay and benefits £22,343 £23,950 £25,304
Base salary £21,227 £22,556 £23,364

The following adjustments have been made in order to calculate the figures above:

We have used the assumption of a 40-hour week in order to calculate the hourly rate
for the Chief Executive from the single total remuneration figure;

- Forthe Chief Executive we have used acombined calculation for Roisin Currie and
Roger Whiteside, based on the number of days each served as Chief Executive in 2022,
to calculate the figures above; and

- Asthe hours our colleague work vary week to week we have converted their hourly rate
of pay into the equivalent 40-hour week in order that this is directly comparable with the
hourly rate for the Chief Executive.

Of the three options set out in the legislation for calculating the Chief Executive pay ratio,

we are using Option B - which uses Gender Pay Gap (GPG)data - to calculate the pay ratio.

We believe the steady nature of our workforce ensures that the representative group remains
the same as those individuals who are identified through the GPG reporting process. The
individuals represented at the 25th, median and 75th percentile are all cotleagues within

our front line retail and supply operations. The nature of our workforce and demographics are
such that we have over 95% of our colleagues working in our front-line operations - be that in
retail orin our supply chain.

Our pay reflects the key markets in which we operate and we also support our colleagues
with additional benefits such as profit share, colleague discount and discounted SAYE
participation. As previously outlined in this report, a key focus continues to be workforce
fairness and the pay arrangements and support provided to our colleagues across the
business. Our people are what makes our business successful and protecting our culture
alongside our shareholders’and wider stakeholders’interests remains our priority.

The Committee acknowledges that 2022 was a challenging year for both the business and our
colleagues due to the continued uncertainty and significant cost pressures being faced in the
second half of the year. We therefore reviewed carefully the approach taken with the wider
workforce when considering the approach to salary for the Executive Directors for the year
ahead. The 2023 pay award agreed for our wider workforce consisted of a base pay award of
7%, with an additional 3% (10% in total) for a number of our roles and an additional 3.2%(10.2%
in total)for our retail team members. On this basis, over 76% of our workforce received a pay
increase of 10% or more.

For our operational retail colleagues{over 21,500 colleagues) this pay increase was brought
forward by three months and therefore implemented from January 2023 (rather than April 2023).

Over the last five years, changes in the basic salary of our Chief Executive have consistently
beenin line with the base award given to all our colleagues. However, this year the Committee
reviewed the pay award of both the Executive Directors and Operating Board and agreed that
the awards should be proportionally lower than the general increases across the wider
workforce, implementing a 4% increase in pay.

As suchand as required in the regulations, we confirm our belief that the median pay ratio for
the year is consistent with the Company’s wider pay, reward and progression policies affecting
our colleagues.

This report was approved by the Board on 7 March 2023.
Signed on behalf of the Board

Lynne Weedall
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
7March 2023
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES INRESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the strategic report and the Directors’report,
the Directors’remunerationreport and the accounts in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent Company accounts for each
financial year. The Directors have elected under company law and are required under the
Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority to prepare the Group accounts in accordance
with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards. The Directors have elected under
company law to prepare the Company accounts in accordance with UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards.

The Group and Parent Company accounts are required by law and UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards to present fairly the financial position of the Group and the Parent
Company and the financial performance of the Group; the Companies Act 2006 providesin
relation to such accounts that references in the ralevant part of that Act to accounts giving
atrue and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation.

Under company law the Directors must not apprave the accounts unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Parent Company and of
the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and Parent Company accounts, the Directors are required to:

a. selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

c. state whether they have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards;

. prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unlessiit is inappropriate to presume
that the Group and the Parent Company will continue in business.

=%

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the Group’s and the Parent Company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and the Parent Company
and enable them to ensure that the accounts and the Directors’ remuneration report comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and the Parent Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Directors’ statement pursuant to the Di e and Transparency Rules

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Directors’report confirm

that, to the best of each person’s knowledge:

a. theaccounts, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards,
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the Parent
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as awhole; and

. the strategic report and the Directors’report contained in the annual report include
afairreview of the development and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

o

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Greggs plc website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of accounts
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Roisin Currie
Chief Executive
7March2023

Richard Hutton
Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GREGGS PLC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Greggs plc(the 'Parent Company’)and its
subsidiaries(the ‘Group’)for the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022, which comprise the
Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Balance Sheets, Statements of Changes in Equity. Statement of Cash flows and notes to
the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is
applicable law and UK-adopted International Accounting Standards. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial
statements is applicable law and UK-adopted International Accounting Standards and,
asregards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion:

- thefinancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the
Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the Group’s profit for the 52 weeks
then ended;

- theGraup financial statements have been properly preparedin accordance with
UK-adopted International Accounting Standards;

- the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards and as applied in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006; and

- the firancial statements have been prepared inaccordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing(UK)(ISAs
(UK))and applicable taw. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group and Parent Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters Group and Parent Company

Valuation of lease liabitities

Materiality Group
Overall materiality: £7.00 million{2021: £7.00 million)
Performance materiality: £5.25 million{2021: 4.55 million)
Parent Company
Overall materiality: £6.90 million{2021: £6.90 million)
Performance materiality: £5.7 million{2021: 4.48 million}
Scope Our audit procedures covered 100% of revenue, total assets and of profit
before tax.
Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the Group and Parent Company financial statements of the current
period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether

or not due to fraud)we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on the overall
audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the
engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Group
and Parent Company financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Valuation of Lease Liabilities

Key audit matter description Refer to page 74 - Audit Committee report
Refer to page 116 - Basis of preparation (Key estimates and judgements)
Refer to page 133 and 134 - Note 10, Leases
Lease Liability - £301.3 million (2021: £283.2 million)

As the Group occupies and manages approximately 1,900 shops/leases, the application of IFRS 16 is considered to give rise to a significant risk of material

misstatement. IFRS 16 involves a significant element of judgement and estimation derived from a number of key assumptions. We consider the most significant

assumptians affecting the valuation of lease liabilities to be:

- thelease term assumed in determining the lease liability (particularly in respect of circumstances where the Group remains in occupation using rights from the
Landlord and Tennant Act 1954); and

- thediscount rate applied to calculate the lease liability.

Changes to the assumptions included above are likely to have a material impact on the valuation of lease liabilities and given the value of lease liabilities in comparison

to Group materiality, we consider this area to represent a significant audit risk. Given the economic uncertainty and changing needs of the business in terms of shop

size and location, judgements made in respect of lease term may need to be revisited.

How the matter was addressed Our audit work relating to the valuation of lease liabilities included:
in the audit 1. Testing the accuracy and completeness of the underlying information used in the application of IFRS 18.
2. Critically challenging the key assumptions utilised by management, including the lease term and discount rate.
3. Testing that the calculations made were accurate through reperformance.
4. Assessing the application of and accounting for changes throughout the year including the treatment of new leases, modifications to leases, the unwinding of
interest and capital payments in respect of lease liabilities.
5. Reviewing disclosures relating to lease liabilities to ensure they are in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framewaork.

Key observations Our audit workin respect of the valuation of lease liabilities concluded that we did not identify any material misstatements and the disclosures management have made
are appropriate. .

Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we set certain thresholds which help us to determine the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. When evaluating whether the effects of
misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole, could reasonably influence the economic decisions of the users we take into account the qualitative nature and the
size of the misstatements. Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality as follows:

Group Parent Company

Overall materiality Overall materiality: £7.00 million(2021: £7.00 million) Overall materiality: £6.90 million(2021: £6.90 million}

Basis for determining overall materiality 4.7% (2021: 4.8%) of profit before tax » 4.7%(2021: 4.7%) of profit before tax

Rationale for benchmark applied Profit before tax is the primary measure used by the shareholders in assessing the performance of the Group and is a generally accepted auditing benchmark.
Performance materiality £5.25 million(2021: 4.55 million) £5.17 million {2021: 4.48 million)

Basis for determining 75% of overall materiality(2021: 65%) 75% of overall materiality{2021: 65%}

performance materiality

Reporting of misstatements Misstatements in excess of £350k(2021: £350k)and misstatements below that Misstatementsin excess of £345k(2021: £345k}and misstatements below that
to the Audit Committee threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

The materiality for the audit, was reassessed to reflect the actual results for the period. This did not result in any change in the original materiality.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GREGGS PLC CONTINUED

An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group consists of the Parent Company and nine subsidiaries all of which are dormant or
non trading. The Group audit team audited the only significant component being the Parent
Company. In doing so the coverage achieved by our audit procedures was 100% of Group
revenue, total assets and profit before tax. )

The impact of climate change on the audit

In planning our audit, we considered the potential impact of the possible risks arising from
climate change on the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements and obtained an
understanding of how management identifies and responds to climate-related risks. Further
information on management’s risk assessment, progress and commitments is provided in the
Group’s climate-related risk disclosures on pages 35 to 41 of the annual report.

We performed risk assessment procedures including making enquiries of management,
reading Board minutes and applying our knowledge of the Group and the Company and the
sector within which it operates to assess the potential impact on the financial statements.

Taking account of the nature of the business, the limited sensitivity of impairment reviews
to reasonably possible changes in future cashflows, and useful economic lives of tangible/
intangible assets to changing regulation, weather patterns or business activities, we have
not assessed climate-related risk to be significant to our audit. There was also no impact
on our key audit matters.

Inaccordance with our obligations with regards to other information, we have read the
Group's climate-related risk disclosures on pages 35 to 41 of the annual report and in doing
so have considered whether those disclosures are materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of the audit, or otherwise appear
to be materially misstated.

We have not been engaged to provide assurance over the accuracy of the climate-related
risk disclosures set out on pages 35 to 41in the annual report.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’use of the going

concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group’s and Parent Company’s ability to

continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting inciuded:

1. Assessing the forward-looking assumptions used by management in their assessment
of going concern.

. Corroborating key management assumptions to supporting evidence including financing
arrangements in place.

3. Challenging management’s assumptions including performing downside sensitivities
inrespect of key assumptions.

. Considering the adequacy of management’s scenario analysis and contingency plans.

. Checking the integrity and mechanism of the forecast model provided by management.

. Obtaining evidence of Board approval of the budgets and forecasts.

. Assessing historical forecast accuracy.

. Re-calculating management’s covenant calculations to assess the risk of forecast
non-compliance.

. Evaluating the adequacy of going concern related disclosures in the financial statements.

N

© N O

©

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s or the Parent Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the period of
assessment to December 2024.

Inrelation to the entity reporting on how they have applied the UK Corporate Governance
Code, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to the Directors’
statement in the financial statements about whether the Directors considered it appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the
otherinformation contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
ourreport, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.



Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
inthe course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- theinformation givenin the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and

- the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Inthe light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company
and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material
misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the

Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

- the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration
report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certaindisclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- wehave notreceived all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

Corporate governance statement

We have reviewed the Directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longer-term viability
and that part of the Carporate Governance Statement relating to the Parent Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review
by the Listing Rules.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the

following elements of the Corporate Governance Statement is materially consistent with the

financial statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit:

- Directors’statement with regards the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis
of accounting and any material uncertainties identified set out on pages 114 to 115;

- Directors’ explanation as to their assessment of the Group's prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why the period is appropriate set out on pages 114 to 115;

- Director’s statement on whether it has areasonable expectation that the Group will be able
to continue in operation and meets its liabilities set out on pages 114 to 115;

- Directors’statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 71;

- Board's confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and
principal risks set out on page 47;

- Section of the annual report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems set out on page 76; and

- Section describing the work of the Audit Committee set out on pages 72 to 77.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 101,

the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Grmjp’s
and the Parent Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations,
or have norealistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GREGGS PLC CONTINUED

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs{(UK) will always detect
amaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errorand are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud

Irregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of
our audit are to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws
and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and
disclosuresin the financial statements, to perform audit procedures to help identify instances
of non-compliance with other laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the
financial statements, and to respond appropriately to identified or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations identified during the audit.

Inrelation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud through
designing and implementing appropriate responses and to respond appropriately to fraud

or suspected fraud identified during the audit. '

However, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged
with governance, to ensure that the entity’s operations are conducted in accordance with the
provisions of laws and regulations and for the prevention and detection of fraud.

Inidentifying and assessing risks of material misstatementin respect of irregularities,

including fraud, the Group audit engagement team:

- obtained an understanding of the nature of the industry and sector, including the legal
and regulatory framework that the Group and Parent Company operate in and how the
Group and Parent Company are complying with the legal and regulatory framework;

- inquired of management, and those charged with governance, about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities, including any known actual,
suspected or alleged instances of fraud;

- discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud might
occur including assessment of how and where the financial statements may be susceptible

to fraud for regulated entities, as defined in ISA 250B: having obtained an understanding of
the effectiveness of the control environment.

The most significant laws and regulations were determined as follows:

L d iti dit

performed by the Group audit engagement team included:

IFRS/UK adopted IAS and -
Companies Act 2008

Review of the financial statement disclosures and testing to
supporting documentation

- Completion of disclosure checklists to identify areas of non-
compliance

Tax compliance regulations - Inspection and review of tax computations prepared by

management

- Input froma tax specialist was obtained regarding significant and
complex matters

- Consideration of whether any matter identified during the audit
required reporting to an appropriate authority outside the entity

Distributable profits -
legislation

Assessment of extent of compliance as part of our audit work
relating toreserves

Pension legislation - Assessment of extent of compliance as part of our audit work

relating to defined benefit pensions

Food Safety/Health and -
Safety/Employment/General -
Data Protection Regulation

Inquiry of management and Directors
Inspection of correspondence with legal advisors and regulators
{where applicable)

The areas that we identified as being susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud were:

Risk Audit procedures performed by the audit engagement team:

Revenue recognition - -
cut off

Testinga sample of transactions accounted pre and post year end
for each significant revenue stream ensuring that revenue is
recognised in the correct accounting period in line with the Group’s
accounting policy

Management override -
of controls

Testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other

adjustments;

- Assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting
estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and

- Evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions

that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor’s report.



Other matters which we are required to address

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the
shareholders on 14 May 2021to audit the financial statements for the 52 week period
ended 1January 2022 and subsequent financial periods.

The period of total uninterrupted consecutive appointments is two years, covering the years
ending 1January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the
Group or the Parent Company and we remain independent of the Group and the Parent
Company in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee in
accordance with ISAs (UK).

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to theminan
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

In due course, as required by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rule (DTR)4.1.14R, these financial statements form part of the European Single
Electronic Format (ESEF) prepared Annual Financial Report filed on the National Storage
Mechanism of the UK FCAin accordance with the ESEF Regulatory Technical Standard (ESEF
RTS). This auditor’s report provides no assurance over whether the annual financial report
has been prepared using the single electronic format specified in the ESEF RTS.

RsSM o Avdsk P
Rachel Fleming (Senior Statutory Auditor)

Forand on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

1St. James’ Gate

Newcastle upon Tyne

NE14AD

7March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 (2021: 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 JANUARY 2022)

2022 2021
Note £€m £m
Revenue 1 15128 1,229.7
Cost of sales (574.5) (447.7)
Gross profit 938.3 782.0
Distribution and selling costs {Nn3.2) (567.6)
Administrative expenses (70.7) (61.2)
Operating profit 154.4 153.2
Finance expense (net) 5. (6.1) (7.6)
Profit before tax 3-5 148.3 145.6
Income tax 7 (28.0) (28.1)
Profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of the Parent 120.3 175
Basic earnings per share 8 18.5p 15.7p
Diluted earnings per share 8 Nn7.5p 114.3p
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 31DECEMBER 2022(2021: 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 JANUARY 2022)
' 2022 2021
Note £m £m
Protit for the financial year 120.3 n72.5
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be recycled to profit and loss:
Remeasurements on defined benefit pension plans 20 0.7 71
Tax on remeasurements on defined benefit pension plans 7 18 .7
Other comprehensive income for the financial year, net of income tax 25 5.4
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 122.8 122.9
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BALANCE SHEETS
AT 31DECEMBER 2022(2021: 1 JANUARY 2022)
Group Parent Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note €m £m £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets .
Intangible assets 9 135 14.9 135 14.9
Property, plant and equipment n 390.0 343.8 390.6 344.4
Right-of-use assets 10 2816 263.6 2816 263.6
Investments 12 - - 5.0 5.0
Defined benefit pension asset 20 6.3 - 6.3 -
691.4 622.3 697.0 627.9
Current assets
Inventories 14 406 279 40.8 279
Trade and other receivables 15 50.2 376 50.2 37.6
Assets held for resale - 1.6 - 1.6
Current tax 18 0.8 0.4 0.6 0.4
Cashand cash equivalents 18 1916 198.6 191.6 198.6
283.0 266.1 283.0 266.1
Totalassets ) ) 974.4 888.4 980.0 8394.0
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 7 (197 (183.4) (1%s.4) . {1811}
Lease liabilities 10 {48.8) (49.3) (48.8) {49.3)
Provisions . 2 (3.6) (4.2) (3.6) {4.2)
(244.) (206.9) {251.8) (214.6)
Non-current liabilities
Other payables 19 (2.9) (3.2) (2.8) (3.2)
Defined benefit pension liability 20 - {2.4) - {2.4)
Lease liabilities 10 (252.5) {233.9) {252.5) (233.9)
Deferred tax liability 3 (26.3) (10.0) (25.7) (9.4)
Long-term provisions 21 (27 (2.8) 2.7) (2.8}
. . (284.3) (252.3) (283.7) (261.7)
Total liabilities (528.4) (459.2) (535.5) (466.3)
Netassets 446.0 429.2 4L4h5 427.7
EQUITY
Capitaland reserves
Issued capital . 22 20 2.0 2.0 2.0
Share premium account 22 231 20.0 231 20.0
Capital redemption reserve 22 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4
Retained earnings 4205 406.8 419.0 405.3
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent 446.0 429.2 4445 4277

Of the Group profit for the year £120.3 million (2021: £117.6 million)is dealt with in the books of the Parent Company.

The accounts on pages 108 to 155 were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

Roisin Currie '
Richard Hutton
Company Registered Number 502851 Greggs plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 109




STATEMENTS OF CHANGES INEQUITY

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 (2021: 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 JANUARY 2022)

Group
52 weeks ended 1January 2022

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Capital
Issued Share redemption Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Tatat
Note m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 3 January 2021 2.0 15.7 0.4 303.5 321.6
Total comprehensive income for the year .
Profit for the financial year - - - n7.s n7.8
Other comprehensive income - - - 5.4 5.4
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 122.9 122.8
Tr with ddirectly in equity
Issue of ordinary shares . - 4.3 - - 4.3
Sale of own shares - - - 03 0.3
Purchase of own shares - - - (10.0) {10.0}
Share-based payment transactions 20 - - - 2.2 2.2
Dividends to equity holders - - - {15.3) (15.3)
Tax items taken directly to reserves 7 - - - 3.2 3.2
Total transactions with owners - 4.3 - (19.6) (15.3}
Balance at 1 January 2022 2.0 20.0 0.4 406.8 428.2
52 weeks ended 31December 2022 Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Capital
Issued Share redemption Retalned
capital premium reserve earnings Total
Note £m £m £m | £m £m

Balance at 2 January 2022 20 20.0 0.4 406.8 4292
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financial year - - - 120.3 120.3
Other comprehensive income - - - 25 25
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 122.8 122.8
T ions with owners, r ded di y in equity
Issue of ordinary shares - 31 - - 31
Purchase of own shares - - - (m.o) (m.0)
Share-based payment transactions 20 - - - 3.6 36
Dividends to equity holders - - - (98.5) (98.5)
Tax items taken directly to reserves 7 - - - (3.2) (3.2)
Total transactions with owners - 31 - (108.1) (106.0)
Balance at 31 December 2022 2.0 231 0.4 420.5 4486.0
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY CONTINUED
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 31DECEMBER 2022 (2021: 52 WEEKS ENDED 1JANUARY 2022)

Parent Company
52 weeks ended 1January 2022

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Capital

Issued Share redemption Retained

capltal premium reserve earnings Totat

Note £m £m £m £m £m

Balance at 3 January 2021 2.0 15.7 0.4 3018 320.0
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financial year 6 - - - 176 17.6
Other comprehensive income - - - 5.4 5.4
Total comprehensive income for the year : - - - 123.0 123.0
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Issue of ordinary shares N - 4.3 - - 43
Sale of own shares - - - 0.3 0.3
Purchase of own shares . ’ - - - (10.0} {10.0)
Share-based payment transactions 20 - - - 2.2 2.2
Dividends to equity holders - - - (15.3) (15.3)
Taxitems taken directly toreserves a 7 - - - 3.2 3.2
Total transactions with owners : - 4.3 - (19.6) (15.3)
Balance at 1January 2022 2.0 20.0 0.4 4058.3 4277

I
52 weeks ended 31December 2022

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Capital

Issued Share redemption Retained

capital premium reserve earnings Total

. Note £m £m £m £m £m

Balance at 2 January 2022 ' 20 20.0 0.4 405.3 4277
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financial year . 6 - - - 120.3 120.3
Other comprehensive income - - - 25 25
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 122.8 122.8
T ions with owners, r directly in equity
Issue of ordinary shares - 31 - - 31
Purchase of own shares - - - (1.0} (11.0)
Share-based payment transactions 20 - - - 36 36
Dividends to equity holders - - - (98.5) (98.5)
Tax items taken directly to reserves 7 - - - - (3.2) 3.2)
Total transactions with owners - 31 - (109.1) (106.0)
Balance at 31 December 2022 T20 231 0.4 419.0 L4485
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STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 31DECEMBER 2022 (2021: 52 WEEKS ENDED 1JANUARY 2022)

Group Parent Company
2022 2021 2022 2021

Note €m £m €m £m
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations(see below) 2723 3121 2723 3121
Income tax paid (13.3) {19.2) (13.3) (19.2)
Interest paid on lease liabilities 5 (6.8) (6.3) (6.8) 6.3)
Interest paid on borrowings and other related charges 5 0.7) (1.1) 0.7 (1.1)
Net cashinflow from operating activities 2515 285.5 2515 285.5
Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (100.0) (50.5) (100.0) (50.5)
Acquisition of intangible assets (3.3) (3.8) (3.3) (3.8)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 038 0.3 0.9 0.3
Proceeds from sale of assets held for sale 16 - 16 -
Interest received 5 14 - 14 -
Netcash fromii ] (99.4) (54.0) (99.4) (54.0)
Financing activities
Proceeds fromissue of share capitat 31 43 31 43
Sale of own shares - 03 - 0.3
Purchase of own shares m.o) {10.0) (1.0) {10.0)
Dividends paid (98.5) (15.3) (98.5) {15.3)
Repayment of principal on lease liabilities (52.7) (49.0) (52.7) (49.0)
Net cash outflow from fi; iviti (159.1) (69.7) (158.0) 69.7)
Net{decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (7.0) 161.8 (7.0) 161.8
Cashand cash equivalents at the start of the year 16 198.6 36.8 198.6 38.8
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16 1916 198.6 191.6 198.6
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STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS CONTINUED
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 31DECEMBER 2022(2021: 52 WEEKS ENDED 1JANUARY 2022)

Cash flow statement - cash generated from operations

Group Parent Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note €m £m £m £m
Profit for the financial year 1203 n7.5 120.3 n7.e
Amortisation ] 47 4.5 47 4.5
Depreciation - property, plant and equipment n 58.0 54.2 58.0 54.2
Depreciation - right-of-use assets 10 52.8 487 52.8 48.7
Net impairment charge/{reversal)- property, plant and equipment n 12 (1.9) 12 (1.9)
Impairment reversal - right-of-use assets 10 0.0 {1.6) 0.0 (1.6)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 3 10 0.9 10 0.9
Release of Government grants 3 (0.4) {0.5) (0.4) (0.5}
Share-based payment expenses 20 36 2.2 36 2.2
Finance expense 5 6.1 76 61 76
Income tax expense 7 28.0 281 28.0 28.0
Increase ininventories (12.7) (5.4) 12.7) {6.4)
{Increase)/decrease inreceivables 12.4) 1.8 (12.4) 18
Increase in payables 30.8 58.9 30.8 58.9
Decrease in provisions 0.7) (0.4) (0.7) 0.4)
Decrease in pension liability 20 (8.0) (2.5) (8.0) {2.5)
Cash from operating activities 2723 3121 2723 3121
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

Significant accounting policies
Greggs plc{'the Company’)is acompany incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The Group accounts consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries(together referred to as ‘the Group’).
The results of the associate are not consolidated on the grounds of materiality. The Parent Company accounts present information about the Company as a separate entity and not about its Group.

The accounts were authorised for issue by the Directors on 7 March 2023.

(a) Statement of compliance
The Group and Parent Company accounts have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
as applicable to companies reporting under those standards.

(b) Basis of preparation
The accounts are presented in pounds sterling, rounded to the nearest £0.1 million unless otherwise stated, and are prepared on the histarical cost basis except for the defined benefit pension
asset/liability, which is recognised as the fair value of the plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set out in the Directors’report and strategic report on pages 1
to 101. The financial position of the Group, its cash flows and liquidity position are described in the financial review on pages 43 to 45. In addition, Note 2 to the accounts includes: the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging activities; and its exposures to credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently throughout the Group and to all years presented in these consolidated accounts except if mentioned otherwise.
From 2 January 2022 the following amendments were adopted by the Group:

- Amendments to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use;

- Amendments to IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract; and

- Annual Improvements 2018-2020.

Their adoption did not have a material effect on the accounts.

Going concern

The Directors have considered the adoptionof the going concern basis of preparation for these accounts in the context of recent trading performance, macro-economic conditions and the
trading outlook of the Group. At the end of the reporting period the Group had available liquidity totalling £261.6 million, comprised of cash and cash equivalents of £131.6 million plus an undrawn
revolving credit facility (RCF)of £70.0 million, which is committed to December 2025. The RCF includes financial covenants that the Group must comply with related to maximum leverage and a
minimum fixed charge cover. How these covenants are measured and the required ratios are set out in Note 2.



STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT ACCOUNTS

The Directors have reviewed cash flow forecasts prepared for the period up to December 2024 as well as covenant compliance for that period. In reviewing the cash flow forecasts the Directors
considered the current trading performance of the Group and the likely capital expenditure and working capital requirements of its growth plans.

After reviewing these cash flow forecasts and making enquiries, the Directors are confident that the Company and the Group will have sufficient funds to continue to meet their liabilities as they
fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the accounts. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

Key estimates and judgements )
The preparation of financial information in conformity with UK-adopted IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
inthe year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are reviewed forimpairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. For example,
shop fittings and right-of-use assets may be impaired if sales in that shop fall. When areview forimpairment is conducted the recoverable amount is estimated based on the higher of the
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal. Value-in-use calculations are based on management’s estimates of future cash flows generated by the assets and an appropriate
discount rate. Consideration is also given to whether the impairment assessments made in prior years remain appropriate based on the latest expectations in respect of recoverable amount.
Whereitis concluded that the impairment has reduced, a reversal of the impairment is recorded.

The Group has traded profitably throughout 2022, with year-on-year growth particularly strong in the first quarter due to the comparison with pandemic lockdown restrictions in 2021. As such
there is not considered to be a giobal indicator of impairment across the Group’s asset base. Where indicators of impairments exist for specific cash generating units {CGUs), with each individual
shop considered its own CGU (shops opened in 2021and 2022 are excluded on the grounds that they are still maturing}, then an impairment review has been performed to calculate the
recoverable value.

For those shops with indications of impairment{identified as mature shops with low cash generation relative to the carrying value of the associated assets), the value-in-use has been calculated

using thz following assumptions:

- Like-for-like transaction volumes for those shops have been assumed to grow at arate of 2.0% for the period of the impairment review;

- Where shops are currently used to fulfil orders for delivery, the net cash flows for fulfilling these orders are included within the estimated cash flows for the shop;

- Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rent (EBITDAR)is used as a proxy for net cash flow excluding rental payments;

- Thediscount rate is based on the Group’s pre-tax cost of capital and at 31 December 2022 was 9.6% (1 January 2022: 6.9%); and

- Consideration of the appropriate period over which to forecast cash flows, including reference to the lease term. Where considered appropriate cash flows have beenincluded for periods
beyond the lease probable end date {to a maximum of five years in accordance with IAS 36).

Onthe basis of these calculations, a netimpairment charge of £1.2 million has been recognised during the current year (of which £1.16 million relates to fixtures and fittings and £0.04 million

relates to right-of-use assets)resulting in an impairment provision of £5.2 million being retained at 31 December 2022 in respect of 92 shops (of which £2.3 million relates to fixtures and fittings
and £2.9 million relates to right-of-use assets).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

Significant accounting policies continued

(b) Basis of preparation continued

Impairment continued

Given the uncertainties in the impairment model, the sensitivities of these assumptions on the impairment calculation have been tested:

- Al1%increasein the discount rate would result in an increased impairment of £0.4 million, with an additional 11 shops impaired. A1% decrease in the discount rate would result in areduced
impairment of £0.3 million, with three fewer shops impaired.

- AS5%increase in the growth assumption for net cash flow (per annum}would result in a reduced impairment of £1.1 million with 16 fewer shops impaired. A5% decrease in the growth
assumption would result in an increased provision of £3.3 million with an additional 47 shops impaired.

Determining the rate used to discount lease payments

At the commencement date of property leases the lease liability is calculated by discounting the lease payments. The discount rate used should be the interest rate implicit in the iease. However,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for property leases, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. As the Group had

no suitable external borrowings from which to determine that rate, judgement is required to determine the incremental borrowing rate to be used. At the start of each month a risk-free rate is
obtained, linked to the length of the lease and an adjustment is then made to reflect credit risk. During the year discount rates in the range 2.5% to 5.9% were used. Small changes in the discount
rate would have animmaterialimpact on the accounts. A 0.1% change in the discount rate used for each lease is estimated to adjust the total liabilities by c. £1.0 million.

Determining the lease term of property leases

At the commencement date of property leases the Group normally determines the lease term to be the full term of the lease, assuming that any option to break or extend the lease is unlikely
tobe exercised and it is not reasonably certain that the Group will continue in occupation for any period beyond the lease term. Leases are regularly reviewed and will be revalued if it becomes
reasonably certain that a break clause or option to extend the lease will be exercised.

The leases typically run for a period of 10 or 15 years. In England and Wales, the majority of the Group’s property leases are protected by the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 (LTA) which affords
protection to the lessee at the end of an existing lease term.

Judgement is required in respect of those property leases where the current [ease term has expired but the Group has not yet renewed the lease. Where the Group believes renewal to be
reasonably certain and the lease is protected by the LTA it will be treated as having been renewed at the date of termination of the previous lease term and on the same terms as the previous
lease. Where renewal is not considered to be reasonably certain the leases are included with a lease term which reflects the anticipated notice period under relevant legislation. The lease will be
revalued when itis renewed to take account of the new terms. As at 31 December 2022 the financial effect of applying this judgement was an increase in recognised lease liabilities of £45.1 million
(1January 2022: £41.7 million).

Inaddition, where a shopis refurbished nearing the end of the contractual lease end date and the Group therefore expects to renew the lease, the lease liability is revised to reflect an additional
lease term. The impact of this judgement as at 31 December 2022 is an additional lease liability of £7.7 million(1January 2022: £7.7 million).

Post-retirement benefits

The determination of the defined benefit obligation of the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme depends on the selection of certain assumptions with significant estimation uncertainty
including the discount rate, inflation rate, mortality rates and commutation. Differences arising from actual experience or future changes in assumptions will be reflected in future years. The key
assumptions, sensitivities and carrying amounts for 2022 are given in Note 20. :
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(c) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated accounts include the results of Greggs plc and its subsidiary undertakings for the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022. The comparative period is the 52 weeks ended
1January 2022.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns fromits involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The accounts of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated accounts from the date on which control commences until the date on
which control ceases.

(i) Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group
holds 20% to 50% of the voting power of another entity unless it can be clearly demonstrated that this is not the case. At the year end the Group has one associate which has not been consolidated
on the grounds of materiality (see Note 12).

(iii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intragroup balances, and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated accounts.

(d) Exceptionalitems
Exceptional items are defined as items of income and expenditure which are material and unusual in nature and which are considered to be of such significance that they require separate
disclosurz on the face of the income statement. Any future movements on items previously classified as exceptional will also be classified as exceptional.

(e) Foreign currency .

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement.

(f) Intangible assets

The Group's only intangible assets relate to software and the costs of its implementation which are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in the income
statement asincurred.

Amortisation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful
lives are five to seven years.

Assets in the course of development are recategorised and amortisation commences when the assets are available for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

Significant accounting policies continued

(g) Leases

(i) Lease recognition

Atinception of a contract the Group assesses whather a contract is, or contains, alease. A contract is, or contains, alease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group uses the definition of alease in IFRS 16.

For leases of properties in which the Group is a lessee, it has applied the practical expedient permitted by IFRS 16 and will account for each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life or the lease term on a straight-line basis. Right-of-use assets are subject to,
and reviewed regularly for, impairment. Depreciation on right-of-use assets is included in selling and distribution costs in the consolidated income statement.

(i) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. Lease payments include fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable and variable lease payments that depend on anindex or rate. Any variable lease payments that do not depend on anindex or rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. Generally the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. When there are no external borrowings, judgement is required to determine an approximation,
calculated based on UK Government gilt rates of an appropriate duration and adjusted by an indicative credit premium.

After the commencement date, the lease liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term or a change in the fixed lease payments. The remeasured lease liability{and corresponding right-of-use asset)is calculated
using arevised discount rate, based upon a revised incremental borrowing rate at the time of the change. Interest charges are included in finance costs in the income statement.

(iv) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of machinery and equipment that have a lease term of less than 12 months and leases
of low-value assets. Lease payments relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(v) Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from a shop. For individual shops, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis of variable payment
terms. These payments are recognised in the income statement in the period in which the condition that triggers them occurs. Under existing lease arrangements, where variable payment terms
axist, the expected future cash outflow on an annual basis is expected to be immaterial.
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(h) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Owned assets

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciation {see below)and impairment losses{see accounting policy {}}). The cost of self-constructed
assetsincludes the cost of materials and direct labour.

(i) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing acomponent of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the itemiif it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the component will flow to the Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying value of the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in the income statement as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation
Depreciation is provided so as to write off the cost(less residual value) of each item of property, plant and equipment during its expected useful life using the straight-line method
over the following periods:

Freehold and long leasehold buildings 20to 40years
Short leasehold properties 10years or length of lease if shorter
Plant and machinery, fixtures and fittings 3to10years

Freehold land is not depreciated.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values(if not insignificant) are reassessed annually.

{iv) Assetsin the course of construction
These assets are recategorised and depreciation commences when the assets are available for use.

{i) Investments
Non-currentinvestments comprise investments in subsidiaries and associates which are carried at cost less impairment.

Current investments comprise fixed-term, fixed-rate bank deposits where the term is greater than three months.

(j) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completionand selling expenses. The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and direct production labour costs.

(k) Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash at bank, in hand. debit and credit card receivables and call deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

Significant accounting policies continued

(1) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group and Company's assets, other thaninventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Impairment reviews are carried out on an individual shop basis.

Animpairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in prior years are assessed at each reporting date and reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Animpairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(m) Assets held for sale

Assets that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use are classified as held for sale. Inmediately before classification as held for sale, the assets are
remeasured inaccordance with the Group and Company's accounting policies. Thereafter generally the assets are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.
Once classified as held for sale, assets are no longer depreciated or amortised.

(n) Share capital and reserves

(i) Repurchase of share capital

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased for cancellation, the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, is recognised as a deduction from equity
in the capital redemption reserve. Repurchased shares that are held in the employee share ownership plan are classified as treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from total equity.

(ii) Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability when the Company has an obligation to pay and the dividend is no longer at the Company’s discretion.

(iii) Distributable reserves
All Parent Company retained earnings are distributable and are the only such reserves.

(o) Employee share ownership plan
The Group and Parent Company accounts include the assets and related liabilities of the Greggs Employee Benefit Trust (EBT). In both the Group and Parent Company accounts the treasury
shares held by the EBT are stated at cost and deducted from total equity.

(p) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a resuit of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be measured reliably.

(i) Defined contribution pension plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement when they are due.
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(iii) Defined benefit pension plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets(at bid price)is deducted. The Company determines the net interest on
the net defined benefit asset/liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit
asset/liability.

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA, that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Company’s obligations and
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension plans comprise actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets(excluding interest). The Company recognises them immediately
in other comprehensive income and all other expenses related to defined benefit pension plans in employee benefit expenses in the income statement.

When the benefits of a plan are changed, or whenaplan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs.

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised
asset is limited to the present value of benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan{net of tax) or reductions in future contributions and takes into account the adverse effect
of any minimum funding requirements in accordance with IFRIC 14.

(iv) Share-based payment transactions

The share option programme allows Group employees to acquire shares in the Company. The fair value of share options granted is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date, using an appropriate model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted, and is spread
over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that
vest except where forfeiture is only due to share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting.

(v) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of the date at which the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of these benefits and the date at which the Group recognises costs
forarestructuring. If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date they are discounted.

(q) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

(i) Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publicly.
Future operating costs are not provided for.
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Significant accounting policies continued

(q) Provisions continued

(ii) Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the Group believes that the unavoidable costs of meeting the contract obligations exceed the-economic benefits expected
to be received under the contract. At this point and before a provision is established the Group recognises any impairment loss on the associated assets.

(iii) Ditapidations
The Group provides for property dilapidations, where appropriate, based on the future expected repair costs required to restore the Group’s leased buildings to their fair condition at the
end of their respective lease terms, where it is considered areliable estimate can be made.

(r) Revenue

(i} Retail sales

Revenue from the sale of goodsis recognised as income on receipt of cash or card payment. Revenue is measured net of discounts, promotions and value added taxation.
Revenue from delivery servicesis included in retail sales and recognised on delivery.

(ii} Franchise sales

Franchise sales are recognised when goods are delivered to franchisees. Additional franchise royalty fee income, generally calculated as a percentage of gross salesincome, is recognised in
line with the franchisees’ product sales in accordance with the relevant agreement. Pre-opening capital fit-out costs are recharged to the franchisee and represent a key performance obligation of
the overall franchise sales agreement. These recharges are recognised as income on completion of the related fit-out. Sales are invoiced to franchisees on credit terms of less than three months.

(iii) Wholesale sales
Wholesale sales are recognised when goods are delivered to customers.

(iv) Loyalty programme/gift cards

Amounts received for gift cards or as part of the loyalty programme are deferred. They are recognised as revenue when the Group has fulfilled its obligation to supply products under the terms of
the programme or when it is no longer probable that these amounts will be redeemed. Where customers are entitled to a free product after a set number of purchases under the loyalty programme,
aproportion of the consideration received is deferred so that the revenue is recognised evenly across all of the linked transactions.

The nature, timing and uncertainty of revenues arising from the above transaction types do not differ significantly from each other.

(s) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet initially as deferred income when there is areasonable assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised net of the related expenses in the income statement on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are recognised in the income statement over the useful life of the asset.

(t) Finance income and expense
Interestincome or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.
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(u) Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.

Current taxis the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years. The amount of current tax payable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the income statement because some items of income or expense are taxable or deductible in different years or may never be taxable or deductible.

Deferred taxis the tax expected to be payable or recoverable in the future arising from temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used in the calculation of taxable profit. It is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. The amount of deferred tax recognised is based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, using tax rates that are expected to apply when the temporary differences reverse, based on rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. When the recovery of the carrying amount of an asset gives rise to multiple tax consequences which are not subject to the same income tax laws,
separatetemporary differences are identified, and the deferred tax on these is accounted for separately, including assessment of the recoverability of any deferred tax assets that arise.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Adeferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related deferred tax benefit will be realised.

(v) Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
lesslossallowance.

(w) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within
45 days of recognition.

(x) Research and development

The Company continuously strives to improve its products and processes through technical and other innovation. Such expenditure is typically expensed to the income statement
when the related intellectual property is not capable of being formalised or capitalised within intangible assets.

(y) IFRSs available for early adoption not yet applied

The following amendments to standards which will be relevant to the Group were available for early adoption but have not been applied in these accounts:

- Amendments to IFRS Tand IAS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction {effective date 1January 2023).

Their adoption is not expected to have a material effect on the accounts.
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1. Segmental analysis

The Board is considered to be the ‘chief operating decision maker’ of the Group in the context of the IFRS 8 definition. In addition to its company-managed retail activities, the Group generates

revenues fromits business to business channel which includes franchise and wholesale activities. Both channels were categorised as reportable segments for the purposes of IFRS 8.

Company-managed retail activities - the Group sells a consistent range of fresh bakery goods, sandwiches and drinks inits own shops or via delivery. Sales are made to the general public ona

cashbasis. All results arise in the UK.

Business to business channel - the Group sells products to franchise and wholesale partners for sale in their own outlets as well as'charging alicence fee to franchise partners. These sales and

fees areinvoiced to the partners ona credit basis. All results arise in the UK.

Allrevenue in 2022 and 2021 was recognised at a pointin time.

The Board regularly reviews the revenues and trading profit of each segment. The Board receives information on overheads, assets and liabilities on an aggregated basis consistent with the

Group accounts.
2022 2022 202 2021
Retail company- Businessto 2022 Retail company- Businessto 2021
managed shops business Total managed shops business Total
€m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 13523 160.5 1512.8 1,098.2 1315 1,229.7
Trading profit* 2246 33 2559 2071 285 235.6
Overheads including profit share (101.5) (82.4)
Operating profit 154.4 153.2
Finance expense (net) {6.1) (7.6)
Profit before tax 148.3 145.6

Trading profit is defined as gross profit less supply chain costs and retail
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2. Fi ial risk
Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.

Retail sales represent a large proportion of the Group's sales and present no credit risk as they are made for cash or card payments. The Group does offer credit terms on sales to its wholesale and
franchise customers. In such cases the Group operates effective credit control procedures in order to minimise exposure to overdue debts.

Counterparty risk is also considered low. All of the Group’s surplus cash is held with highly-rated banks as specifically approved by the Board, in line with Group policy. Other receivables generally
relate to VAT and other sundry balances due from third parties. Credit risk is considered low as amounts are generally recoverable within 30-day terms.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group usually operates with net current liabilities and is therefore reliant on the continued strong performance of the retail portfolio to meet its short-term liabilities. Short and medium-term
cash forecasting is used to manage liquidity risk. These forecasts are used to ensure the Group has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions.

During 2020 the Group arranged a £100 million syndicated revolving credit facility with maturity in December 2023. During 2021the Group exercised an option to extend the maturity by one year to
December 2024 and during 2022 exercised a further option to extend the maturity to December 2025. This facility was undrawn at 31 December 2022(2021: undrawn). The covenants comprise:
leverage(calculated as the ratio of net borrowings to EBITDA) does not exceed 3:1; and fixed charge cover(calculated as the ratio of EBITDA to net rent and interest payable) cannot be below 1.75:1.

Market risk
Market riskiis the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financialinstruments.

Other than for the defined benefit pension scheme, market risk is not significant and therefore sensitivity analysis would not be m‘eaningfuL Sensitivity analysis for the defined benefit pension
scheme s given in Note 20.

Currency risk

The Group has no regular material transactions in foreign currency although there are occasional purchases, mainly of capital items, denominated in foreign currency. Whilst certain costs such
as electricity and wheat can be influenced by movements in the US dollar, actual contracts are priced in sterling. In respect of those key costs which are volatile, such as electricity and flour, the
price may be fixed for a period of time in line with Group policy. All such contracts are for the Group’s own expected usage.

Interest rate risk :
Interest rate risk is the risk that movement in the interbank offered rates increase causing finance costs to increase. The Group’s interest rate risk arises from its revolving credit facility. Whilst
the facility remains undrawn increases in the interest rate will not impact on finance costs.

Equity price risk

The Group has no significant equity investments other than inits subsidiaries and associate. As disclosed in Note 20 the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme has investmentsin
equity-related funds.

Greggspic Annusl Report and Accounts 2022 12D



126

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

2. Financial risk management continued

Capital management

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

- Toensurethe Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and
- Toprovide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and delivering services commensurate with the level of risk.

To meet these objectives the Group reviews the budgets, forecasts, profitability and cashflows on a regular basis to ensure there is sufficient capital to meet the needs of the Group.

The capital structure of the Group consists of shareholders’ equity as set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. All working capital requirements are financed from existing cash
resources and borrowings.

The Board reserves the option to purchase its own shares in the market dependent on market prices and surplus cash levels. The trustees of the Greggs Employee Benefit Trust also purchase
shares for future satisfaction of employee share options.

Financial instruments
Group and Parent Company
All of the Group's surplus cash or cash equivalents is invested as cash placed on deposit or fixed-term deposits.

The Group's treasury policy has as its principal objective the achievement of the maximum rate of return on cash balances whilst maintaining an acceptable level of risk. Other than mentioned
below there are no financial instruments, derivatives or commodity contracts used.

Financial assets and liabilities

Afinancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

- Itisheld within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- Itscontractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s main financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents and fixed-term deposits. Other financial assets include trade and other receivables arising from the Group's activities.
These financial assets all meet the conditions to be recognised at amortised cost.

Other than trade and other payables and lease liabilities, the Group had no financial liabilities as at 31 December 2022 (2021: £nil).

Fair values
The fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities is not materially different from their carrying values. Financial assets and liabilities comprise principally of trade and other receivables
and trade and other payables and the only interest-bearing balances are the bank deposits and borrowings which attract interest at variable rates.

Interest rate, credit and foreign currency risk
The Group has not entered into any hedging transactions during the current and prior year and considers interest rate, credit and foreign currency risks not to be significant.
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3. Profit before tax
Profit before tax is stated after charging/(crediting):

2022 2021

£€m £m

Amortisation of intangible assets 4.7 4.5
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment 58.0 54.2
Depreciation of right-of-use assets . 52.8 48.7
Netimpairment of owned property, plant and equipment . 12 (1.9
Net impairment of right-of-use assets 0.0 (1.6)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 10 0.9
Release of Government grants (0.4) (0.5)

Auditor’s remuneration for the audit of these accounts amounted to £266,260(2021: £250,000)and for other assurance services £31,300(2021: £nil). Amounts paid to the Company's auditor
inrespect of services to the Company, other than the audit of the Company’s accounts, have not been disclosed as the information is required instead to be presented on a consolidated basis.

During 2021 an income statement saving of £14.9 million was made following the suspension of business rates until April 2021. There was no similar saving in 2022.

4. Personnel expenses
The average number of persons employed by the Group and Parent Company (including Directors)during the year was as follows:

2022 2021
Number Number
Management 660 601
Administration 432 353
Production . 3,198 2,935
Shop 22,640 18,994
286,928 22,883

The agaregate costs of these persons were as foliows:
2022 2021
Note £m £m
Wages and salaries ) 439.1 378.0
Compulsory social security contributions 338 25.0
Pension costs - defined contribution plans 20 265 22.4
Equity-settled transactions (including compulsory social security contributions) 20 33 3.8
502.7 429.2
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4. Personnel expenses continued
In addition to wages and salaries, the total amount accrued under the Group’s employee profit sharing scheme is contained within the main cost categories as follows:

2022 2021
£€m £m
Cost of sales 43 4.3
Distribution and selling costs 103 10.3
Administrative expenses 20 2.0
Amount shared with employees 18.6 16.6
Compulsory social security contributions 21 2.1
187 18.7

For the purposes of IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, key management personnel comprises the Directors and the members of the Operating Board and their remuneration was as follows:
2022 2028
£m £m
Salaries and fees &4 3.4
Taxable benefits 0.1 0.1
Annual bonus (including profit share) 25 2.4
Post-retirement benefits 0.3 0.3
Equity-settled transactions 23 0.9
9.6 71

The following amounts are disclosed in accordance with Schedule 5 of the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups{Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008.

2022 2021
£m £m
Aggregate Directors’ remuneration 27 2.5
- Aggregate amount of gains on exercise of share options 0.2 2.0
29 45

As noted in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 83, the remuneration above includes the amounts paid to Roger Whiteside up to the date of his retirement from the Board.

During the year the number of Directors in the defined contribution pension scheme was two(2021: one)and in the defined benefit pension scheme was one(2021: one).
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5. Finance expense (net)

2022 2021
Note €m £m

interest income on cash balances 13 -
interest expense on borrowings and other related cherges (0.7) (1)
Foreign exchange gain/{loss) 01 (0.1}
Interest on lease liabilities {6.8) (6.3)
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 20 0.0 (0.1}
(6.1) (7.6)

6. Profit attributable to Greggs plc
Of the Group profit for the year, £120.3 million{2021: £117.6 million}is dealt with in the accounts of the Parent Company. The Company has taken advantage of the exemption permitted by s408 of
the Companies Act 2006 from presenting its own income statement.

7. Income tax expense
Recognised in the income statement

2022 2021
£m £m
Current tax
Currentyear 141 19.1
Adjustment for prior years (0.2) (0.2)
139 18.9
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 141 10.2
Adjustment for prior years 0.0 (1.0}
141 9.2
Totalincome tax expense inincome statement 28.0 281
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7. Income tax expense continued
Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The tables below explain the differences between the expected tax expense calculated at the UK statutory rate of 19% (2021: 19%)and the actual tax expense for each year.

2022 2021
2022 £m 2021 £m
Profit before tax 148.3 145.6
Income tax using the domestic corporation tax rate 19.0% 28.1 19.0% 277
Items not taxable for tax purposes {2.9%) (4.3) (2.0%} (2.8)
Non-tax-deductible depreciation 0.6% 1.0 0.7% 1.0
Impairment of non-tax-deductible assets - - (0.1%) (0.2)
Impact of increase in deferred tax rate 2.3% 34 2.5% 36
Adjustment for prior years (0.1%) (0.2) {0.8%) 1.2)
Totalincome tax expense inincome statement 18.9% 28.0 19.3% 281

Legislation toincrease the rate of corporation tax to 25% from 1April 2023 was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021. The 25% rate has therefore been applied to any timing differences that are
expected to reverse on or after 1 April 2023 whilst arate of 19% has been applied to those timing differences expected to reverse before 1 April 2023.

Tax recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

2022 2022

Current Deferred 2022 2021
tax tax Total Total
£m £€m £m £m

Debit/(credit):
Relating to equity-settled transactions - 3.2 3.2 (3.2)
Relating to current and defined benefit pension plans - remeasurement (losses)/gains : (0.8) (1.0) {.8) 1.7
(0.8) 2.2 14 (1.5)

The deferred tax movements in both the current and prior years relating to equity-settled transactions are in respect of share-based payments and arise as a result of fluctuations in share price
inthe year and the stage of maturity of existing schemes.

The current and deferred tax movements in both the current and prior years relating to defined benefit pension plans are in respect of plan remeasurements accounted for in other
comprehensive income, special contributions made to the scheme and the revaluation impact of deferred tax previously recognised directly in equity.
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8. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share )

Basic earnings per share for the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022 is calculated by dividing profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary sharesin
issue during the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022 as calculated below.

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share for the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022 is calculated by dividing profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares,

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares(which comprise share options granted to employees)in issue during the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022 as calculated below.

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

2022 2021

£m £m

Profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of the Parent 120.3 n7s
Basic earnings per share 1n8.5p 115.7p
Diluted earnings per share 117.5p 14.3p
Weig| averager of ordinary shares 2022 202
Number Number

Issued ordinary shares at start of year 101,897,021 101,426,038
Effect of own shares held (511,370) (221,851)
Effect of shares issued 100,009 284,386
Weighted average number of ordinary shares during the year 101,485,660 101,488,573
Effect of share options inissue 849,222 1,261,311
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) during the year 102,334,882 102,749,884
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

9. Intangible assets
Group and Parent Company

Software

Assetsunder
development

Total

£m £m £m
Cost
Balance at 3 January 2021 331 0.1 33.2
Additions 31 07 3.8
Transfers 0.1 0.1} -
Balance at 1January 2022 36.3 07 37.0
Balance at 2 January 2022 36.3 07 370
Additions 3.2 01 33
Transfers 0.8 (0.8) -
Balance at 31December 2022 40.3 - 40.3
Amortisation
Balance at 3 January 2021 17.6 - 17.6
Amortisation charge for the year 45 - 4.5
Balance at 1January 2022 221 - 221
Balance at 2 January 2022 221 - 221
Amortisation charge for the year 47 - 4.7
Balance at 31December 2022 26.8 - 26.8
Carrying amounts
At 3 Januery 2021 15.5 0.1 15.6
At1January 2022 14.2 0.7 14.9
At 2 January 2022 14.2 0.7 14.9
At 31December 2022 135 - 13.5

Allamortisation is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement.

Assets under development relate to software projects arising from the investment in new systems platforms.
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10. Leases
Amounts recognised in the balance sheets
The balance sheets show the following amounts relating to leases:

Group and Parent Company

2022 2021
£m £m
Right-of-use assets
Land and buildings . 278.4 260.4
Plant and equipment 3.2 3.2
281.6 263.6
2022 2021
£m £m
Lease liabilities
Current 48.8 49.3
Non-current 2525 233.9
3013 283.2
The remaining maturities of the lease liabilities, which are gross and undiscounted, are as follows:
2022 2021
£m €m
Lessthanoneyear 56.2 53.0
One to two years 525 471
Two to threeyears 477 43
Three to four years 39.9 38.3
Four to five years 324 31.0
More than five years 106.4 92,6
Total undiscounted lease liability 3351 305.1

Acditions to right-of-use assets during the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022 as a result of entering into new leases (either as a result of acquiring new shops or completing a lease renewal for an
existing shop)were £63.4 million(2021: £49.6 million).

Afurther netincrease of £7.8 million to right-of-use assets has also been recognised during the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022 as a result of lease modifications and assumptions relating to
lease term once a lease has become expired(202): net decrease of £9.1million).
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10. Leases continued
Amounts recognised in the income statement

2022 2021
£m £m
Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets
Land and buildings 516 41.7
Plant and equipment 12 1.0
52.8 48.7
Impairment charge/(reversal} 0.0 (1.6
Interest expense (included in finance expense) 6.8 6.3
Expense included for short-term leases (included in cost of sales and administrative expenses) 0.1 0.1
Expense related to lease of low-value assets that are not shown above as short-term leases(included in administrative expenses) . 02 0.1
Expense related to variable [ease payments not included in lease liabilities (included in distribution and selling costs} 5.1 21
The impairment charge/(reversal)is charged to distribution and selling costs in the income statement and arises due to changes in the trading performance of the shops.
The total cash outflow for leases accounted for under IFRS 16 in 2022 was £59.5 million (2021: £565.3 million)and for other leases was £5.4 million{2021: £2.3 million).
The components of the movement in the total lease liability were as follows:
2022
£m
Opening total liability 283.2
Additions in respect of new leases 83.4
Lease modifications 7.4
Interest on lease liabilities 6.8
Rental payments{including interest paid onlease liabilities within operating activities) {59.5)
Closing total liability 3013
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1. Property, plant and equipment

Group Landand Plantand Fixtures Assetsunder

buildings equipment andfittings construction Total

£m £m £m £m £m

Cost .
Balance at 3 January 2021 168.9 1725 3487 26.9 717.0
Additions 45 14.9 314 28 - 63.6
Disposals (0.5) (11.8) (16.3) - (28.3)
Transfers . 19.6 7.3 - (26.9) -
Reclassified as held for sale (1.8) - - - (1.8)
Balance at 1January 2022 190.7 183.2 363.8 2.8 740.5
Balance at 2 January 2022 180.7 183.2 363.8 28 7405
Additions 31 229 ns 9.7 1075
Disposals (0.4} (4.0) (215) . - (25.9)
Transfers 01 27 - (2.8) -
Balance at 31December 2022 193.5 204.8 41461 9.7 822.1
Depreciation
Balance at 3 January 2021 52.8 96.2 2227 - 3ng
Depreciation charge for the year 5.5 15.4 33.3 - 54.2
Impairment charge for the year - 0.1 0.7 - 0.8
Impairment release for the year - (1.0) (0.4) (1.3} - (2.7)
Disposals (0.1) (m.4) (15.6) - (27.)
Reclassified as held for sale {0.2) - - - (0.2)
Balance at 1January 2022 57.0 99.9 239.8 - 396.7
Balance at 2 January 2022 57.0 99.9 239.8 - 396.7
Depreciation charge for the year 6.2 16.6 35.2 - 58.0
Impairment charge for the year - . - 2.0 - 20
Impairment release for the year - - {0.8) - {0.8)
Disposals (0.3) (3.5) {20.0) - (23.8)
Balance at 31December 2022 62.9 n.o 256.2 - 4321
Carrying amounts .
At 3 January 2021 6.1 76.3 126.0 26.9 345.3
At1January 2022 ’ 133.7 83.3 124.0 2.8 343.8
At 2 January 2022 133.7 83.3 124.0 28 343.8
At 31December 2022 130.6 9.8 157.9 9.7 390.0

Assets under construction relate to the building of an additional line for the production of savouries at the manufacturing facility at Balliol Park, Newcastle upon Tyne.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11. Property, plant and equipment continued

Assets are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable and provision is made where necessary. The method and
assumptions used in these calculations, together with the associated sensitivities and reasons for impairment, are set out in the basis of preparation - key estimates and judgements on page 115.
Any impairment charge/(reversal)is charged to distribution and selling costs in the income statement.

During 2018, the Company exchanged contracts for the disposal of the vacant Twickenham site. The disposal is conditional on a number of factors, including the applications for and successful
grant of planning permission. As at the end of 2022 the timing of the resolution of these factors remains uncertain and therefore this asset continues to be classified as non-current. At this stage
the total proceeds arising from supply chain site disposals are still expected to be in line with those anticipated in the investment plan.

During 2021, the Company exchanged contracts for the sale of land held in Southall. The cost and associated depreciation were reclassified as an asset held for sale in current assets. The sale
was completed during 2022 for a cash consideration of £1.6 million.
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Parent Company

Landand Plantand Fixtures Assetsunder

buitdings equipment and fittings construction Total

£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
Balance at 3 January 2021 168.4 173.0 349.2 26.9 7185
Additions 4.5 14.9 34 2.8 53.6
Disposals (0.5) (1.5) (18.3) - (28.3)
Transfers 19.6 73 - (26.9) -
Reclassified as held for sale (1.8} - - - {1.8)
Balance at1January 2022 191.2 183.7 364.3 2.8 742.0
Balance at 2 January 2022 191.2 183.7 364.3 28 742.0
Additions 31 229 ns 9.7 1075
Disposals (0.4) {4.0) (21.5) - (25.9)
Transfers 0.1 27 - (2.8) -
Balance at 31December 2022 194.0 205.3 414.6 9.7 823.6
Depreciation
Balance at 3 January 2021 63.1 96.4 2231 - 372.6
Depreciation charge for the year 55 15.4 33.3 - 54.2
Impairment charge for the year - 0.1 0.7 - 0.8
Impairment release for the year (1.0} (0.4) 1.3) - (2.7)
Disposals {0.1) (11.4) {15.6) - (27.)
Reclassified as held for sale (0.2} - - - (0.2)
Balance at 1January 2022 §7.3 100.1 240.2 - 397.6
Balance at 2 January 2022 573 100.1 240.2 - 3976
Depreciation charge for the year 6.2 16.6 35.2 - 58.0
Impairment charge for the year - - 20 - 20
Impairment release for the year - - (0.8) - {0.8)
Disposals (0.3) (3.5) (20.0) - (23.8)
Balance at 31December 2022 63.2 1n3.2 256.6 - 433.0
Carrying amounts
At 3January 2021 116.3 76.6 126.1 26.9 345.9
At1January 2022 133.9 83.6 1241 2.8 344.4
At 2 January 2022 133.8 836 124.1 28 3444
At 31December 2022 130.8 921 158.0 97 390.6
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11. Property, plant and equipment continued
Land and buildings
The carryingamount of land and buildings comprises:

Group Parent Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m
Freehold property 129.6 132.5 129.8 132.7
Longleasehold praperty 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4
Short leasehold property 0.6 08 0.6 0.8
130.6 133.7 130.8 133.9
12. Investments
Non-currentinvestments
Parent Company Sharesin
subsidiary
undertakings
£m
Cost
Balance at 3 January 2021, 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 58
Impairment
Balance at 3 January 2021, 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 0.8
Carrying amount
Balance at 3 January 2021, 1 January 2022, 2 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 5.0
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The undertakings in which the Company's interest at the year end is more than 20% are as follows:

Proportion of
Addressof  votingrightsand

g office shares held
Charles Bragg{Bakers)Limited Non-trading 1 100%
Greggs(Leasing)Limited Dormant 1 100%
Thurston Parfitt Limited Non-trading 1 100%
Greggs Properties Limited Property holding 1 100%
Olivers(U.K.)Limited Dormant 2 100%
Olivers(U.K.) Development Limited* Non-trading 2 100%
Birketts Holdings Limited Dormant 1 100%
J.R. Birkett and Sons Limited* Non-trading 1 100%
Greggs Trustees Limited Trustees 1 100%
Solstice Zone A Management Company Limited Non-trading 3 28%

*  Heldindirectly

1 Greggs House 2 Clydesmill Bakery 3 The Abbey
Quorum Business Park 75 Westburn Brive Preston Road
Newcastle upon Tyne Clydesmill Estate Yeovil
NE128BU Cambuslang Somerset

Glasgow BA202EN
G727NA

Solstice Zone A Management Company Limited was not consolidated on the grounds of materiality in either the current or prior year.

The Company’s subsidiary undertakings listed above were all entitled to exemption, under subsections(1)and(2) of s480 of Companies Act 2006 relating to dormant companies, from the
requirement to have their accounts audited.
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13. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Group
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Assets Liabllities Net
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment - - (33.2) (18.5) (33.2) (18.5)
Employee benefits 49 6.8 - - 4.9 6.6
Short-term temporary differences 0.7 0.6 - - 0.7 0.8
Unused tax losses 13 1.3 - - 13 1.3
Tax assets/(liabilities) 6.9 8.5 (33.2) (18.5) (26.3) {10.0)

The Group has a deferred tax asset of £8.5 million relating to buildings which previously qualified for industrial buildings allowance that is unrecognised at 31 December 2022, as it is not

considered to be recoverable(1January 2022: £8.5 million).

The movements in temporary differences during the 52 weeks ended 1January 2022 were as follows:

Balance at Batanceat
3January Recognised Recognised 1Januvary
2021 inincome inequity 2022
£m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 8.3) (10.2) - {18.5)
Employee benefits 55 (0.4) 1.5 6.6
Short-term temporary differences 0.5 0.1 - 0.6
Unused tax losses. - 1.3 - 1.3
(2.3) (9.2} 15 (10.0)
The movements in temporary differences during the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022 were as follows:
Balanceat Balance at
2January i
2022 Inincome inequity 2022
€m €m £m €m
Property, plant and equipment {18.5) (14.7) - (33.2)
Employee benefits 6.6 05 (2.2) 4.9
Short-term temporary differences 0.6 01 - 0.7
Unusedtaxlosses 13 - - 13
(10.0) (14.1) (2.2) {26.3)




STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS’REPORT ACCOUNTS

Parent Company
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Assets . Liabilities Net
2022 2021 2022 202 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m €m £m
Property, plant and equipment - - (32.6) (17.9) (32.6) (17.9)
Employee benefits 49 6.6 - - 4.9 6.6
Short-term temporary differences 0.7 0.6 - - 0.7 0.6
Unused tax losses 13 1.3 - - 13 1.3
Tax assets/{liabilities) 6.9 8.5 (32.6) (17.9} {25.7) {9.4)
The movements in temporary differences during the 52 weeks ended 1January 2022 were as follows:
Balance at Balance at
3January Recognised Recognised 1January
2021 Inincome inequity 2022
£m £m £m Em
Property, plant and equipment (7.8) (10.1) - (17.9)
Employee benefits 55 {0.4) 15 6.6
Short-term temporary differences 0.5 0.1 - 0.6
Unused taxlosses - 13 - 1.3
(1.8) (9.1 15 (9.4)
The movements in temporary differences during the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022 were as follows:
Balance at Balance at
2January i ]
2022 Inincome Inequity 2022
€m £m €m £m
Property, plant and equipment (17.9) (14.7) - (32.6)
Employee benefits 6.6 05 (2.2) 49
Short-term temporary differences 0.6 01 - 0.7
Unused tax losses 13 - - 13
(9.4) (14.7) (2.2) (25.7)
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14. Inventories

Group and Parent Company

2022 2021
£m £m

Raw materials and consumables 237 15.8
Work in progress 16.9 121
40.6 27.9

Inventory recognised as an expense during the year was £455.6 million(2021: £347.7 million). The write-down of inventories that was recognised as an expense in the period was £32.8 million
{2021: £36.0 million). There was no reversal of write-down of inventories in the current or prior year.

15. Trade and other receivables

Group and Parent Company

2022 2021

£m £m

Trade receivables 3.2 245
Other receivables 9.4 7.4
Prepayments 96 5.7
50.2 376

At 31 December 2022 and 1January 2022 the allowance for expected credit losses(ECLs)on financial assets are not material.

The ageing of trade receivables at the balance sheet date was:

Group and Parent Company

2022 2021
£m £€m

Not past due date . 29.2 231
Past due 1-30 days 19 1.5
Past due 31-90 days - (0.1}
Past due over 90 days 01 -
3.2 245

The Group believes that all amounts that are past due by more than 30 days that have animmaterial allowance for ECLs are still collectable in full based on historic payment behaviour and
extensive analysis of customer credit risk. Based on the Group’s monitoring of customer credit risk, the Group believes that no significant allowance for ECLs is necessary in respect of trade
receivables not past due.



16. Cash and cash equivalents
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Group and Parent Company

2022 2021

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 1916 198.6
17. Trade and other payables

Group Parent Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

£m £m £m £m

Trade payables 102.8 74.1 102.8 74

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 77 7.7

Other taxes and social security 8.6 8.8 8.6 8.8

Other payables 46.9 46.6 46.9 46.6

Azcruals 28.3 19.6 283 19.6

Advance payments from customers 486 3.8 4.6 3.8

Deferred Government grants 05 0.5 05 05

1917 163.4 199.4 161.1

Other payables includes accruals of £21.5 million{2021: £23.0 million)for performance-related remuneration.

18. Current tax

The current tax asset of £0.6 millionin the Group and the Parent Company{2021: Group and Parent Company: £0.4 million) represents the estimated amount of income taxes recoverable in

respect of current and prior years.

19. Non-current liabilities - other payables

Group and Parent Company

2022 2021
£m £m
Deferred Government grants 28 3.2

The Group has been awarded five Government grants relating to the extension of existing facilities and construction of new facilities. The grants, which have all been recognised as deferred

income, are being amortised over the weighted average of the useful lives of the assets they have been used to acquire.
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20. Employee benefits

Defined benefit pension plan

Scheme background

The Company sponsors a funded final salary defined benefit pension plan(the 'scheme’)for qualifying employees. The scheme was closed to future accrual in 2008 and all remaining employees
who are still members of the scheme are now members of the Company's defined contribution scheme.

The scheme is administered by a separate Board of Trustees which s legally separate from the Company. The Trustees are composed of representatives of both the employer and employees.
The Trustees are required by law to act in the interest of all relevant beneficiaries and are responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets plus the day-to-day administration of
the benefits.

UK legislation requires that pension schemes are funded prudently. The last funding valuation of the scheme was carried out by a qualified actuary as at 6 April 2020 and showed a deficit.
The Company has agreed a schedule of contributions to the scheme which totalled £15.0 million.

The Company has a legal right to benefit from any surplus on the winding up of the scheme. The IAS 19 valuation at 31 December 2022 showed that the scheme has a surplus of £12.1million.
However, this surplus and the future-committed contributions would be subject to withholding tax at 35% prior to any refund to the Company. In accordance with accounting standards this
withholding tax has been recognised as a deducticn from the valuation surplus creating an overall surplus position of £6.3 million

Profile of the scheme
The defined benefit pension obligation includes benefits for deferred members and current pensioners.

At 31 December 2022, the scheme had no active members(2021: nil}, 351 deferred members{2021: 361}and 292 pensioners(2021: 283).
The scheme duration is an indicator of the weighted average time until benefit payments are made. For the scheme as a whole, the duration is approximately 15 years (2021: 19 years).

Investment strategy
The Company and Trustees have agreed along-term strategy for reducing investment risk as and when appropriate. This includes a policy to hold sufficient cash and bond assets to cover the
anticipated benefit payments for at least the next five years so as to improve the cash flow matching of the scheme’s assets and liabilities.

Risks to the scheme

By funding the defined benefit pension scheme the Company is exposed to the risk that the cost of meetingits obligations is higher than anticipated. This could occur for several reasons including:
- Investment returns on the scheme assets could be lower than anticipated;

- Thelevel of price inflation may be higher than that assumed, resulting in higher payments from the scheme; or

- Scheme members may live longer than assumed, for example due to advances in healthcare.
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Defined benefit pension asset/(liability)

Group and Parent Company

2022 2021

€m £m
Defined benefit obligation {82.5) (132.5)
Fair value of plan assets 946 135.5
Net defined benefit pension surplus before IFRIC 14 adjustment 121 3.0
IFRIC 14 adjustment (5.8) (5.4)
Net defined benefit pension asset/{liability) after IFRIC 14 adjustment 6.3 (2.4}

Inaccordance with IFRIC 14, the Group has considered that the net defined benefit pension surplus is limited to the present value of benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the
plan(net of withholding tax}and also takes into account the adverse effect of the minimum funding requirement that the Group is committed to as at 31 December 2022.

Liability for defined benefit pension obligations
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit pension obligation are as follows:

Group and Parent Company

2022 2021
£m £m
Opening defined benefit pension obligation 1325 143.4
Interest cost 24 1.8
Remeasurement({gains)/losses:
-changes in mortality assumptions 0.7) -
- changes in financial assumptions (53.3) {6.6)
- experience 5.4 (2.8)
Benefits paid (3.8) (3.3}
Closing defined benefit pension obligation 825 132.5

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follaws:

Group and Parent Company

2022 2021

£m £m
Opening fair value of plan assets 135.5 131.5
Net interest on plan assets 25 17
Remeasurement (losses)/gains (47.6) 3.1
Company special contribution 8.0 25
Benefits paid (3.8) (3.3)
Closing fair value of plan assets 94.8 135.5
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20. Employee benefits continued
Defined benefit pension plan continued
The costs charged in the income statement are as follows:

Group
2022 2021
£m £m
Interest expense on net defined pension liability 01 0.1
Associated movement in IFRIC 14 adjustment [(R )] -
Netinterest expense 0.0 0.1
The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows: Group
2022 2021
€m £Em
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit pension plans 1.0 125
Associated movement in IFRIC 14 adjustment 0.3) (5.4)
Net remeasurement gains on defined benefit pension plans 0.7 Al

Cumulative remeasurement gains and losses reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income since 28 December 2003, the transition date to adopted IFRSs, for the Group and

the Parent Company are net losses of £16.7 million{2021: net losses of £12.7 million).

The fair value of the plan assets is as follows:

Group and Parent Company

2022 2021
£€m £m
Equities -UK 8.8 1.8
- Overseas 139 22.6
Bonds -Corporate 23.2 41.0
- Government 375 521
Cash and cash equivalents/other n.2 8.2
94.6 135.5

Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages): Sraup amd Parent Company
2022 2021
Discount rate 4.75% 1.85%
Future salary increases n/a nla
Future pensionincreases 1.95%-2.60% 2.05%-2.80%
Rate of price inflation (RPI} 3.10% 3.30%
Rate of price inflation (CPI) 2.60% 2.80%

In November 2020 the Government announced that RP! is to be aligned with CPIH (CPI with owner occupiers’ costs) from 2030. As result the RPl assumption has been updated along with the

assumed future gap between RPland CPI.
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Mortality assumption

Mortality in retirement is assumed to be in line with the S2PXA tables using CMI_2021 projections, though placing no weight on the. 2020 and 2021 data due to the inherent uncertainty over the
longer-term implications of Covid-19, and a long-term rate of 1.25% per annum. Under these assumptions, pensioners aged 85 now are expected to live for a further 22.0 years(2021: 22.3 years)
if they are male and 24.1years(2021: 24.3 years)if they are female. Members currently aged 45 are expected to live for a further 23.4 years(2021: 23.6 years)from age 65 if they are male and fora
further 25.6 years(2021: 25.8 years)from age 65 if they are female.

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:

Change inassumption Impact on scheme liabilitles
Discount rate 0.1% increase £65.6 million decrease
Inflation 0.1% decrease £3.7 million decrease
Mortality rates lyearincrease £2.5millionincrease

If the commutation assumption were to be removed from the valuation the impact would be anincrease in the scheme liabilities of £1.4 million.
The other demographic assumptions have been set having regard to latest trends in the scheme.

Atriennial valuation of the scheme took place in April 2020 and was finalised during 2021. The outcome of that valuation showed a deficit in funding. This paosition was considered by the Trustees
and the Company and a schedule of additional contributions of £2.5 million per year for six years, beginning in 2021, was agreed. However, as a result of the volatile market conditions in the
autumn of 2022 the Company advanced payment of £5.5 million of these committed contributions, bringing the total contributionin the yearto'£8 million. £4.5 million of the original commitment
remains to be paid in future years, none of which is expected to be paid in 2023.

Defined contribution plans

The Company also operates defined contribution schemes for other eligible employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group. The pension cost represents
contributions payable by the Group and amounted to £26.5 million(2021: £22.4 million}in the year. At 31 December 2022 regular monthly employee and employer contributions of £2.8 million were
not paid over to the schemes(1January 2022: £2.3 million). These amounts were paid to the schemes in January.
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20. Employee benefits continued
Share-based payments - Group and Parent Company
The Group has established a Savings-Related Share Option Scheme, an Executive Share Option Scheme and a Performance Share Plan.

The terms and conditions of the grants for these schemes are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of shares:

Number of
Exercise shares
Dateof grant Employees entitled price granted  Vesting conditions Contractual life

Performance Share Plan 3 March 2012 Senior executives £nil 248,922  Three years'service, EPS annual compound growth of 3-8% over RP| over those three 10years
years and TSR position relative to an appropriate comparator group

Executive Share Option Scheme 16 March 2013 Senioremployees . £4.80 693,000 Threeyears'serviceand EPS growth of 3-7% over RPl on average over those threeyears  10years

Performance Share Plan 4 March 2013 Senior executives £nil 305,592 Threeyears’service, EPS annual compound growth of 3-8% over RP| over those three 10years
years and TSR position relative to an appropriate comparator group

Performance SharePlan5 March 2014 Senior executives £nil 224,599 Three years’service, EPS annual compound growth of 1-4% over RP| over those three 10years
years and average annual ROCE of 15.5-17% over those three years

Executive Share Option Scheme 17 April 2014 Senioremployees £5.00 698,225 Threeyears'service and EPS growth of 1-4% over RPl on average over those threeyears  10years

Executive Share Option Scheme 18 March 2015 Senioremployees £10.22 298,045 Threeyears'service and EPS growth of 1-7% over RPl on average over those threeyears  10years

Executive Share Option Scheme 18a May 2015 Senior employee £10.56 3,285 Threeyears' service and EPS growth of 1-7% over RPl on average over those threeyears ~ 10years

Performance Share Plan 6 March 2015 Senior executives £nil 146,174  Three years'service, EPS annual compound growth of 1-7% over RPl over those three 10years
years and average annual ROCE of 18-21.5% over those three years

Performance Share Plan7 March 2016 Senior executives £nil 133,271 Threeyears'service, EPS average annual growth of 2-8% over RPl over those three years 10 years
and average annual ROCE of 22-27% over those three years

Executive Share Option Scheme 19 April 2016 Senior employees £10.88 235,867 Threeyears’service and EPS growth of 2-8% over RPl on average over those threeyears 10 years

Performance Share Plan 8 May 2017 Senior executives €nil 206,404 Threeyears’service, EPS average annual growth of 5-11% over those three years and 10years
average annual ROCE of 23-27% over those three years

Executive Share Option Scheme 20 April 2017 Senior employees £10.33 246,219 Three years’service and EPS growth of 5-11% on average over those three years 10years

Performance Share Plan 9 March 2018 Senior executives £nil 190,943 Threeyears'service, EPS average annual growth of 5-11% over those three years and 10years
average annual ROCE of 25-29% over those three years

Executive Share Option Scheme 21 March 2018 Senior employees £11.97 228,923 Threeyears'service and EPS growth of 5-11% on average over those three years 10years

Savings-Related Share Option April 2018 Allemployees £9.54 335482 Threeyears'service 3.5years

Scheme18

Performance Share Plan10 April 2019 Senior executives £nil 128,634  Threeyears'service, EPS average annual growth of 5-11% over those three years and 10years
average annual ROCE of 24-28% over those three years

Executive Share Option Scheme 22 April 2019 Senior employees £18.30 140,913  Threeyears'service, EPS average annual growth of 5-11% over those three years and 10years
average annual ROCE of 24-28% over those three years

Savings-Related Share Option April 2019 Allemployees £14.84 230,604 Threeyears'service 3.5years

Scheme 20




STRATEGIC REPORT DIRECTORS'REPORT

ACCOUNTS

Number of
Exercise shares
Date of grant Employees entitled price granted  Vesting conditions Contractuallife
Savings-Related Share Option April 2020 Allemployees £14.24 239,673 Threeyears'service 3.5years
Scheme 21
Performance Share Plan 11 October 2020 Senior executives £nil 166,366  Three years'service, EPS performance in FY2022, ROCE performance in FY2022andtwo 10years
strategic objectives
Executive Share Option Scheme 23 November 2020 Senior employees £17.20 121,202  Threeyears'service, EPS performance in FY2022, ROCE performance in FY2022andtwo 10 years
strategic objectives
Savings-Related Share Option April 2021 Allemployees £18.72 291,979 Threeyears’service 3.5years
Scheme 22
Performance Share Plan 12 April 2021 Senior executives £nil 120,022 Threeyears’service, EPS performance in FY2023, ROCE performance in FY2023 10years
Performance Share Plan 12(retained}  April 2021 Senior executives £nil 29,512 Threeyears'service 10years
Executive Share Option Scheme 24 Aprit 2021 Senior employees £22.63 120,994  Threeyears’service, EPS performance in FY2023, ROCE performance in FY2023 10years
Savings-Related Share Option April 2022 Allemployees £19.68 265,209 Threeyears'service 3.5years
Scheme 23
Performance Share Plan 13 March 2022 Senior executives £nil 91,305 Threeyears'service, EPS average annual growth of 3-8% over those three years and 10years
average annual ROCE of 19.6-22.6% over those three years
Performance Share Plan 13a May 2022 Senior executives £nil 36,014  Threeyears'service, EPS average annual growth of 3-8% over those three years and 10years
average annual ROCE of 18.6-22.6% over those three years
Exacutive Share Option Scheme 25 March 2022 Senior employees £24.31 118,357 Threeyears'service, EPS average annual growth of 3-8% over those three years and 10years
. average annual ROCE of 18.6-22.6% over those three years
The number and weighted average exercise price oi share options is as follows:
2022 2021
Welghtedaverage Numberof Weighted average Number of
exerclse price options exercise price optlons
Outstanding at the beginning of the year £9.57 1,973,101 £6.07 2,352,867
Lapsed during the year £317 (391,775) £10.17 (288,469)
Exercised during the year £11.23 1272,472) £71 (653,904)
Granted during the year £15.85 510,885 £13.55 562,507
Outstanding at the end of the year £9.41 1,819,739 £9.57 1,973,101
Exercisable at the end of the year £7.464 363,630 £6.76 527,561

No options expired during the period covered by the above tables. The options outstanding at 31 December 2022 have an exercise price in the range of £nil to £24.31and have a weighted average
contractual life of 5.1years. The options exercised during the year had a weighted average market value of £22.73(2021: £23.94).
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20. Employee benefits continued
Share-based payments - Group and Parent Company continued

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the servicesreceived is
measured based on the Black-Scholes model for all Savings-Related Share Option Schemes and Executive Share Option Schemes and for Performance Share Plan options granted from 2014

onwards. The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used in these calculations are as follows:

2022

2021

Savings-Related

Performance

Savings-Related

pt Performance SharePlan12  Executive Share Share Option
S| 13 i 25 Scheme 23 Share Plan 12 {retained)  Option Scheme 24 Scheme 22

March 2022 May 2022 March 2022 Apri12022 April 2021 April 2021 April202) April 2021

Fair value at grant date £23.34 £20.04 £7.64 £8.33 £21.08 £21.08 £6.43 £7.40
Share price £24.99 £21.68 £24.99 £23.50 £22.72 £22.72 £22.63 £20.89
Exercise price £nil £nil £24.31 £19.68 £nil £nil £22.63 £16.72
Expected volatility 48.75% 48.29% 48.75% 49.00% 4817% 48.17% 49.17% 49.17%
Optionlife Jyears Jyears Jyears Jyears 3years Jyears 3years Jyears
Expected dividend yield 2.28% 2.83% 2.28% 2.43% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
Risk-free rate 1.38% 150% 1.38% 1.64% 0.15% 0.15% 0.15% 0.15%

The expected volatility is based on historical volatility, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatiity due to publicly available information. The historical volatility is calculated using a

weekly rolling share price for the three-year period immediately prior to the option grant date.

The costs charged to the income statement relating to share-based payments were as follows:

2022 2021

£m £m
Share options granted in 2018 - (1.0)
Share options granted in 2019 0.2 0.6
Share options granted in 2020 0.7 1.2
Share options granted in 2021 18 14
Share options granted in 2022 0.9 -

3.6 2.2
Social security contributions (0.3) 1.6
Total expense recogniséd asemployee costs 33 3.8
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21. Provisions

Group and Parent Company

2022 2021
2022 Natlonal 2022 2022 2022 2021 National 2021 2021 2021
Other Total i Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m E€m
Balance at start of the year 31 2.2 0.2 15 70 2.7 1.5 0.9 2.3 74
Additional provision in the year 1.8 - - - 1.8 1.5 1.6 - - 31
Utilised in the year (0.3) (0.3) - (0.2) (0.8) (0.4) (0.9} (0.4) (0.2) (1.9)
Provisions reversed during the year (1.0) 0.3) [( )] (0.3) an 0.7) - {0.3) (0.6) (1.6)
Balance at end of the year 36 1.6 0.1 1.0 6.3 3.1 2.2 0.2 15 70
Includedin current liabilities 23 0.9 - 0.4 36 2.0 18 0.1 0.5 4.2
Included in non-current liabilities 13 0.7 0.1 0.6 27 1 0.6 01 1.0 2.8
3.6 16 0.1 10 - 6.3 31 2.2 0.2 1.5 7.0

Dilapidation provisions have been made based on the future expected repair costs required to restore the Group’s leased buildings to their fair condition at the end of their respective lease terms,
where it is considered a reliable estimate can be made.

National Insurance costs are provided in respect of future share options exercises.
Other provisions are largely in respect of onerous costs relating to closed shops where the lease has not yet expired.

The majority of all of the provisions are expected to be utilised between one and four years such that the impact of discounting would not be material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

22. Capital andreserves

Share capital
Ordinary shares
2022 2021
Number Number
Inissue and fully paid at start of year - ordinary shares of 2p 101,897,021 101,426,038
Issued on exercise of share options 215,560 470,983

102,112,581 101,897,021

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

During the year 215,560 shares(2021: 470,983} were issued as aresult of the exercise of vested options granted to senior management under the Executive Share Option Scheme and the exercise
of options under the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme. Options were exercised at an average price of £13.61(2021: £10.28).

Share premium reserve
The share premium reserve relates to the proceeds received in excess of the nominal value of shares issued, net of any transaction costs.

‘Capitaf redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve relates to the nominal value of issued share capital bought back by the Company and cancelled.

Own shares held

Deducted from retained earnings is £59.7 million(2021: £48.9 million)in respect of own shares held by the Greggs Employee Benefit Trust. The Trust, which was established during 1988 to act
asarepository of issued Company shares, holds 866,312 shares{2021: 375,694 shares)with a market value at 31 December 2022 of £20.3 million(2021: £12.5 million)which have not vested
unconditionally in employees. During the year the Trust purchased 546,286 (2021: 330,693)shares for an aggregate consideration of £11.0 million{2021: £10.0 million)and sold 55,668(2021: 182,921)
shares for an aggregate consideration of £nil(2021: £0.3 million).

The shares held by the Greggs Employee Benefit Trust can be purchased either by employees on the exercise of an option under the Greggs Executive Share Option Schemes, Greggs Savings-
Related Share Option Scheme and Greggs Performance Share Plan or by the trustees of the Greggs Employee Share Scheme. The trustees have elected to waive the dividends payable on
these shares.
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Dividends
The following tables analyse dividends when paid and the year to which they relate:

2022 2021
Per share Per share
pence pence
202%interim dividend - 15.0p
2021special dividend 40.0p -
2021 final dividend 42.0p -
2022 interim dividend 15.0p -
97.0p 15.0p

The proposed final dividend in respect of 2022 amounts to 44.0 pence{£44.9 million). These dividends are not included as a liability in these accounts.
2022 2021
£€m £m
2021interim dividend - 15.3
2021special dividend 406 -
2021 final dividend 42.7 -
2022 interim dividend . 15.2 -
98.5 15.3

23. Capital commitments
During the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered into contracts to purchase property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for £45.5 million(2021: £16.3 million) which are
expected to be settled in the following financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

24. Related parties
Identity of related parties
The Group has arelated party relationship withits subsidiaries (see Note 12), Directors and executive officers, and pension schemes.

Trading transactions with subsidiaries - Group
Thzre have been no transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries or associates during the year {2021: none).

Trading transactions with subsidiaries - Parent Company

related parties

2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m €m £m
Dormant subsidiaries 78 78 - -

The Greggs Foundationis also arelated party and during the year the Company made a donation to the Greggs Foundation of £2.2 million{2021: £1.2 million), as well as passing on £0.2 million
(2021: £0.1million)raised from the sale of carrier bags and £0.4 million{2021: £0.3 million) raised from the sale of products. The Greggs Foundation holds 300,000 shares(2021: 300,000 shares)
in Greggs plc and Richard Hutton, a Director of Greggs plc, is a trustee of the Greggs Foundation.

Tr tions with key gement per .
Details of Directors’shareholdings, share options, emoluments, pension benefits and other non-cash benefits can be found in the Directors’remuneration report on pages 78 to 100.
Summary information on remuneration of key management personnel is included in Note 4. ’
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25. Contingent asset

In October 2021the Company issued legal proceedings against its insurer regarding a Covid-19 business interruption claim. An interim payment was received in January 2021 from the insurer in
the sum of £2.5 million. This was recognised as income in the results for the 53 weeks ended 2 January 2021, representing the alleged limit of the insurer’s liability based on there being only one
limit available for the single event, which allegedly caused all of the Company’s business interruption losses. Having taken legal advice the Company pursued a claim in the High Court, on the basis
that there were multiple events, which caused the Company’s business interruption losses, namely the various changes in Covid-related restrictions to which separate £2.5 million caps would
apply. In October 2022 the High Court largely ruled in the Company’s favour. However the ruling stated that only material changes in restrictions would provide additional £2.5 millioninsurance
limits. Aspects of the ruling have been appealed to the Court of Appeal by both the Company and its insurer. It follows that it's not virtually certain that there will be an inflow of economic benefits
and consequently in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets no amount has been recognised as at 31 December 2022. Due to the subjective determination
as to what constitutes a “material change” in restrictions, and given the appeals being made by all parties, the final quantum is not ascertainable at the date of these accounts. Consistent with the
prioryeara contingent asset is disclosed as it is considered more likely than not that the claim will result in an inflow of economic benefit.
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TEN-YEARHISTORY

2004

2013 .estmd;’ 2015 2018 2017 2018 20199 2020 2021 2022
Turnover(£m) 762.4 806.1 835.7 894.2 960.0 1,029.3 1167.9 811.3 1,229.7 1512.8
Total sales growth/(decline)(%} 3.8% 5.7% 37% 7.0% 4% 72% 13.5% (30.5%) 51.6% 23.0%
Company-managed shop like-for-like sales growth/(decline}{%} {0.8%) 4.5% 47% 4.2% 37% 2.9% 9.2% (36.2%) 52.4% 17.8%
Profit/{loss) before tax(PBT}excluding exceptional items (£m) 4.3 58.3 731 80.3 81.7 89.8 14.2 {12.9) 145.6 148.3
PBT margin excluding exceptional items (%) 5.4% 7.2% 8.7% 9.0% 8.5% 8.7% 9.8% (15.9%) Nn.8% 9.8%
Pre-tax exceptional charge (£m) (8.1} (8.5) - {6.2) 9.9) (7.2) (5.9) {0.8) - -
Profit/{loss}on ordinary activities including exceptional items and before tax(£m) 33.2 49.7 73.0 751 nae 82.6 108.3 13.7) 145.6 148.3
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share excluding exceptional items {pence) 30.6 43.4 55.8 60.8 83.5 70.3 89.7 (12.9) 14.3 n7s
Dividend per share declared(pence) 19.5 22.0 48.6% 31.0 32.3 35.7 46.9° - 97.08 5§9.0
Total shareholder return{%} 0.6% 69.7% 871% (23.8%) 475% (7.4%) 87.5% (22.0%) 87.3% (27.9%)
Capital expenditure (Em) 476 48.9 na 80.4 70.4 73.0 86.0 58.7 57.4 110.8
Return on capital employed (excluding exceptionat items)(%} 16.4% 22.4% 26.8% 28.1% 26.9% 27.4% 20.0% (2.4%) 23.0% 21.0%
Number of shops in operation at year end 1,671 1,650 1,698 1,764 1,854 1,953 2,050 2,078 2,181 2,328

20142nd 2020 3 years, i
Restated following the adoption of IAS 19{Revised)}

Restated toinclude revenue in respect of franchise fit-out casts
Includes aspecial dividend of 20.0 pence paid in 2015

Includes aspecial dividend of 35.0 pence. The final dividend declared in respect of 2013

ow:h for that year and the year immediately following

Restated for achange in accounting policy relating to deferred tax
Includes aspecial dividend of 40.0p

I N

asacashpreser

IFRS 18 leases was implemented at the start of the financial year using the modified retrospective approach. Prior year comparatives have not beenrestated
{ e during the Covid-19 crisis

Allof the non-GAAP measures detailed above can be calculated from the GAAP measures included in the annual accounts with the exception of those detailed pages 157 and 158.
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Calculation of alternative performance measures
Like-for-like (LFL)sales growth - compares year-cn-year cash sales in our company-managed shops, with a calendar year's trading history and is calculated as follows:

2022 2021
£m £m
Current year LFL sales 1,239.8 981.5
Prioryear LFL sales 1,052.2 643.9
Growthin LFL sales 187.6 337.6
LFL sales growth percentage 17.8% 52.4%
Return on capital employed - calculated by dividing profit before tax by the average total assets less current liabilities for the year.
2022 2021
£m Em
Profit before tax 148.3 145.6
Capital employed:
Qpening 6815 585.6
Closing 7303 681.5
Average 705.8 633.6
Return on capital employed 21.0% 23.0%

Net cashinflow from operating activities after lease payments - calculated by deducting the repayment of principal of lease liabilities from net cash flow from operating activities

2022 2021

£m £m
Net cashinflow from operating activities 2515 2855
Repayment of principle of [ease liabilities (52.7) {49.0)
Net cashinflow from operating activities after lease payments 198.8 236.5

Greggs plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 17



158

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED

Ratio of IFRS 16 ‘right of use’ charges on leased property assets to company-managed shop sales - calculated by dividing land and buildings right-of-use asset charges by company-managed

shop turnover
2022 2021
£m £m
Company-managed shop turnover (see Note 1) 13523 1,098.2
Land and buildings right-of-use assets depreciation {see Note 10) 516 417
Land and buildings right-of-use assets interest charge (see Note 10} 6.8 6.3
Right-of-use asset charges ) 58.4 54.0
4.3% 4.9%
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